INFLUENCES OF ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL, GOVERNANCE PERFORMANCE AND INSTITUTIONAL OWNERSHIP ON FIRM PERFORMANCE: THE MODERATING ROLE OF MANAGERIAL EFFICIENCY



A DISSERTATION SUBMITTED IN PARTIAL FULFILLMENT OF THE REQUIREMENTS FOR THE DEGREE OF DOCTOR OF PHILOSOPHY PROGRAM IN BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION FACULTY OF BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION RAJAMANGALA UNIVERSITY OF TECHNOLOGY THANYABURI ACADEMIC YEAR 2023 COPY RIGHT OF RAJAMANGALA UNIVERSITY OF TECHNOLOGY THANYABURI

INFLUENCES OF ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL, GOVERNANCE PERFORMANCE AND INSTITUTIONAL OWNERSHIP ON FIRM PERFORMANCE: THE MODERATING ROLE OF MANAGERIAL EFFICIENCY

PENPRAPAK MANAPREECHADEELERT

A DISSERTATION SUBMITTED IN PARTIAL FULFILLMENT OF THE REQUIREMENTS FOR THE DEGREE OF DOCTOR OF PHILOSOPHY PROGRAM IN BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION FACULTY OF BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION RAJAMANGALA UNIVERSITY OF TECHNOLOGY THANYABURI ACADEMIC YEAR 2023 COPY RIGHT OF RAJAMANGALA UNIVERSITY OF TECHNOLOGY THANYABURI

Dissertation Title	Influences of Environmental, Social, Governance Performance	
	and Institutional Ownership on Firm Performance: The	
	Moderating Role of Managerial Efficiency	
Name – Surname	Miss Penprapak Manapreechadeelert	
Program	Business Administration	
Dissertation Advisor	Assistant Professor Kusuma Dampitakse, Ph.D.	
Dissertation Co-Advisor	Associate Professor Sungworn Ngudgratoke, Ph.D.	
Academic Year	2023	

DISSERTATION COMMITTEE

Kanphatte Nithy atom Chairman

(Associate Professor Kanibhatti Nitirojntanad, D.B.A.)

Nastrapher lancho ... Committee

(Assistant Professor Nartraphee Tancho, Ph.D.)

Seya Tongkag Committee

(Assistant Professor Supa Tongkong, Ph.D.)

S. Ngudgratike Committee

(Associate Professor Sungworn Ngudgratoke, Ph.D.)

Kunna Danyitalan Committee

(Assistant Professor Kusuma Dampitakse, Ph.D.)

Approved by the Faculty of Business Administration, Rajamangala University of Technology Thanyaburi in Partial Fulfillment of the Requirements for the Degree of Doctor of Philosophy

(Associate Professor Khahan Na-Nan, Ph.D.)

15 September 2023

Dissertation Title Influences of Environmental, Social, Governance			
	and Institutional Ownership on Firm Performance: The		
	Moderating Role of Managerial Efficiency		
Name-Surname	Miss Penprapak Manapreechadeelert		
Program	Business Administration		
Dissertation Advisor	Assistant Professor Kusuma Dampitakse, Ph.D.		
Dissertation Co-advisor	Associate Professor Sungworn Ngudgratoke, Ph.D.		
Academic Year	2023		

ABSTRACT

This research aimed to study: 1) the relationship between environmental, social, and governance (ESG) performance and firm performance, 2) the relationship between institutional ownership and firm performance, 3) the moderating role of managerial efficiency on the relationship between ESG performance and firm performance and 4) the moderating role of managerial efficiency on the relationship between institutional ownership and firm performance. Firm performance was based on the accounting and market performance of the firm by return on assets (ROA) and Tobin's Q respectively. ESG performance was measured according to the Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs), as promoted by the United Nations in 2019. The samples consisted of 373 companies listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand. The data were collected from sustainability reports and the SETSMART database for the period from 2016 to 2021, which yielded 2,104 firm-year observations. The statistical methods used to analyze the data were multiple linear regression and Hayes's regression-based analysis.

The research results showed that ESG performance had no relationship with firm performance while institutional ownership had positive relationship with firm performance. In addition, the study revealed that managerial efficiency positively moderated the relationship between ESG performance and firm performance as well as the relationship between institutional ownership and firm performance. Specifically, the study indicated that the positive effect of managerial efficiency on firm performance was stronger when the managerial efficiency was average and above, whereas managerial efficiency showed no statistically significant effect on firm performance when it was below average. The rule of ESG performance can lead to better firm performance if ESG performance can improve the overall efficiency of the firms, which is reflected through managerial efficiency. This research also provides additional information considering the size of the firms included in the analysis. This study provides additional insights into ESG performance data based on the size of businesses. It highlights an intriguing observation that in small-sized companies, engaging in ESG activities can lead to a decrease in company performance. This suggests that for small-sized companies, ESG operations may still pose a relatively high cost when compared to the benefits gained. Conversely, if small firms conduct ESG performance efficiently and achieve high management efficiency, ESG performance will lead to better firm performance as well as large firms.

In addition, in small-sized companies, the proportion of institutional investor ownership has a negative impact on company performance. This suggests that in smallsized companies, institutional investors may not effectively serve as external monitors for corporate governance. However, if small-sized companies can attract institutional investors who can contribute to efficient operations, which in this research context refers to achieving high managerial efficiency, they can also improve their overall company performance like larger companies.

Keywords: ESG, institutional ownership, managerial efficiency, firm performance



Acknowledgement

This dissertation was successfully completed with the kind assistance of Assistant Professor Dr. Kusuma Dampitakse, the advisor. Since the first day of registration of dissertation 1, the researcher has received kindness and care for research proposals until I was able to develop a complete dissertation. This includes Associate Professor Dr. Sungworn Ngudgratoke, who is a statistics professional who not only solves statistical problems, but also explains the basics of knowledge to understand it in its true context. And he took time to provide the guidance that the researcher would like to receive at each step of the statistical data review process, and had always been courtesy. The researcher felt the connection and chemistry between the supervisor, co-supervisor, and the researcher. Therefore, there was a sense of enjoyment during the preparation of this work.

And the researcher is determined to take both of them as role models for supervising students in the future. In addition, the researcher would like to thank Associate Professor Dr. Kanibhatti Nitirojntanad, the examination chairman, who provides new insights. Since the first dissertation defend, helps the researcher to reduce the ego. Because in the past, researchers had high self-confidence. Through her suggestions and arguments, the researcher learned to understand and discover the essence of doctoral studies. And assistant professor Dr. Supa Thongkong, who provided a guide for the researcher to take a broader view and do root cause research to gain new insights and make the dissertation more valuable. In addition to committee members involved in the researcher's dissertation.

There are also people with whom the researcher is not related and to whom he would like to express my deepest gratitude, namely Assistant Professor Dr. Tharitsaya Kongkaew, a Ph.D. 7 classmate who is an example of perseverance and patience and taught the researcher not to give up during the period of preparation long dissertation. Along the way, she imparted knowledge about writing in English. She also urged the researcher to use PROCESS data analysis to analyze additional data so that the dissertation would contain strong new findings.

Finally, the researcher would like to thank Rajamangala University of Technology Suvarnabhumi for providing scholarships to researchers for doctoral studies. If the researcher does not receive this scholarship, he will not be able to graduate with the highest possible self-esteem. More importantly, the researcher will not be able to earn a Ph.D. unless receiving comprehensive knowledge from all the teachers who trained the researcher.



Table of Contents

Abstract	(3)	
Acknowledgements		
Table of Contents	(7)	
List of Tables	(9)	
List of Figures	(11)	
CHAPTER 1 INTRODUCTION	14	
1.1 Background and Statement of the Problem	14	
1.2 Purpose of this Study	18	
1.3 Research Question and Hypotheses	18	
1.4 Scope of Study	20	
1.5 Limitation of Study	20	
1.6 Definitions of Terms	21	
1.7 Contribution of the Study	23	
1.8 Conceptual Framework	24	
1.9 Organization of the Study	25	
CHAPTER 2 REVIEW OF THE LITERATURE	26	
2.1 Overview Concept of ESG	26	
2.2 Theories that Guided the Research	28	
2.3 The Costs and Benefits of Implementing ESG Principles	33	
2.4 The Concepts of Variable	34	
2.5 Linkage Literature Review and Research Hypotheses Development	55	
CHAPTER 3 RESEARCH METHODOLOGY	85	
3.1 Statistical Analysis Model	85	
3.2 Research and Sampling Design	85	
3.3 Research Variables	87	
3.4 Study Model	90	
3.5 Data Preparation	94	

Table of Contents (Continued)

CHAPTER 4 RESEARCH RESULTS		
4.1 Descriptive Statistics	95	
4.2 Variables Diagnostics	96	
4.3 Panel Regression Tests	99	
4.4 Robustness Checks	100	
4.5 PROCESS Regression Analysis	100	
4.6 Proposed Model and Hypotheses Testing: ESG Model	100	
4.7 Proposed Model and Hypotheses Testing: Institutional Ownership		
Model	115	
4.8 Summary of Research Hypotheses	128	
CHAPTER 5 CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATIONS		
5.1 Conclusion	129	
5.2 Research Results and Discussion	131	
5.3 Contribution of the Study	134	
5.4 Limitation and Future Research	139	
Bibliography		
Appendices	158	
Appendix A Regression Diagnostics	159	
Appendix B Results of PROCESS Regression Assumptions Testing	166	
Biography	180	

List of Tables

Table 2.1	Summary of studies on ESG and firm performance	59
Table 2.2	Summary of studies on institutional ownership and firm	
	performance	72
Table 2.3	Summary of studies on managerial efficiency and performance	77
Table 3.1	Research sample	86
Table 3.2	Describes the sample fiscal year	86
Table 3.3	Sample distribution by industry	87
Table 3.4	Definition of variables	90
Table 4.1	Descriptive statistics on the variables of the study	95
Table 4.2	Normality test of sample distribution	97
Table 4.3	The result of correlation and auto-correlation analysis	98
Table 4.4	Goodness of fit for the panel data models	99
Table 4.5	PROCESS regression moderating effect of managerial efficiency	
	on ESG and ROA relationship	101
Table 4.6	PROCESS regression moderating effect of managerial efficiency	
	on ESG and Tobin's Q relationship	103
Table 4.7	Multiple regression moderating effect of managerial efficiency	
	on ESG and firm performance relationship	106
Table 4.8	Descriptive statistics on the variables of large and small samples	108
Table 4.9 PROCESS regression moderating effect of managerial efficience		
	on ESG and firm performance relationship on large firms	109
Table 4.10	PROCESS regression moderating effect of managerial efficiency	
	on ESG and ROA relationship on small firms	111
Table 4.11	PROCESS regression moderating effect of managerial efficiency	
	on ESG and Tobin's Q relationship on small firms	113
Table 4.12	PROCESS regression moderating effect of managerial efficiency	

	List of Tables (Continued)	
	on institutional ownership and Tobin's Q relationship	119
Table 4.13	PROCESS regression moderating effect of managerial efficiency	
	on institutional ownership and ROA relationship	116

Page

Table 4.14	Multiple regression moderating effect of managerial efficiency	
	on ESG and firm performance relationship	121
Table 4.15	PROCESS regression moderating effect of managerial efficiency on	
	institutional ownership and performance relationship (large firms)	122
Table 4.16	PROCESS regression moderating effect of managerial efficiency	
	on institutional ownership and ROA relationship (small firms)	124
Table 4.17	PROCESS regression moderating effect of managerial efficiency	
	on institutional ownership and Tobin's Q relationship (small firms).	126
Table 4.18	Summary of research hypotheses	128



List of Figures

Figure 1.1	The research framework model 1	24
Figure 1.2	The research framework model 2	24
Figure 2.1	Linking environmental, social and governance (ESG) performance	
	and firm performance	59
Figure 2.2	Measuring ESG performance	65
Figure 2.3	Linking institutional ownership and firm performance	71
Figure 2.4	Linking ESG performance, managerial efficiency and firm	
	performance	80
Figure 2.5	Linking institutional ownership, managerial efficiency and firm	
	performance	82
Figure 3.1	Two-way interaction effect between ESG and firm performance on	
	managerial efficiency conceptual diagram	92
Figure 3.2	Two-way interaction effect between ESG performance on managerial	
	efficiency statistical diagram	92
Figure 3.3	Two-way interaction effect between institutional ownership and firm	
	performance on managerial efficiency conceptual diagram	93
Figure 3.4	wo-way interaction effect institutional ownership on managerial	
	efficiency statistical diagram	93
Figure 4.1	Moderating effect of managerial efficiency on ESG and ROA	
	relationship	102
Figure 4.2	Moderating effect of managerial efficiency (M_Score) on ESG and	
	Tobin's Q relationship	104
Figure 4.3	Moderating effect of managerial efficiency on ESG and ROA	
	relationship of small firms	113
Figure 4.4	Moderating effect of managerial efficiency on ESG and Tobin's Q	
	relationship of small firms	115

Figure 4.5	Moderating effect of managerial efficiency on institutional	
	ownership and ROA relationship	118

List of Figures (Continued)

Page

Figure 4.6	Moderating effect of managerial efficiency on institutional	
	ownership and Tobin's Q relationship	120
Figure 4.7	.7 Moderating effect of managerial efficiency on institutional	
	ownership and ROA relationship of small firms	125
Figure 4.8	Moderating effect of managerial efficiency on institutional	
	ownership and Tobin's Q relationship of small firms	127



List of Abbreviations

Abbreviation	Meaning
M_Score	Managerial efficiency
ESG	Environment, social and governance performance
INS	Institutional ownership
ROA	Return on assets
Q	Tobin' Q
FS	Firm size
LnFS	The natural logarithm of firm size
LEV	Firm Leverage
GR	Sales growth
INDUS	Industry
TIMES	Years

CHAPTER 1 INTRODUCTION

1.1 Background and Statement of the Problem

The primary factors contributing to the current global crisis stem from people's excessive consumption, which depletes global resources and leads to scarcity. This trend of increased resource use creates an ecological imbalance and exacerbates social inequality. The COVID-19 pandemic, as well as issues such as climate change, environmental degradation, the digital disrupt, and global cybersecurity concerns (Bombardier Inc, 2021), have far-reaching consequences on human life and the business sector. According to the 16th edition of the World Economic Forum's Global Risks Report 2021, the world is highly likely to face severe climate change crises, the failure of climate management, and environmental issues caused by human behavior in the next decade. These problems affect not only the general public but also the business sector, which may need to adapt to sustainable growth that benefits all parties as traditional profit-focused business models may no longer be appropriate for the current and future contexts. This is the foundation of the framework that drives sustainable business growth, which is increasingly recognized and accepted today, focusing on three crucial dimensions: environment dimension (E), social dimension (S) and corporate governance dimension (G) or ESG (Napoletano & Curry, 2022).

Environmental regulations around the world, including Thailand, are becoming stricter (Kasikorn Research Center, 2023). Thus, ESG has become an important issue among corporate investors (S&P Global, 2022). It first emerged in socially responsible investing in 1992 when the United Nations Environment Program Finance Initiative (UNEP FI) encouraged financial institutions to consider ESG factors in their business decision-making processes. Institutional investors began using ESG in their investment decisions in 2006, and in 2009, there was a push to promote sustainability in private businesses worldwide through the stock market. Through the mechanism of the stock market, transparency and ESG have been promoted for long-term sustainability (SSE initiative, 2019). Obviously, the importance of ESG has grown significantly since 2016 and continues to expand according to Morgan Stanley (2023), with investors increasingly

willing to invest in companies with outstanding ESG performance, and other stakeholders demanding corporate ESG data. ESG is becoming the most important way of measuring the sustainability of economic agents in the international community, with the three dimensions of environmental, social, and governance increasingly important (Wang et al., 2023).

ESG plays a crucial role in providing a framework for the procurement, production, and delivery of goods and services, building trust among customers, partners, investors, and supply chain stakeholders, and reducing the risk of disruptions in the production process (SET, 2019). It also enables organizations to manage suppliers sustainably (SET, 2022), resulting in higher revenues, lower costs, and reduced risks of non-compliance. Apparently, organizations that consider supply chain will earn more revenue up to 5-20%, reduce costs by 5-15%, increase product value by 10-25%, and reduce the risk of counterparties not complying with the agreement (World Economic Forum, 2015). ESG can have a positive impact on the organization's reputation and financial performance by implementing sustainable production processes, such as using solar energy in factories or converting waste into fuel and value-added products that reduce production costs. Additionally, creating environmentally friendly products and services, such as energy-efficient building materials or electric vehicles, can add value to products, expand new markets, and increase revenue from customers who prioritize environmental concerns. Thus, ESG efforts can help companies build competitive advantages in the long run, especially in the current market where consumers tend to choose socially and environmentally responsible companies, reflecting their effectiveness (Dkhili, 2023).

An important element of ESG that investors pay a lot of attention to is corporate governance. Nowadays, domestic and foreign investors pay attention to listed companies with corporate governance (CG), together with business model, competitiveness, and growth ability. The reason is that a company with good corporate governance can provide a long-term benefit for stakeholders. Furthermore, good corporate governance also reflects transparency and sincerity with investors. Thus, stakeholders from all sectors consider good corporate governance as an important factor to success since it builds confidence and trust among customers, which makes the company worth investing (Farooq et al., 2022). Several studies have shown that good corporate governance comes from the role of the board after examining board characteristics, such as board size, frequency of board meetings, board independence, CEO duality and gender diversity of the board (Al Farooque et al., 2020; Butt et al., 2022; Shaat et al., 2023). In addition to the role of the board, an effective relationship between the board and the management is essential for good corporate governance and firm performance. The board must act in supervising the management to achieve the objectives and goals. As a result, the performance of the board of directors is inevitably linked to the management. Furthermore, the CEO is responsible for implementing good corporate governance principles in the management and corporate structure, as well as applying the policies to the operational level for long-term corporate benefits and sustainable growth (SEC, 2023).

Most corporate governance studies focus on internal governance mechanisms and board characteristics, such as board independence, board size, audit committee independence, audit committee size, CEO duality, and board diversity. These are considered as indicators of a good corporate governance mechanism that affects the corporate added value (Butt et al., 2022; Farooq et al., 2022; Alajmi & Worthington, 2023). However, investment analysts or equity analysts are an integral part of the external governance mechanism that affects the investment decisions of individual investors (Navissi & Naiker, 2006). With a role in investment analysis and the role of shareholders, institutional investors reflect good corporate governance mechanisms since their analysis focuses on investment with the goal of generating long-term returns. With an investment committee with expertise and administrative mechanisms, they are able to manage risks to generate higher returns for the efficiency of the investments. Furthermore, with a shareholder who can audit the management, agent costs caused by major and minor shareholders and the management can be decreased (Jensen & Meckling, 1976). It has been widely accepted that institutional investors have an influence on managerial performance. A company with a high proportion of shares held by institutional investors indicates a higher performance since this can lead to a good corporate governance mechanism and the most efficient use of resources (Nurleni et al., 2018). Institutional shareholders are considered as a key investor group in the capital market due to the fact that their large proportion of investment helps promote the improvement of corporate governance in the capital market (SEC, 2022).

Efficient management is crucial for a company's success. According to a review of literature spanning the past decade, managerial efficiency has a significant impact on various aspects related to revenue generation (Demerjian et al., 2012). This includes the disclosure of CSR performance (Sun, 2017; Chen & Chen, 2020). If a company has high managerial efficiency, it reflects a positive business outlook and is attractive to invest in. Companies that implement ESG practices with high managerial efficiency can reduce investment risks, as they have standardized business models and risk management processes. This is seen as an appealing business opportunity by investors (Velte, 2020; Dkhili, 2023). On the other hand, if a company has excellent ESG performance but low managerial efficiency, it may suggest that ESG is being used solely for image purposes and to create a positive perception in the eyes of investors. Velte's (2020) research has explored the impact of CEO power on the relationship between ESG and financial performance, with findings showing that CEO power moderates the relationship between ESG and market performance. In contrast, our study focuses on the role of managerial efficiency in the relationship between ESG and firm performance (as measured by ROA and tobin's q) by examining the overall effect of ESG on firm performance, using both accounting-based and market-based financial success indicators. The results of this study will elucidate how ESG influences firm performance, particularly for a listed company in Thailand, and the role of managerial efficiency in establishing this relationship will be determined.

The above evidence suggests that the shares held by institutional investors reflect a good corporate governance mechanism since this type of investors is able to monitor the management to efficiently perform their duties which would add value to the company. In this regard, managerial efficiency is the use of skills, knowledge, and abilities reflected through operational strategies to achieve business success. Demerjian et al., (2012) defined managerial efficiency as a change in the corporate resources and high managerial efficiency was correlated with higher firm performance. According to Chen & Lin (2018), companies with high managerial efficiency generate higher returns on purchases and hold their investments over the long term. Furthermore, Khurana et al.

(2018) found that high managerial efficiency had an influence on effective investment in capital markets.

This study aims to address a gap in the current literature by examining how managerial efficiency affects the impact of ESG and institutional ownership on firm performance, specifically in Thailand, and providing new insights into the importance of managerial efficacy in supporting the relationship between ESG, institutional ownership, and financial success, which will add significant value to the existing body of literature on this topic.

1.2 Purpose of the Study

Indeed, most ESG performance and institutional ownership research has focused on examining connections with firm performance. However, there needs to be a more systematic study that focuses solely on how ESG and institutional ownership impact firm performance across a sample of listed companies in the Stock Exchange of Thailand. The purposes of this study are as follows:

(1) To determine the influence of environmental, social, and governance (ESG) performance on firm performance.

(2) To determine the influence of institutional ownership on firm performance.

(3) To explore a potential moderation effect of managerial efficiency on the relationship between environmental, social, and governance (ESG) performance on firm performance.

(4) To explore a potential moderation effect of managerial efficiency on the relationship between institutional ownership on firm performance.

The study shows the perspective of ESG and institutional ownership on firm performance, and analyzes whether the link between ESG, institutional ownership, and financial performance (ROA and Tobin's Q) is moderated by managerial efficiency and the effect of control variables.

1.3 Research Questions and Hypotheses

The present research about ESG and institutional ownership is built upon the positive theory, which aims to answer questions in a way that leads to a solution based on

stakeholder theory (Freeman, 1984) and agency theory (Jensen & Meckling, 1976). According to the stakeholder theory, the management should not only focus on internal stakeholders but also external stakeholders. Previous studies on the relationship between environmental, social, corporate governance, and institutional ownership on firm performance provide various theories that can explain this relationship.

Furthermore, the management must support social responsibility by broadening the perspective of stakeholders that including employees, customers, suppliers, local communities, and governments since the success of corporate missions based on policies and decision-making might affect this group of people. The research suggests that corporate responsibility and ownership structure to all stakeholders improve long-term performance and reflect corporate ethical values when making investment decisions (Aboud & Diab, 2018; Melinda & Wardhani, 2020; Bodhanwala & Bodhanwala, 2023).

According to stakeholder theory and agency theory and former empirical research results, we assume that ESG performance and ownership structure are positively related to firm performance (ROA and Tobin's Q). Successful ESG activities and institutional ownership will lead to a better firm reputation and firm performance. Consequently, past empirical research finds evidence for a positive impact of ESG performance on firm performance Hence, hypothesize:

The research question was separated into four categories, as follows:

Research Question 1: Does ESG performance affect the firm performance of listed companies in Thailand?

Research Question 2: Does institutional ownership affect the firm performance of listed companies in Thailand?

Research Question 3: Does managerial efficiency moderate the effect of ESG performance on firm performance and when does ity moderate?

Research Question 4: Does managerial efficiency moderate the effect of institutional ownership on firm performance and when does it moderate?

According to the research questions and objectives, the hypotheses were proposed as follows:

Hypothesis 1: The ESG performance will lead to increased firm performance.Hypothesis 2: Institutional ownership will lead to increased firm performance.

Hypothesis 3: The managerial efficiency moderates the effect of ESG performance on firm performance, such that the effect is stronger in firms with high managerial efficiency than in firms with low managerial efficiency after controlling for firm characteristics.

Hypothesis 4: Managerial efficiency moderates the effect of institutional ownership on firm performance, such that the effect is stronger in firms with high managerial efficiency than in firms with low managerial efficiency after controlling for firm characteristics.

1.4 Scope of Study

This study aims to investigate the effect of environmental, social, and governance (ESG) performance on firm performance (ROA and Tobin's Q) to explore a potential moderation effect of managerial efficiency on this relationship. The study uses the non-probability sampling method, specifically the purposive sampling method, to choose a sample from the available population. The sample is chosen based on how well it meets the research needs. The sample includes 373 non-financial firms (2,104 firm-year observations) listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET), for which data are manually collected from 2016 to 2021. The data are collected from SETSMART, which provides the financial statement information as well as financial market data of Thai listed companies. The statistical method used to analyze the data was Andrew Hayes Process regression to test the hypothesess. The alternative measurement for moderation was multiple linear regression, conducting a robustness check for moderation by recalculating moderation through multiple regression analysis. The robustness test results show similar results of the moderation of managerial efficiency between ESG, institutional ownership, and firm performance.

1.5 Limitations of the Study

This research is subject to certain restrictions, which may present an opportunity for future research to extend this investigation. First, companies whose corporate governance scores were not disclosed by the Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD), as their scores were assessed to be below 70 points (less than 3 stars) were excluded in this study. Second, The ESG performance within the financial business group was not examined. The measurement of managerial efficiency in this group differs from other industry groups and warrants separate investigation, especially considering the impact of events, such as the financial crisis and the COVID-19 pandemic. Finally, the ownership structure of institutional investors based on concentration groups, such as the 30 percent threshold highlighted in the studies by Bushee (1998) and Daryaei & Fattahi (2020) was not analyzed since the concentration of institutional investors has varying effects on performance. Additionally, domestic and foreign institutional investors were not specifically differentiated in this study.

1.6 Definition of Term

(1) Environmental social and governance (ESG) performance

ESG is a sustainable business operation, taking into account the three responsibilities: environmental, social, and governance. It is information for investors who want to invest in the concept. Sustainability Investment brings the ESG factor into the investment decision-making component together with the analysis of the financial data of the company to generate continuous returns in the long term. To calculate the overall ESG Score use applied The Stock Exchange of Thailand ESG score. The count of measures per category determines the weight of the respective category. Detailed counts and weights are Environmental 24%, Social 35%, and Governance 41% (SEC, 2023).

(2) Environmental performance

Disclosing information about the operations of the company regarding environmental management activities clearly and using resources efficiently, including the restoration of the natural environment affected by the business operations of the company, consisting of 11 indicators: water recycling and reuse, water use efficiency, water stress, reduction of waste generation, waste reused, re-manufactured and recycled, hazardous waste, greenhouse gas emissions: scope 1, greenhouse gas emissions: scope 2, ozone-depleting substances and chemicals, renewable energy, energy efficiency. measured the proportion of large companies trading on a given stock exchange that disclosed (United Nations, 2019).

(3) Social performance

Disclosure of company operations regarding social activities in the management of human resources fairly and equally, there is continuous promotion and development of staff and quality, consisting of 7 indicators: proportion of women in managerial positions, average hours of training per year per employee, expenditure on employee training per year per employee, employee wages and benefits as a proportion of revenue, by employment type and gender, expenditures on employee health and safety as a proportion of revenue, frequency/incident rates of occupational injuries, percentage of employees covered by collective agreements (United Nations, 2019). Measures the proportion of large companies traded on the stock exchange.

(4) Governance performance

Governance performance was assessed by the IOD, and corporate governance practices were defined as 'Poor', 'Good', and 'Excellent.' The presentation is according to the five CGR categories: rights of shareholders, equitable treatment of shareholders, role of stakeholders, disclosure and transparency, and board responsibilities. Shows the CG score results on IOD's website. IOD stands for Thai Institute of Directors (SEC, 2023).

(5) Institutional ownership

The percentage of shares held by the top five institutional investors with an ownership interest (%TOP5) (Al-Najjar & Kilincarslan, 2016; Altaf & Shah, 2018)

(6) Managerial efficiency

The measure of managerial efficiency (M_Score) used in this study was developed by Demerjian et al. (2012). This study uses data envelopment analysis (DEA), an operations managerial decision-making technique. DEA essentially fits an output measure (revenue) to inputs. The input variables used to yield maximum revenue are cost of goods sold (COGS), selling, general & administrative expenses (SG&A), property, plant and equipment (PPE), research and development cost (R&D), operating lease expenses, goodwill, and other intangibles. A firm with an efficiency score of 1 is considered to be the most efficient, while a firm with an efficiency score of 0 is considered to be inefficient (suboptimal).

There are firm and top manager-specific factors that contribute to the firm's efficacy. Factors unique to top managers are used to evaluate managerial skills. This research regresses six firm characteristics (firm size, firm market, free cash flow, firm age, business segment, and foreign currency indicator) on firm efficiency using a sector industry-effect and year-effect regression model.

(7) Firm performance

The accounting-based measure return on assets (ROA) and market-based measure Tobin's Q are used as dependent variables to assess firm performance (Kirchmaier & Grant, 2006; Cornett et al., 2007; Abedin et al., 2022).

Accounting-based measures use audited accounting data to get a good idea of how well a company is doing. ROA shows how well a company's management is able to get a return on its resources. Companies that use their assets well have a higher ROA. Accounting-based profit measurements are criticized for being backward-looking and only partially estimating future occurrences in the form of depreciation and amortization. On the other hand, tobin's q is heavily affected by a wide range of unstable factors, such as the psychology of investors and predictions about the market. If tobin's q is larger than 1, the firm's market value is overvalued relative to the asset's book value, but if it is less than 1, the market value of the firm is undervalued.

1.7 Contribution of the Study

This research contributes to resolve the conflicting arguments and address the gaps in previous findings regarding the relationship between ESG, institutional ownership, and firm performance. By incorporating managerial efficiency as a crucial factor, this study provides insights into achieving favorable performance outcomes. The results demonstrate that both ESG performance and institutional ownership positively impact firm performance, particularly when coupled with higher levels of managerial efficiency. Managerial efficiency plays a pivotal role by contributing knowledge, skills, and information that benefit and enhance firms' performance. Furthermore, the influence of managerial efficiency on improving the performance of ESG practices and institutional ownership is more pronounced in the case of highly efficient managers.

1.8 Research Framework

The research framework is a quantitative analysis of the relationships between the variables of the literature review. These variables included environmental, social and governance performance and institutional ownership (independent variables), managerial efficiency (moderator variable), and firm performance (dependent variables). Control variables, including firm size, firm leverage, firm growth, industry and times.

Figure 1.1 and 1.2 illustrates the conceptual framework of this research, which focuses on environmental, social and governance performance, institutional ownership, and managerial efficiency role: Two-way interaction effects on firm performance.



Figure 1.2 The research framework model 2

1.9 Organization of the Study

Chapter 2 reviews the environmental, social, governance performance, and institutional ownership literature giving special attention to examines the managerial efficiency literature with special attention to the impact of environmental, social and governance performance and institutional ownership on firm performance. Chapter 3 develops and introduces hypotheses to be tested, data sources, and statistical methods to be employed to test hypotheses. Chapter 4 reports the results of the study, and Chapter 5 provides the summarizes, discussion, concludes, limitation and suggestion for future research.



CHAPTER 2 REVIEW OF THE LITERATURE

This chapter presents a literature review relevant to the hypotheses developed in the study. In order to understand environment, social, governance performance, and institutional ownership context and related research questions of this study, the literature review.

2.1 Overview Concept of Environment, Social, and Governance Performance (ESG)

Given the devastating impact of recent system-wide crises, particularly the global financial crisis of 2007-2009 and the 2020 crisis of COVID-19, economic resilience has become a top priority. Both crises will leave permanent scars on our economy and society. The global financial crisis had a disproportionately negative impact on the impoverished and contributed to a significant decline in public confidence in global economic policies. The COVID-19 crisis had unprecedented effects in times of peace, with many nations suspending their entire economic resiliency has been and will be tested. Others, such as the effects of climate change, are well-documented and already have severe consequences. Lessons from COVID-19 and other crises demonstrate that resilient economies and societies are necessary, not just resilient financial sectors.

As nations begin to emerge from this catastrophe as a result of a mix of vaccine distribution, continuous containment, and financial support measures, governments are increasingly looking to create resilience to future crises as an integral part of post-pandemic recovery efforts. There is no such thing as an identical crisis; however, it is essential to learn from this and other crises in order to take the necessary policy actions to strengthen economic resilience. This includes preventing the buildup of potential vulnerabilities, preparing to absorb shocks when they occur, and building the capacity to recover quickly from such shocks. These include increasing efforts to address existing and emerging vulnerabilities, particularly in supply chains; climate change, including the catastrophic potential of tipping points; and a range of security threats, including those arising from digital transformation, which is both an emerging source of risk and offers

new solutions to increase adaptive capacity and innovation for resilience. One particular supply chain that is particularly vulnerable is the food and beverage supply chain. It is also important to note that governments are increasingly employing economic levers for the aim of enhancing their national security. Trust in governance structures, institutions, and the evidence itself is vital to public acceptance and compliance with necessary actions, and yet trust has been one of the casualties of recent crises. As countries attempt to solve these difficulties, trust in governance structures, institutions, and the evidence itself is critical. It is therefore important to address not only risks that are exogenous to the system and acute shocks to the system, but also risks that arise within the economy itself. These risks typically manifest themselves as a gradual buildup of distortions or imbalances that can be addressed through the implementation of sound regulatory frameworks and principles for open and transparent markets. (OECD, 2021).

The capital markets are sturdy and resilient economic engines, which have efficiently adapted to the needs of enterprises in order to support them. Businesses are able to provide employment opportunities, sell goods and services, and engage with investors in a variety of dynamic ways thanks to the existence of markets. However, markets are also susceptible to change, and there is an ongoing demand for novel concepts, improved tools, and more comprehensive data. Exchanges all over the world are members of the World Federation of Exchanges (WFE), which is the largest and most comprehensive trade association for exchanges in the world. It proposes new innovations and reforms, develops and promotes market standards, and facilitates international cooperation and coordination among regulators. It detects a shift in the market's demand for data, specifically regarding the investment community's hunt for environmental, social, and governance (ESG) performance indicators (World Stock Exchanges, 2017).

It has been demonstrated that the operational process of ESG can serve as a tool to reflect the risk management of an organization and also to prevent harm through sustainable management. The maximum amount that can be invested in the short term is no longer enough and has become out of date for the investing market of today. The expansion in assets that are managed by exchange-traded funds (ETFs) is a reflection of the remarkable acceleration in recent times of the trend toward sustainability, which can be seen in the graph. The value of ESG theory has increased from \$2 billion over the course of the previous five years to \$11 billion this year. According to Triwacharekorn (2018), this is the outcome of greater knowledge throughout society as well as strong governance. It is the goal of ESG to convey information on the environment, society, and ethical business practices to investors so that they will have a better understanding of the firm and will care more about it. It is also about enhancing the positive image that people have of the organization in order to consistently achieve good performance. One interpretation of the data is that it has the potential to improve long-term performance.

As a result, ESG is particularly significant if one want to forecast the course of long-term earnings that will result from investments made by a company. The term "sustainability" is used interchangeably throughout this text despite the fact that the term "ESG" is used more frequently among investors. This is because the term "sustainability" is used more frequently among firms. It is crucial to emphasize that this distinction exists. Although there are some subtle differences between the two terms, for the purposes of this guide, it is understood that both terms encompass the broad range of environmental, social, and governance considerations that can impact a company's ability to execute its business strategy and create value. This is despite the fact that there are some subtle differences between the two terms.

2.2 Theories that Guided the Research

The literature presents a number of different hypotheses, many of which appear to elaborate on the ESG, ownership and managerial efficiency methodology. As a result of this, the two primary ideas that underpin this work, namely the agency theory and the stakeholder theory, will now be examined in further detail below.

2.2.1 Agency Theory

Based on agency theory, Jensen & Meckling, (1976) stated that agency costs can arise when conflicts of interests between the management and the shareholders occur. Shareholders may require management to add value to shareholders. On the other hand, the management may want to operate in a different direction which may cause conflicts of the interests of shareholders. As a result, shareholders have to encounter agency costs. For agency costs, institutional shareholders act as a good corporate governance mechanism since they can monitor the management more closely and more systematically since they hold a large number of shares. Institutional investors can also increase firm value for shareholders (Navissi & Naiker, 2006). In addition, institutional investors consist of fund managers and professional analysts with knowledge and expertise of finance, investment and macroeconomics that can drive strategies. This leads to advantages and increases company value (Nurleni et al., 2018).

2.2.2 Stakeholder Theory

According to the stakeholder theory, the management should not only focus on internal stakeholders, but also external stakeholders. Previous studies on the relationship between environmental, social, and corporate governance and firm performance provide various theories that can explain this relationship. Furthermore, the management must support social responsibility by broadening the perspective of stakeholders that includes employees, customers, suppliers, local communities, and governments since the success of corporate missions based on policies and decision-making might affect this group of people. The research suggests that corporate responsibility to all stakeholders improves long-term performance and reflects corporate ethical values when making investment decisions (Aboud & Diab, 2018; Melinda & Wardhani, 2020; Bodhanwala & Bodhanwala, 2023).

According to stakeholder theory, executives, particularly CEOs, with transformational leadership, are considered to possess a leadership style that is closely associated with social responsibility within the company. The success of a company largely depends on the passion and commitment of its executives towards ESG, as it is a key indicator of performance. To establish a positive relationship with stakeholders, it is imperative for executives to have clear goals and effective communication (Viererbl & Koch, 2022). In the end, it will lead to the determination of sales and profits. In other words, if the product is not environmentally friendly, customers will not buy the product. Thus, ESG is not the only social issue, but it has a positive effect on the company (Melinda & Wardhani, 2020; Maji & Lohia, 2023). Corporate governance is an additional approach that can enhance transparency and accountability of the companies listed on Thai Stock Exchange. According to the SEC (2023), shareholders have a legitimate right to receive a return on their investment as they take on investment risks. This is considered as a way to promote social responsibility within the representative theory framework. The

stakeholder theory has expanded the scope of corporate social responsibility to include a diverse range of individuals who should be given attention and accountability. By allowing stakeholders to participate in decision-making and business management, trust, mutual respect, and a shared responsibility model can be established (Fama & Jensen, 1983).

Stakeholder theory and agency theory are relevant to the concept of corporate social responsibility and are connected to factors, such as corporate governance, stakeholder engagement, and transformational leadership. Additionally, the relationship between transformational leadership and stakeholder engagement is found to have a significant positive impact. (Velte, 2020; Napoletano & Curry, 2022; Viererbl & Koch, 2022; Dkhili, 2023; Maji & Lohia, 2023; Wang et al., 2023). In addition, stakeholder theory and agency theory indicate that companies with efficient ESG operations will use assets and expenses that help create value for the company and result in revenue growth, affecting financial strength within the company, as well as higher business value. The relationship between ESG and performance implies that investing in ESG may develop new internal resources and create external benefits through the reputation of the company (Albitar et al., 2020; Bhandari & Salo, 2022; Yoo & Managi, 2022; Gurol & Lagasio, 2023).

Agency-stakeholder theories provide the foundation for understanding the relationship between environmental, social, and governance ratings and the performance and value of companies. Friedman (1970) is the proponent of the theory that, if a company engages in social activities, it will incur costs that will lower the amount of profits that can be distributed to shareholders. This theory states that it is the social obligation of a company to maximize financial returns, and it predicts that when a company pursues non-financial purposes, it becomes more difficult for the company to maximize the wealth of its owners. This theory aims to broaden existing neo-classical methodologies by including the negative impact (i.e. the costs of investing in non-financial goals such as ESG practices) inside traditional pricing systems (Flores and Sarandon, 2004). It does this by applying a cost-to-benefit lens, which measures the costs of an action relative to its benefits. Nevertheless, we contend that managers need to be aware of the unique input required to generate the intended output, particularly while

working within an emerging economy. This is especially important when the targeted outcome is favorable financial returns. This study intends to address this theoretical gap by analyzing the influence of investing in ESG practices (as the input) on corporate financial performance (as the output). Given the limited knowledge of the non-financial goals that contribute to favorable financial performance, this study aims to solve this theoretical gap.

In a similar line, the behavioral economic theory assumes that human beings employ heuristics while making decisions for themselves and their societies, as stated by Beerbaum and Puaschunder (2019). Even though these mental shortcuts allow people to cope with a complicated world and the surroundings of that environment, these heuristics leave individuals vulnerable to biases and, in the end, cause failures in their ability to make logical decisions. As a result, the theory casts doubt on the idea that individuals are capable of making rational choices. Behavioral economics contend that people are more likely to be guided in their decision-making by their impulsivity, their environment, and their emotions rather than by scientific evidence and that they are more prone to prioritize short-term benefits over long-term rewards (Witynski, 2022). Environmental, social, and governance (ESG) refers to the criteria that investors, companies, and other stakeholders use to evaluate a company's performance and its impact on various factors other than money.

The rational choice theory and the stakeholder-agency theory both explain why environmental, social, and governance (ESG) issues have a favorable effect on financial performance. To begin, the rational choice theory (RCT) is an additional classical economic theory. This theory is based on the assumption that human beings make decisions after considering a variety of aspects, and after doing so, they choose the option that would result in the greatest amount of profit for them. The randomized controlled trial operates under the presumption that individuals rationally make an investment decision by analyzing the associated costs and benefits and searching for the alternative that provides the greatest return. Since the interests of persons are an increase in return, it is in the greatest interest of individuals if the evaluated ESG expenses are lower than the ESG returns (Marinescu, 2016; Bowen, 2018; Robinhood, 2022). ESG investing is similar to the practice of using a logical process in the process of picking investment choices after balancing the costs and benefits of those choices and include consideration of future risks in order to create return.

This theory, on the other hand, is predicated almost entirely on the actions of individuals and does not take into account nuances such as cultural or social circumstances in which socially responsible behaviors are carried out for reasons that are not directly related to the pursuit of self-interest. Therefore, in order to account for this limitation, we apply the stakeholder theory. This theory is based on the premise that businesses should take into account the interests of their stakeholders when making business decisions. According to Wijnberg (2000), a firm's value is created through the interdependence between the firm and its stakeholder groups. These stakeholder groups include financiers, customers, suppliers, communities, employees, and the government. Stakeholders now have a greater interest in the company's actions related to sustainability because these activities boost the company's chances of long-term survival and profitability. According to Jensen and Meckling (1976), the agency theory is a relationship between a principal and an agent to make some investment decisions that maximize revenue and minimize costs.

ESG ratings are a useful instrument that firms can use to fulfill stakeholder interests, resulting in improved sustainable practice ratings and reputation, which leads to increased financial performance (Velte, 2017). The agency theory provides an explanation for the process of maximizing shareholder wealth by utilizing measurements like as return on equity (ROE) and return on assets (ROA). Because shareholders view higher ESG ratings as an indication of risk management, which points to better performance of a company's shares in the future, it demonstrates that management is fulfilling their fiduciary duty of increasing the wealth of the shareholders (Rahi et al., 2022). This shows that management is fulfilling their fiduciary duty of increasing the wealth of the shareholders by carefully selecting investments that are environmentally friendly. The theories of rational choice and stakeholder-agency, in addition to the empirical evidence from earlier studies.

2.3 The Costs and Benefits of Implementing ESG Principles

The costs and benefits of implementing ESG principles can be measured in several ways:

2.3.1 Costs of Using ESG

(1) Investing in technology, processes, and employee training to improve sustainability, reduce environmental impact, and promote social cohesion. These initial expenses can be seen as costs by some companies, tiny companies with limited capital.

(2) Compliance costs: Companies must comply with new laws or standards for environmental protection, operations, and management, which may result in additional expenses.

(3) Transparency and Reporting Costs: Monitoring, measuring, and reporting ESG metrics requires additional support and effort from company management and employees.

(4) Transition costs: Some companies will face transition costs, especially when they have to change their business model, supply chain, or energy.

(5) Risk mitigation costs: Engaging in ESG practices often involves identifying and addressing environmental, social, and governance issues that may incur additional costs.

2.3.2 Benefits of Using ESG

(1) Improved reputation and business value: Companies that use ESG principles are often recognized by customers, investors, and other stakeholders. This reputation can build trust and commercial competitiveness.

(2) Access to capital: Many investors, including institutional investors, are increasingly incorporating ESG performance into their investment decisions. Companies with good ESG practices will have better access to capital and the ability to lower borrowing costs.

(3) Risk reduction: Integrating ESG factors can help companies identify and mitigate risks associated with environmental damage, supply chain disruptions, regulatory changes, and conflict.

(4) Innovation and performance: Following ESG initiatives can spur innovation, encourage companies to find better business opportunities, reduce costs and generate more savings.

(5) Employee engagement and retention: Companies that adhere to ESG values often attract and retain employees who share these values, which leads to employee engagement and productivity.

(6) Long-term financial performance: Research shows that companies with good ESG performance tend to outperform their peers in the long run, in part for the reasons outlined above.

As a result, while implementing ESG practices may involve initial costs and efforts, the long-term benefits can help improve financial performance, risk management, reputation, and social partners, making it useful for many businesses in today's world. Additionally, the increased focus on sustainability and responsible business practices means that ESG considerations will become more critical to companies in the future.

2.4 The Concepts of Variables

2.4.1 Environmental, Social and Governance Performance (ESG)

In 2015, following the adoption of the 2030 Agenda for Sustainable Development by the member states of the United Nations, which included 17 Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs), it was determined that the objectives and targets would be monitored and reviewed using a set of global indicators centered on measurable outcomes. As a direct consequence, the Inter-Agency and Expert Group on Sustainable Development Goal Indicators (IAEG-SDGs) was established with the mandate to develop a global indicator framework for the purpose of monitoring the 2030 Agenda's implementation. The member states are presently developing individual nation-specific metrics in line with the 2030 Agenda, taking into account the particulars of their own countries. The complete construction of the indicator framework is a time-consuming process that has the potential to be refined as the level of knowledge and the availability of data increase. These new developments will undoubtedly affect the accounting and reporting objectives that have been established. In its objective, the Sustainable Development Goal (SDG) for sustainable consumption and production expressly encourages companies, especially large and multinational corporations, to adopt sustainable practices and integrate sustainability data into their reporting cycles. One of the required pieces of information for this indicator is the number of enterprises that publish sustainability reports.

(1) Principles underlying fundamental SDG indicator selection and reporting

The Guidelines are predicated on the following methodological considerations.

Simplicity: The data and understanding of entities for various public and private sector consumers.

The baseline method: All businesses use the same core indicators, which focus on rational resource use (water, energy, air, and waste reduction), social issues like human capital development and gender equality, and governance and transparency, which are essential to the operational business cycle. Entities' practices and sustainability reporting journeys are considered in the Guidance. It selects common sustainability indicators based on entities' current reporting practices and leading reporting frameworks (IFRS, IIRC, SASB, GRI, and others) and provides a measurement methodology and accounting sources for data collection. Individual businesses in varied operational circumstances must use these baseline indicators and provide extra and other capital sources.

Focus on quantitative measures: The Guidance emphasizes quantitative metrics above narrative disclosures, even when qualitative indications are important.

(2) Reporting principles

The Guidance states that SDG indicator reporting frameworks must be aligned with institutional models and allow consistent sustainability information integration into firm reporting cycles. The international measurement technique, data comparability, clarity of reporting boundaries, and incremental approach are included.

Materiality vs. universality: Parties agreed that some economic, environmental, and social actions were important to them, which is a key part of the materiality vs. universality principle. So, the choice of key SDG indicators is based on the idea that the goals are already part of how companies measure what's important to them. This helps guide sustainability in the majority of industries. Also, there needs to be more transparency in the materiality assessment process that goes along with the reporting of data on financial materiality, which looks at the business's growth, performance, and
position and is mostly for investors, and environmental and social materiality, which looks at the effects of the business's operations and is mostly for consumers, civil society, employees, and an increasing number of investors.

Clarity of reporting boundaries: Standards for reporting stress how important it is to explain how the reporting entity's limits were set up and what other assumptions and methods were used to support sustainability reporting. In some places, international rules have a big impact on the process of combining data from the company level to the corporate level. This has an effect on the link between corporate reporting and tracking the Sustainable Development Goals at the country level.

Incremental approach: When choosing core indicators, the incremental method takes firms into account. Too much stress on companies could hurt the goal of getting the private sector involved in the 2030 Agenda. A step-by-step plan that a company can control and for which it already gets data, or a situation in which a company has access to the right sources of information.

Measurement methodology consistency and data comparability: Indicators must be the same across entities, time, and place. This means that documentation on scope, data quality, methods used, and constraints must be clear and easy to check.

Reporting period: The reporting time is always the same length (usually one year) and begins and ends on the same dates. The information that is sent in should be full and accurate for the time period that the reporting entity says it is for.

2.4.2 Entities' Primary SDG Indicators

2.4.2.1 Environmental performance

The following core indicators have been chosen in the environmental area: (1) water recycling and reuse. (2) water use efficiency (3) water stress (4) reduction of waste generation. (5) waste reused, re-manufactured and recycled. (6) hazardous waste. (7) greenhouse gas emissions (scope 1). (8) greenhouse gas emissions (scope 2) (9) ozone-depleting substances and chemicals (10) renewable energy and (11) energy efficiency.

Sustainable use of water

(1) Water recycling and reuse

Definition: Water recycling and reuse is the amount of water that a reporting entity recycled or reused during the reporting time.

Measurement methodology: It is recommended that the entity report the total volume of water recycled and reused (in cubic meters) in addition to the total volume of water recycled and reused as a percentage of the total water removal plus the total water received from a third party (where total water withdrawal is the sum of all water drawn into the boundaries of the company from all sources for any use during the reporting period). Water can be taken from clean surface water, groundwater, seawater or brackish water, or water that has been made or processed. So, the indicator is written both in cubic meters (m3) and as a number (%).

(2) Water use efficiency

Definition: Water use efficiency is both the amount of water used per net value added during the period of reporting and the change in water use per net value added between two reporting periods. This sign shows how much water was taken from the water supply and how much water was taken from other sources.

Measurement methodology: The indicator is reported in cubic meters (m3) (unnormalized, absolute terms) and as a percentage of the period's net value added. Each facility/business site should meter water and calculate the indication using water or flow meters, with appropriate documentation and reporting. This indicator allows data aggregation within geographical and operational boundaries. To track and communicate progress in reducing water consumption, this indicator should be reported as a change from the previous reporting period (i.e., water consumption at time t- (minus) water consumption at time t-1).

(3) Water stress

Definition: Total water extracted, broken down into sources (surface, ground, precipitation, and waste water), and a reference to water-stressed or water-scarce areas (represented as a percentage of total withdrawals) is the definition of water stress. Water scarcity is another term for water stress.

Measurement methodology:

The total volume of water extracted is calculated as the sum of all the water that was drawn within the borders of the organization during the reporting period, regardless of the source of the water or the reason for doing so. It is possible to obtain water from a variety of sources, including fresh surface water, groundwater, ocean or brackish water, and produced or process water. A breakdown of the following sources should be included: surface water, ground water, rainwater collected directly by the organization and kept by the organization, and waste water from another organization.

This indicator is presented in cubic meters (total m³ of water pulled from various sources) and as a percentage (%) because it is required to transmit the amount of water withdrawn from water-stressed or water-scarce areas as a proportion of the total amount of water withdrawn. This indicator is expressed in cubic meters (total m3 of water withdrawn from various sources). It is vital to take into consideration the organization's operations and the context of its water resources in order to contextualize how an organization handles water consumption and stress. It is therefore recommended that the reporting entity disclose its water use policy and, in particular, its water use objectives and targets, as well as any additional qualitative information regarding the entity's water use and the public wastewater system, particularly in the context of water scarcity. In addition, it is recommended that the reporting entity disclose any additional quantitative information regarding the entity's water use and the public wastewater system.

Waste management

(4) Reduction of waste generation.

Definition: The change in the entity's waste generation as a percentage of its net value added is measured by this metric. A non-product output that has a value that is less than zero on the market is known as waste. Emissions of pollutants into the water and the air are not regarded to be waste, despite the fact that they are byproducts.

Measurement methodology: The entire amount of all mineral, nonmineral, and/or hazardous waste processed by any waste disposal method is the definition of total waste generated during the reporting period. This is the definition of total waste generated. A measurement or weight should be taken of the waste. Since waste might take the form of a solid, liquid, or paste, it can be quantified not only in kilograms and tons but also in volumes and cubic meters. However, for the purposes of this indicator, trash should be reported in terms of its weight (in kilograms or tons) and not its volume (in litters or cubic meters).

(5) Waste reused, re-manufactured, and recycled.

Definition: (1) The act of reusing a component, element, or product after it has been removed from a clearly defined service cycle (2) Reusing, remanufacturing, and recycling are some of the various alternatives for treating trash. The act of reusing something does not include any kind of manufacturing process; nonetheless, it may be subject to cleaning, repair, or refurbishment in between uses.

Measurement methodology: It is important that the amount of trash that is treated and then either reused, remanufactured, or recycled be recorded and measured in kilos or tons during the time period in which it is treated. If it is at all possible to do so, it would be best to discriminate between the three possibilities, paying particular attention to the differences between recycling, reuse, and remanufacturing. It is important that waste that has been recycled, reused, and remanufactured be provided in absolute numbers (in kilos or tons), and that these quantities be standardized. The amount of waste that is reduced, reused, remanufactured, and recycled is calculated, and the resulting number should be divided by the total amount of garbage that is generated.

(6) Hazardous waste.

Definition: This indicator provides a description of the overall quantity of hazardous waste that has been dealt with in absolute terms, as well as the percentage of hazardous trash that has been treated in comparison to the total amount of waste reported by the business.

Measurement methodology: The total amount of hazardous waste that has been accumulated over the course of a reporting period is defined as the sum of all of the forms of hazardous waste that were specified in the definition that came before it. This quantity is required to be quantified in kilograms and tons. Both the absolute volumes of hazardous waste (measured in kilos or tons) and the normalized amounts of those volumes must be presented. The generation of hazardous waste should be divided by the same reporting period's net value added. This will help standardize the data on the generation of hazardous waste and ensure that it is consistent with how the indicator "Reducing waste generation" is computed. Calculating the difference between year t and year t-1 is another step that needs to be taken before it is feasible to monitor the development of the organization over the course of time.

(7) Greenhouse gas emissions (scope 1)

Definition: Greenhouse gas emissions (scope 1) are defined as the amount of direct greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions produced in relation to the amount of net value added. Within the organizational boundaries of an entity are considered to fall under Scope 1's purview any direct greenhouse gas emissions that are produced. These are emissions that come from sources that are owned or controlled by the organization.

Measurement methodology: Utilizing an Excel file, also known as a tool, which can be acquired from www.ghbprotocol.org is the most widely used and straightforward way for computing greenhouse gas emissions (scope 1). The method of calculation relies on the use of emission factors that are specific to the various kinds of fuel or materials being considered. In point of fact, it is possible to find some conversion coefficients, also known as the so-called global warming potentials (GWPs), in the Excel sheets in order to convert different gases into carbon dioxide (CO) emissions. GWPs stands for global warming potential. GWPs were developed so that a comparison can be made between the impacts of various gases on the warming of the planet. It is a measurement that compares the amount of energy that is absorbed by the emissions of one ton of a gas over a certain amount of time to the amount of energy that is absorbed by one ton of CO emissions. GWPs values translate GHG emissions data for non-CO, gases into units of CO, equivalent. As a consequence of this, they serve as a standardized unit of measurement, which makes it possible to incorporate emission estimates for a variety of gases. Entities are able to choose which greenhouse gas projections (GWPs) to use by adopting a certain protocol offered by the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change.

The instrument will carry out the calculation on its own automatically. For instance, reporting companies are required to enter the quantity of fuels consumed during the reporting period using the proper unit measures (for example, natural gas must be entered in cubic meters; lubricants must be entered in volumes), and the tool will then convert these quantities into GHG emissions.

(8) Greenhouse gas emissions (scope 2)

Definition: This metric determines the amount of indirect greenhouse gas emissions produced per unit of net value added. Indirect greenhouse gas emissions can

result from the consumption of purchased energy, heat, or steam. The development of secondary energy forms for the entity's own use, such as electricity, is an example of an activity that falls within Scope 2 and results in emissions. Because these emissions are the outcome of operations carried out by the entity that is reporting them, but they take place at resources owned or managed by another organization (for example, an electricity generator or utility), they are categorized as "indirect" emissions. It's possible that the indirect greenhouse gas emissions (scope 2) that an organization generates as a result of the generation of power they buy will be much larger than their organization's direct emissions (scope 1). The generation of electricity and heat is responsible for one-third of the world's total greenhouse gas emissions. Scope 2 emissions are also considered to be one of the primary sources of global greenhouse gas emissions.

Measurement methodology: In order to evaluate the entire GHG emissions impact of energy use and to calculate scope 2 emissions, the standard of the company proposes multiplying activity data (MWh of electricity consumption) by emission factors. There are two different ways that could be done:

Market-based method: a way to quantify a reporter's scope 2 GHG emissions based on the GHG emissions generated by the generators from whom the reporter contractually obtains electricity in conjunction with contractual instruments or contractual instruments by themselves. This method is also known as the market-based approach. The GHG emission rate that is reflected in the contractual instruments that satisfy the quality standards for scope 2 is used to calculate the emission factors in this instance. The method that is based on the market is based on emission characteristics that are unique to each supplier.

Method dependent on location: A method for determining the quantity of scope 2 greenhouse gas emissions by calculating the average emission factors for energy-generating sources within predetermined geographic locations. These locations can be local, subnational, or national in scope. According to this methodology, emission factors indicate the average emissions that result from the production of energy that takes place within a particular geographical area and time frame. This area and time frame are both predetermined. The data on statistical emissions and the amount of power produced within a certain region are compiled and averaged using this methodology.

(9) Ozone-depleting substances and chemicals

Definition: This indicator makes an effort to quantify an entity's reliance on ozone-depleting substances (ODS) and chemicals as a percentage of its net added value. ODS stands for "ozone-depleting substance." All ODS are considered to be bulk chemicals or compounds, which can either exist as individual substances or as mixes. In most cases, these are chemicals that include chlorine and/or bromine in their makeup. Compounds and chemicals that contribute the most to the depletion of the ozone layer.

Measurement methodology: The ozone depletion potential value of a material reveals how much of an impact that substance has on the destruction of the ozone layer in comparison to a typical substance. Because trichlorofluoromethane (CFC-11), the standard reference substance, has an ozone depletion potential of 1, values for ozone depletion potential are represented in kilograms of CFC-11 equivalents per kilogram of the respective substance. The standard reference substance is trichlorofluoromethane.

Energy consumption

(10) Renewable energy

Definition: The ratio of an entity's use of renewable energy to its total consumption of energy during the reporting period is the value represented by this indicator. There are many different types of renewable energy sources, such as solar energy, biomass energy, hydropower energy, geothermal energy, and ocean energy.

Measurement methodology: Only the amount of renewable energy that was put to use should be factored into the numerator when doing the calculation. Therefore, renewable fuel sources (such as biofuels), solar energy, biomass, hydropower, geothermal energy, and ocean energy, in addition to heat and electricity derived from renewable sources, can be included in the numerator. The following formula can be used to calculate the total energy usage of an organization: consumption of nonrenewable fuel plus the consumption of renewable fuel plus the consumption of purchased electricity, heating, cooling, and steam plus the generation of one's own electricity, heating, cooling, and steam that is not used equals the consumption of electricity, heating, cooling, and the sale of vapor.

(11) Energy efficiency.

Definition: A company's energy efficiency can be determined by taking its total energy usage and dividing that number by its total net value contributed.

Measurement methodology: To determine the numerator, the entity in question needs to consider its overall use of energy, which can be computed in the following manner: There is a market for the sale of electricity, heating, ventilation, and steam. The amount of fuel used is measured in joules or multiples of that unit. The number of joules, watt-hours, or multiples that are consumed might be considered the consumption of steam, heating, and ventilation systems. As a result, conversion factors are required whenever any quantity is expressed in terms of joules.

2.4.2.2 Social performance

The following core indicators have been chosen in the social area: (1) proportion of women in managerial positions (2) average hours of training per year per employee (3) expenditure on employee training per year per employee (4) employee wages and benefits as a proportion of revenue, by employment type and gender (5) expenditures on employee health and safety as a proportion of revenue (6) frequency/incident rates of occupational injuries and (7) percentage of employees covered by collective agreements.

Gender equality

(1) Proportion of women in managerial positions

Definition: The formula for determining this statistic is to take the total number of workers within a given reporting period and divide that number by the number of women who hold managerial positions.

Measurement methodology: It is recommended that the total number of staff members be used in the computation of this indicator as of the last day of the reporting period. Headcount or full-time equivalent employees (FTE) are both acceptable ways of referring to the number of staff members. In situations where a company has a sizeable contingent of workers who are only employed part-time, the second choice is strongly advised. In any event, the method that is selected must be implemented in a manner that is consistent across different time periods.

Human capital

(2) Average hours of training per year per employee

Definition: This indicator represents the volume of an organization's investment in employee training (that is, in human capital), as well as the extent to which this investment is made throughout the whole workforce, measured in terms of the number of training hours.

Measurement methodology: The first thing that needs to be done in order to calculate the number of hours is to determine all of the training programs that were carried out by an organization during the reporting period. This is done in order to accrue the hours that are linked with each of these training programs. Internal training courses, external training or education supported by the entity, sabbatical periods with a confirmed return to employment supported by the entity (e.g., paid learning leave provided by the reporting entity to its employees), and training on specific topics such as health and safety are examples of the types of opportunities that may fall under this category. Either the number of people or full-time equivalents should be used to express the denominator, and the same approach should be taken both within and across time periods. The data ought to be segmented according to employment category and, presumably, gender. The total number of hours spent teaching employees is subtracted from the total number of employees to arrive at the average number of hours spent training per employee.

(3) Expenditure on employee training per year per employee

Definition: This statistic represents the scope of an organization's investment in employee training (human capital), as well as the degree to which that investment is made across the board in all of the organization's workforce.

Measurement methodology:

When assessing the costs connected with training programs, it is recommended that both the direct and indirect costs of training be factored in. Some examples of direct training expenses include course fees, trainers' fees, training facilities, training equipment, and associated travel costs. Indirect training costs include costs that are not directly related to the delivery of training. Either headcount or FTE must be used to indicate the denominator, and the same technique must be used throughout the period as well as between periods. The same method must also be used. A breakdown of the data according to the various employment classifications should be supplied. The overall quantity of training is equivalent to the average amount of money spent on training for each employee.

(4) Employee wages and benefits as a proportion of revenue, by employment type and gender

Definition: This indicator should display the total costs incurred by the entity's workforce for the reporting period, broken down by employee type and gender, as a % of the entity's total revenue.

Measurement methodology: This indicator is calculated using total payroll, which includes employee wages and amounts paid to government institutions on behalf of employees, as well as total benefits (excluding training, costs of protective equipment, or other cost items that are directly relevant to the employee's job function). Contributions, pensions, employment taxes, levies, and employment funds are all examples of the types of payments that might be made to the government in this context. Following that step, the entire income for that particular reporting period will be divided by the total amount of employee pay and benefits. The total amount of employee compensation and benefits is already recorded when an organization prepares a value-added income statement (together with the other elements that are included in the economic value distribution).

Employee health and safety

(5) Expenditures on employee health and safety as a proportion of

revenue

Definition: This indicator determines how much of an organization's overall revenue goes toward paying for the costs of ensuring the health and safety of its workforce and expresses those costs as a percentage. Occupational incidents not only lower productivity and divert management attention, but they also limit the development of human capital and may be an indication of poor management quality and practice. This pertains to a fundamental part of corporate responsibility, as occupational incidents impede human capital development and diminish production simultaneously.

Measurement methodology: This indicator is expressed as a proportion and is determined by adding up the expenditures for safety and related to health insurance policies, for healthcare activities supported directly by the entity, and for all expenses sustained for working environment problems related to occupational safety and health that were incurred during a reporting period; and then dividing this amount by the total revenue that was incurred during this reporting period. The result of this calculation is expressed as a percentage and can be used to measure the effectiveness of an organization's efforts to promote worker safety and health.

(6) Frequency/incident rates of occupational injuries

Definition: This indicator relates to the total number of workdays that were missed during the reporting period as a result of accidents, injuries, and illnesses that occurred on the job. It is an indication of how effective an organization's employee health and safety policy is, as well as the organization's ability to establish a workplace that is healthy, safe, and productive.

Measurement methodology: When computing this indicator, days of absence should have regarded as the amount of time an employee was absent from work as a result of an occupational illness, injury, or accident. In other words, these are days that could not be performed and were thus lost as a result of personnel being unable to perform their customary job duties as a result of an accident, illness, or injury that occurred on the job. This may have occurred as a result of a hazardous working environment.

Coverage by collective agreements

(7) Percentage of employees covered by collective agreements

Definition: The proportion of employees at the reporting entity who are covered by collective bargaining agreements as a percentage of the total number of employees at the company.

Measurement methodology: The phrase "collective bargaining" refers to all discussions that take place between one or more employers or employers' organizations and one or more workers' organizations (trade unions) to decide working conditions and terms of employment or to regulate relations between employers and workers. These negotiations can take place to define working conditions and terms of employment or to regulate relations between employers and workers. There is more than one level of negotiation that can take place. Collective agreements can be made on a sectoral, national, or regional level, as well as on an organizational, workplace, or even a workplace-specific level. For the purposes of calculating this indicator, the total number of staff members as of the end of the reporting period should be used. The number of employees can be expressed either using headcount or using the full-time equivalent (FTE) approach, with the technique that is chosen to be used consistently throughout all time periods.

2.4.2.3 Governance performance

One of the most important components for bolstering economic growth and productivity, as well as the trust of investors, is good corporate governance (CG). It is crucial for the successful operation of a market economy to have a functioning CG mechanism, which can promote investor trust and is necessary for the economy to function well. The quality of CG is becoming an increasingly important factor for consideration at publicly traded companies in Thailand. These companies make an effort to implement CG as a type of internal control so that they can monitor the performance of both their management and their board of directors. In a similar vein, in order to reap the benefits of increased investment, these businesses work hard to raise their corporate governance scores (CGSs).

The CG Score reflects the effectiveness of governance. Since 2001, the Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD), in conjunction with the Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET), has conducted an evaluation of the corporate governance procedures of companies that are listed on the SET. The overall findings of the survey were compiled and included in the "Corporate Governance Report of Thai Listed Companies (CGR)" reports, which were then distributed to all listed businesses and parties associated with the capital market. The progress of the paradigm of good corporate governance in Thailand has been considerably aided by the contributions made by the CGR studies.

The evaluation criteria were formulated with the help of the Organization for Economic Cooperation and Development (OECD) Principles of Corporate Governance and Thailand's Corporate Governance Code for Listed Companies. The next five categories have a total of 241 criteria between them. obligations of the board of directors, the rights of shareholders, the equal treatment of shareholders, the role of stakeholders, disclosure and transparency, and the system of corporate governance that is required of registered firms in Thailand has been designed by the Stock Exchange of Thailand in accordance with international standards. The first step was taken in 1995, well before the onset of the financial crisis, when research was conducted into the function of the audit committee for publicly traded firms. After that, in the beginning of 1998, it came out with a listing regulation that stated, effective 1999, every company that was listed was required to have an audit committee. The SET also published a guideline that year titled "Code of Best Practices for Directors of Listed Companies." The rules served to encourage Thai listed businesses to engage in responsible corporate governance, which, in turn, contributed to the growth of the Thai capital market in terms of both recognition and transparency. The year 2002 in Thailand was designated as the "Compass for Good Corporate Governance" by the Thai government, which also initiated the formation of the National Corporate Governance Committee (NCGC).

During the same year, the stock exchange established fifteen principles of good corporate governance to be adopted by listed companies. These standards should be followed by all publicly traded companies. Companies that are publicly traded are required to indicate, in both their annual registration statement (Form 56-1) and their annual reports, how they follow the fifteen principles, beginning with the fiscal year that ends on December 31, 2002. If they choose not to apply a principle, they are required to provide an explanation for their decision. (According to the Thailand Stock Exchange, 2018) The Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET), the office of the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), and the Thai Institute of Directors (IOD) are the three organizations that push to have instruments to research or analyze the corporate governance of registered firms in the stock market. The evaluation of corporate governance is conducted as part of the stock market evaluation process. The SEC offers awards to registered companies in an effort to incentivize them to provide data. SET gives prizes to businesses that are proactive and compliant with regulations. The acronym for both of these is IOD and the SET award. In order to control and report, a tool is developed. It is referred to as a corporate governance report (CGR) by rating 1-5, however, it will only be disclosed by companies that have a rank of number three or higher. This is due to the fact that major corporations are more likely to take action than minor ones. Therefore, it is unfair for smaller businesses to have lower scores. On the other hand, the CGR is the most reliable source of study and evaluation that we have at the moment (The Stock Exchange of Thailand, 2018). In accordance with the international standard, IOD serves as a controlling principle that includes the following five categories: 1) the privilege of stockholders 2) providing for the fair treatment of shareholders 3) the role of stakeholders 4) the practice of openness and candor 5) the duties that are expected of the board. These crucifixions are the rules by which we rate. These executions are able to be amended on an annual basis due to changes in corporate governance. An annual report, an annual registration statement (form 56-1), an annual general letter, a shareholder's report, corporate data obtained through SET and SEC, and any other data that has been released public ally via the firm website are all utilized in the evaluation process.

In addition, SET is concerned about the significance of environmentally friendly growth. Additionally, it is concerned with stakeholders, and as a result, it concentrates on maintaining stability in the capital market so that businesses can expand economically while maintaining a healthy balance of social responsibility. In the same way that it supports the development of registered firms to be concerned about the effects of environmental, social, and governance issues, SET also urges investors to be concerned about long-term investing with responsible investment. It places an emphasis on the strategy, as well as the public disclosure of ESG data. In light of the fact that ESG is intended to serve a purpose for registered businesses, it is used for the development of the procedure known as benchmarking. It leads to investment in a sensible manner. The stock market has for the first time in 2015 announced that Thailand is financially sustainable. (The Stock Exchange of Thailand, 2018)

2.4.3 Institutional Ownership

Most corporate governance studies focus on internal governance mechanisms and board characteristics, such as board independence, board size, audit committee independence, audit committee size, CEO duality, and board diversity. These are considered indicators of a good corporate governance mechanism that affects the corporate added value (Butt et al., 2022; Farooq et al., 2022; Alajmi & Worthington, 2023). However, investment analysts or equity analysts are an integral part of the external governance mechanism that affects the investment decisions of individual investors (Navissi & Naiker, 2006). With a role in investment analysis and the role of shareholders, institutional investors reflect good corporate governance mechanisms since their analysis focuses on investment with the goal of generating long-term returns. With an investment committee with expertise and administrative mechanisms, they are able to manage risks to generate higher returns for the efficiency of the investments. Furthermore, with a shareholder who can audit the management, agent costs caused by major and minor shareholders and the management can be decreased (Jensen & Meckling, 1976). It has been widely accepted that institutional investors have an influence on managerial performance. A company with a high proportion of shares held by institutional investors indicates a higher performance since this can lead to a good corporate governance mechanism and the most efficient use of resources (Nurleni et al., 2018). Institutional shareholders are considered as a key investor group in the capital market due to the fact that their large proportion of investment helps promote the improvement of corporate governance in the capital market (SEC, 2022).

The above evidence suggests that the shares held by institutional investors reflect a good corporate governance mechanism since this type of investor is able to monitor the management to efficiently perform their duties which would add value to the company. In this regard, managerial efficiency is the use of skills, knowledge, and abilities reflected through operational strategies to achieve business success. Demerjian et al., (2012) defined managerial efficiency as a change in the corporate resources and high managerial efficiency was correlated with higher firm performance. According to Chen & Lin (2018), companies with high managerial efficiency generate higher returns on purchases and hold their investments over the long term. Furthermore, Khurana et al. (2018) found that high managerial efficiency had an influence on effective investment in capital markets.

Thailand, as a developing country with huge stock market growth, was found to have a leap in investor growth in 2021 (SEC, 2022). Despite the growth situation of listed companies in the Thai Stock Exchange, financial institution shareholders still need to study whether corporate governance can lead to performance and confidence among stakeholders. Academic evidence on institutional investor relations and performance reveals that institutional investors with positive engagement and managerial perspectives can enhance allocating effective resources and benefit the company in building a good image. Retail investors can be confident that their investments will be protected and maximize their investment returns. It is expected that the results of this study can provide empirical evidence that enriches the literature on institutional shareholding structures on firm performance and managerial efficiency, which expands the scope of how institutional shareholder relationships impact firm performance.

Based on agency theory, Jensen & Meckling, (1976) stated that agency costs can arise when conflicts of interests between the management and the shareholders occur. Shareholders may require management to add value to shareholders. On the other hand, the management may want to operate in a different direction which may cause conflicts of the interests of shareholders. As a result, shareholders have to encounter agency costs. For agency costs, institutional shareholders act as a good corporate governance mechanism since they can monitor the management more closely and more systematically since they hold a large number of shares. Institutional investors can also increase firm value for shareholders (Navissi & Naiker, 2006). In addition, institutional investors consist of fund managers and professional analysts with knowledge and expertise in finance, investment and macroeconomics that can drive strategies. This leads to advantages and increases company value (Nurleni et al., 2018).

2.4.4 Managerial Efficiency (M_Score)

The assessment of performance holds significant importance as it can function as a pivotal factor in decision-making processes. Various decisions, such as investments, agency relationships, and other choices, are significantly influenced by the performance exhibited by a company. Demerjian et al. (2012) posit that the presence of skilled administrators has the potential to improve business performance. Previous research has indicated that the effectiveness and competencies of managers can yield favorable consequences for enterprises, including precise projections, reduced tax evasion, and decreased audit expenses. According to a study conducted by Demerjian et al. (2012), it was discovered that managers' efficiency has a negative impact on earnings quality and promotes income normalization. Considerable focus has been directed towards the significance of managerial competence as a pivotal attribute in administration. Kor (2003) posits that managerial ability encompasses the inherent knowledge, skills, and experience possessed by a manager.

According to Demerjian et al. (2012), an effective manager is characterized by their ability to optimize advantages while utilizing minimal resources. Proficient managers possess a superior understanding of business and industries, exhibit enhanced foresight in anticipating demand, make more informed decisions in selecting initiatives, and demonstrate a deeper comprehension of risk. The implementation of a unique methodology for managing financial, operational, and accounting choices holds significant significance. Putra et al. (2022) posit that proficient managers possess the ability to enhance cost and revenue efficiency, employ effective business strategies, and allocate resources efficiently. In order to enhance the operational efficiency of their organizations, corporations allocate substantial financial resources toward compensating qualified managers for their services. According to Yung and Chen (2018), senior managers possess the potential to significantly influence the performance of the firm. However, they encounter various constraints when attempting to apply their expertise. Demergian et al. (2012) posit that the competencies of managers have the potential to exert an impact on analysts' assessments of a firm and subsequently foster investor interest and engagement in the said firm. The preceding study, as indicated by Andreou et al. (2015), primarily emphasized the assessment of managers' capacity to forecast forthcoming performance through the utilization of efficient resource management.

Demerjian et al. (2012) and Salehi et al. (2021) have identified a positive correlation between the competencies of managers and the overall performance of firms. During the period of the financial crisis, managers who possessed the necessary skills and expertise demonstrated a higher level of proficiency in effectively utilizing available resources compared to managers who lacked such knowledge and experience. Furthermore, Yung and Chen (2018) provide empirical evidence that establishes a positive correlation between a company's managerial capabilities and its enhanced performance. According to Salehi et al. (2021), there is an expectation for managers to enhance their effectiveness in managing firms. Managers who possess higher levels of capabilities have the potential to enhance operational management effectiveness, especially in critical situations where their decisions can significantly influence firm performance (Andreou et al., 2015). In a recent study conducted by Xu et al. (2022), it was found that managers who possess high levels of competence demonstrate a greater

propensity for investment compared to their counterparts. Cheung et al. (2017) posit that the presence of experienced managers possessing significant authority has the potential to enhance the overall performance of a company. Demerjian confirmed that the model indicates managers' efficiency affects economic outcomes and is therefore important to economics, finance, accounting, and management research by quantifying the managerial efficiency model, principle of data envelopment analysis (DEA). It reflects the ability of management to effectively of changed resources by proving that the ability of manager can create an effective of work process and value to company more in over the past few years.

DEA is the indicator to evaluate the effectiveness of the unit by economics theory with nonparametric. There is a flexible function for efficiency. It is calculated by linear programming. It used empirical data of production factors and production (Morita & Avkiran, 2009). Development of started from Farrell (1957). Economics efficiency of unit is divided into two types: (1) Price/ allocative efficiency is an ability of unit to select each factor portion under the assumption of price of production factor. (2) Technical efficiency is an ability of unit in increasing production under factor of output – oriented measure. on the other hand, it can be considered from the ability of unit production to reduce production factor, but the production is still the same (input – oriented measure). To study managerial efficiency is a process of DEA which aims to calculate technical efficiency only.

Farrell (1957) defined efficiency and measurement efficiency by activity analysis approach. The purpose is to create a single index, it indicates the efficiency of unit which produces many products. However, the study of Farrell (1957) limited only one product for a unit, so it was not a good tool to measure the efficiency. Research on Charnes, Cooper, & Rhodes (1978), developed a model to solve this problem. It is called efficiency frontier. It is used to measure the maximum efficiency by scoring the production and products. The DEA model is used to measure the performance of the organization. There are many researches which used DEA to measure. Using DEA is famous, especially for accounting (Chang et al., 2018). It can be summarized as follows:

- The DEA model can be calculated specifically no matter what variety of production factors and products.

- DEA is a method to measure with nonparametric method, so there is no limit of appropriate function

Demerjian, et al. (2012) present a method of measuring management competence that eliminates the influence of various external factors. We measure managerial ability using Demerjian, et al. (2012) proposed method. Using a two-stage data envelopment analysis model, managerial ability is determined. Initially, a data envelopment analysis model with Sales revenue as the output and seven input variables (property, plant, and equipment; PPE, R&D, operating leases, goodwill, other intangible assets, cost of inventory, and selling, general and administrative expenses) is optimized to determine firm efficiency. In addition to managerial efficiency, other factors such as firm size, age, and competitive position will influence this efficiency.

$$\Theta = \frac{Sales}{COGS + SG&A + OpsLese + PPE + GW + OtherInt + R&D}$$

 Θ is firm efficiency. Sale revenue is the output, as firms' main goal is to generate sales. Firm efficiency refers to the maximization of sales at the lowest possible cost per sale. The cost to produce sales has seven inputs (Demerjian et al., 2012).

There are firm and top manager-specific factors that contribute to the firm's efficacy. Factors unique to top managers are used to evaluate managerial skills. This research regresses six firm characteristics (firm size, firm market, free cash flow, firm age, business segment, and foreign currency indicator) on firm efficiency using a sector industry-effect and year-effect regression model (Demerjian et al., 2012). The following model is proposed:

$$\begin{split} \Theta &= \beta_0 + \beta_1 FirmSize + \beta_2 FirmMarket + \beta_3 FreeCashFlow + \beta_4 FirmAge \\ &+ \beta_5 BusinessSegment + \beta_6 ForignCurrency + YearDummy + \varepsilon \end{split}$$

2.4.5 Firm Performance

The study's response variable is firm performance, as measured by ROA and Tobin's Q. ROA measures accounting-based performance, whereas Tobin's Q measures market-based performance. A mix of these measurements is widely used in empirical studies focusing on ESG and firm/financial performance (Cornett et al., 2007; Andreou et al., 2015; Aboud & Diab, 2018; Alareeni & Hamdan, 2020; Albitar et al., 2020; Junius et al., 2020; Abedin et al., 2022; Bodhanwala & Bodhanwala, 2023; Dkhili, 2023).

ROA is calculated by dividing net income by total assets, and Tobin's Q is calculated by dividing the market value of equity and debt capital by total assets. Accounting-based measures use audited accounting data to get a good idea of how well a company is doing. ROA shows how well a company's management is able to get a return on its resources. Companies that use their assets well have a higher ROA. Accounting-based profit measurements are criticized for being backward-looking and only partially estimating future occurrences in the form of depreciation and amortization. On the other hand, Tobin's Q is heavily affected by a wide range of unstable factors, such as the psychology of investors and predictions about the market. If Tobin's Q is larger than 1, the firm's market value is overvalued relative to the asset's book value, but if it is less than 1, the market value of the firm is undervalued.

2.5 Linkage Literature Review and Research Hypotheses Development

2.5.1 Theoretical Framework, Literature Review and Hypothesis Development of ESG Performance

The present research is built upon the positive theory, which aims to answer questions in a way that leads to a solution based on stakeholder theory (Freeman, 1984) and agency theory (Jensen & Meckling, 1976). According to the stakeholder theory, the management should not only focus on internal stakeholders, but also external stakeholders. Previous studies on the relationship between environmental, social, and corporate governance and firm performance provide various theories that can explain this relationship. Furthermore, the management must support social responsibility by broadening the perspective of stakeholders that includes employees, customers, suppliers, local communities, and governments since the success of corporate missions based on policies and decision-making might affect this group of people. The research suggests that corporate responsibility to all stakeholders improves long-term performance and reflects corporate ethical values when making investment decisions (Aboud & Diab, 2018; Melinda & Wardhani, 2020; Bodhanwala & Bodhanwala, 2023).

According to stakeholder theory, executives, particularly CEOs, with transformational leadership, are considered to possess a leadership style that is closely associated with social responsibility within the company. The success of a company largely depends on the passion and commitment of its executives towards ESG, as it is a key indicator of performance. To establish a positive relationship with stakeholders, it is imperative for executives to have clear goals and effective communication (Viererbl & Koch, 2022). In the end, it will lead to the determination of sales and profits. In other words, if the product is not environmentally friendly, customers will not buy the product. Thus, ESG is not the only social issue, but it has a positive effect on the company (Melinda & Wardhani, 2020; Maji & Lohia, 2023). Corporate governance is an additional approach that can enhance the transparency and accountability of the companies listed on the Thai Stock Exchange. According to the SEC (2023), shareholders have a legitimate right to receive a return on their investment as they take on investment risks. This is considered as a way to promote social responsibility within the representative theory framework. The stakeholder theory has expanded the scope of corporate social responsibility to include a diverse range of individuals who should be given attention and accountability. By allowing stakeholders to participate in decision-making and business management, trust, mutual respect, and a shared responsibility model can be established (Fama & Jensen, 1983).

Stakeholder theory and agency theory are relevant to the concept of corporate social responsibility and are connected to factors, such as corporate governance, stakeholder engagement, and transformational leadership. Additionally, the relationship between transformational leadership and stakeholder engagement is found to have a significant positive impact. (Velte, 2020; Napoletano & Curry, 2022; Viererbl & Koch, 2022; Dkhili, 2023; Maji & Lohia, 2023; Wang et al., 2023). In addition, stakeholder theory and agency theory indicate that companies with efficient ESG operations will use assets and expenses that help create value for the company and result in revenue growth, affecting financial strength within the company, as well as higher business value. The relationship between ESG and performance implies that investing in ESG may develop new internal resources and create external benefits through the reputation of the company

(Albitar et al.,2020; Bhandari & Salo, 2022; Yoo & Managi, 2022; Gurol & Lagasio, 2023).

According to stakeholder theory, most empirical studies have found a positive relationship between ESG and firm performance. However, several studies have identified a conflicting relationship. For example, Alareeni & Hamdan (2020) conducted a study on how ESG impacted the performance of US S&P 500-listed firms. They discovered that ESG disclosure had a positive impact on ROA, ROE, and Tobin's Q. However, in terms of environmental dimension, it had a negative impact on ROA, ROE, and Tobin's Q since environmental issues increase cost of financing and lower profitability. However, environmental performance disclosures have a positive impact on Tobin's Q. This evidence suggests that environmental disclosures are important to market value. It is found that companies listed in the S&P 500 tend to disclose their environmental performance as part of their strategy to plan and create added value for the company. As a result, high-scoring environmental performance disclosure can attract investors. There is also an increase in demand for stocks and investments. Disclosure of Corporate Governance (CG) performance also has a positive impact on ROA and Tobin's Q, which demonstrates that a high CG score is a key factor in improving performance for the best interests of shareholders and other stakeholders.

Duque-Grisales & Aguilera-Caracuel (2021) found a negative correlation of ESG and ROA in emerging markets of multinationals in Latin America. The findings indicate that companies that received high ESG scores experienced reduced operating profits, implying that the expenses incurred in ESG operations did not lead to improved efficiency. As a result, investors and shareholders may not receive the expected returns on their investments. Similarly, Tampakoudis et al. (2021) investigated the negative trend of how ESG performance affected shareholder wealth for companies that underwent mergers and acquisitions (M&A) before and during the COVID-19 pandemic. The study, which analyzed 19 US companies, revealed that the negative effect was more significant during the pandemic. In line with shareholder theory, it may be necessary to cut sustainability costs during economic crises, as crises require more flexibility in resource allocation.

Another aspect, which is less evident from the past literature, is that ESG performance has no correlation with firm performance. Utz et al., (2014) analyzed the relationship between ESG score and stock prices from Thomson Reuters Datastream by using a rolling window approach where each window has a length of 120 months and ends on a date that a fund reports its portfolio composition. They found that investors were unconvinced that ESG reflect CSR performance and ESG scores will deliver high long-term returns. Similarly, Junius et al., (2020) studied the impact of ESG on firm performance and market value and focused on four ASEAN countries (Indonesia, Malaysia, Singapore, and Thailand). The study found no significant influence of ESG on firm performance and market value since ESG is not yet a part of firm performance measurement. Furthermore, Amel-Zadeh & Serafeim (2018) suggest that investors still need a clear understanding of the careful use of ESG data in all dimensions since various studies presented conflicting issues from the past to the present. In other words, ESG is not only a value-added dimension, but ESG performance has a negative impact on firm performance. Moreover, certain studies suggested that ESG is not correlated with higher or lower firm performance and firm value. However, there were differences in the research methodology, such as ESG measurement, sample group, and study period. Thus, conducting a study on ESG is also important to provide evidence of different dimensions.

This study is based on stakeholder theory and empirical results of previous studies pointing out that ESG had a positive correlation with firm performance (ROA and Tobin's Q). The results revealed that potential ESG implementation can enhance firm performance. According to stakeholder theory, it is assumed that the impact on firm performance strategy regarding ESGs need to continuously work in order to meet stakeholder expectations (Velte, 2020). Thus, the hypotheses are as follows:

H1a. ESG performance increases ROA.

H1b. ESG performance increases Tobin's Q.



Figure 2.1 Linking environmental, social and governance (ESG) performance and firm performance

Authors	Purpose	Variables	Results
Al Amosh et al., (2023)	To investigate the impact environmental, social, and governance (ESG) on financial performance	X: ESG Y: ROA, ROE, Tobin's Q Control: size, age, leverage, year and sector	 Environmental, social and ESG disclosure positive significant ROA, ROE and Tobin's Q. Governance positively positive impact ROA
Bodhanwala & Bodhanwala, (2023)	To investigate the impact sustainability policies by firms makes performance	X: ESG Y: Price-to-book ratio, market capitalization, Tobin's Q, buy and hold rawprice return	• ESG no significant stock market performance
Dkhili (2023)	To investigate the moderating role of competitive advantage on the relationship between ESG and market performance	X: ESG Mod: Competitive advantage Y: Tobin's Q Control: size, leverage, growth and industry	 ESG positive significant Tobin's Q. ESG has a positive effect on firms' performance for higher competitive advantage.
Kalia & Aggarwal (2023)	To investigate the impact of component of environmental, social and governance score (ESG) on financial performance	X: ESG Y: ROA, ROE Control: size, leverage, market value to book ratio and market capitalization	 ESG positive significant firm performance (developed economies) ESG negative significant firm performance (developing economies)

Table 2.1 Summary of studies on ESG and firm performance

Authors	Purpose	Variables	Results
Maji & Lohia, (2023)	To investigate the impact of environmental, social and governance (ESG) performance on the firm performance	X: ENV, SOC, GOV, ESG Y: ROA, Tobin's Q and market capitalization Control: size, leverage and net sales growth	 ENV negative significant ROA, positive significant Tobin's Q and market capitalization SOC, GOV, ESG positive significant on ROA, Tobin's Q
Menicucci & Paolucci (2023)	To investigate the impact of environmental, social, and governance (ESG) on bank performance	X: ENV, SOC, GOV Y: ROA, ROE, Tobin's Q and stock market return Control: size , capital adequacy ratio, liquid asset ratio, loans to total deposits, customer deposits to total liabilities	 ENV positive significant ROA and ROE SOC negative significant ROA and ROE GOV positive significant stock market return
Alipour et al. (2019)	To investigate the moderating role of board independence on the relationship between environmental disclosure quality (EDQ) and firm performance	X: EDQ Mod: Board independence Y: ROA, ROE, ROS and Tobin's Q Control: size, leverage, age, liquidity	 EDQ positive significant ROA and Tobin's Q EDQ has a positive effect on firms performance for higher board independence
Buallay (2019)	To investigate the impact of ESG and firm performance	X: Environmental, social, governance and ESG Y: ROA, ROE and Tobin's Q Control: bank specific and macroeconomic	 ESG positive significant ROA, ROE and tobin's Q Environmental (E) positive significant ROA and Tobin's Q Social (S) negative significant ROA, ROE and Tobin's Q Social (S) negative significant ROA, ROE and positive significant Tobin's Q
Mar, Luis, & Redondo (2019)	To investigate the impact of ESG and stock prices	X: ESG Y: Tobin's Q Control: size, age, leverage, year and sector	ESG positive significant impact stock prices

Table 2.1 Summary of studies on ESG and firm performance (Cont.)

Authors	Purpose	Variables	Results
Aboud & Diab (2018)	To investigate the impact of ESG and firm value	X: ESG Y: Tobin's Q Control: size, leverage, ROA, capital expenditure ratio, EGX listing	ESG positive significant impact Tobin's Q
Atan, Mahmudul, Said, & Zamri (2018)	To investigate the impact of ESG on the performance	X: ESG disclosure Y: ROE, Tobin's Q and WACC	ESG positive significant impact Tobin's Q and WACC
Lu & Taylor (2018)	To investigate the environmental performance, environmental disclosure, and financial performance	X: Environmental performance X,Y: Environmental disclosure Y: Market capitalization	 Environmental performance positive significant impact environmental disclosure Environmental performance negative significant impact market capitalization
Sultana, Zainal, & Zulkifli (2017)	To investigate the ESG performance and invesment decision	X: ESG Y: Invesment decision	ESG positive significant impact invesment decision
Velte (2017)	To investigate the ESG and financial performance	X: ESG Y: ROA and tobin's <i>q</i> Control: R&D expenses, beta factor, firm risk),size, branch of industry	ESG positive significant impact and no significant on tobin's q
Bosco & Misani (2016)	To investigate the ESG and liability of foreignness	X: ESG Y: liability of foreignness Control: size, EBITDA, firm profitability	ESG negative significant impact on liability of foreignness
Hodkam (2016)	To investigate the economies, social and environmental disclosure, and stock pric.	X: Economies, social and environmental disclosure Y: Tobin's Q Control: size, ROE, dividend payout, capital structure	 Economies disclosure positive significant Tobin's Q Social and environmental disclosure no significant Tobin's Q

Table 2.1 Summary of studies on ESG and firm performance (Cont.)

Authors	Purpose	Variables	Results
Nor et al. (2016)	To investigate the environmental disclosure and financial performance	X: environmental index Y: ROA, ROE, EPS and profit margin	ESG positive significant impact ROA, ROE, EPS
Semenova & Hassel (2016)	To investigate the moderating role of environmental risk on the relationship between environmental performance and financial performance	X: Environmental performance Mod: Environmental risk Y: ROA and Tobin's Q Control: total assets, debt/total assets, sales growth (%) and age	 Environmental performance positive significant Tobin's Q. Environmental performance has a negative effect on tobin's q and ROA for higher environmental risk
Benjamin & Zain (2015)	To investigate the corporate governance (CG) and dividend payout	X: CG (board meeting, board independence) Y: Divided payout. Control: ROE, size, leverage, cash, growth, Industry	Board meeting and board independence negative significant impact on dividend payout
ElKelish & Hassan (2015)	To investigate the corporate governance disclosure and share price accuracy	X: CG (number of directors on the board, big4 audit firms) Y: Share price accuracy Control: market capitalization, stock market and ROE	Number of directors on the board and big4 audit firms has a significant positive impact on share price accuracy
Thanasarnborisud & Phadoongsitthi (2015)	To investigate the extent level of social and environmental disclosure	X: Extent level of social (firm size, industry type, profitability, leverage, ownership structure and listing age) Y: level of disclosure Control: auditor size	Firm size and industry type has a significant positive impact on level of disclosure
Yarram (2015)	To investigate the corporate governance and the dividend payout decisions	X: Corporate governance score Y: dividend payout Control: ROA, MVBV, growth, cash, debt.	Corporate governance score has significant positive impact on the average dividend payout

Table 2.1 Summary of studies on ESG and firm performance (Cont.)

Authors	Purpose	Variables	Results
Dragomir (2010)	To investigate the environmental performance and financial performance	X: environmental disclosure Y: Tobin's Q, share return, ROE, leverage, ROA, EPS	 Environmental disclosure positive significant Tobin's Q, share return and ROA Environmental
		Control: Size	disclosure negative significant leverage
Samontaray (2010)	To investigate the effect corporate governance and share price	X: CorporategovernanceY: share priceControl: size, leverage,cash, growth, Industry	Corporate governance positive significant on the share price

Table 2.1 Summary of studies on ESG and firm performance (Cont.)

It appears that the literature on sustainability and its impact on performance presents two distinct perspectives: the cost-of-capital reduction perspective and the valuecreation perspective. The former argues that investing in ESG (environmental, social, and governance) initiatives increases costs and negatively affects market values, while the latter contends that ESG can be used as a tool to create a competitive advantage and improve financial performance. However, despite these two contrasting views, research on the effects of ESG has yielded inconsistent and contradictory findings, as indicated by various studies. This inconsistency might be attributed to the complexity of the relationship between ESG and performance indicators. To gain a better understanding of why ESG has variable effects on performance, the researchers in question decided to investigate the impact of ESG on operational, financial, and market performance indicators. By doing so, they likely aimed to shed light on the specific factors or mechanisms that may be influencing the relationship between ESG initiatives and a company's performance. It is important to recognize that the field of sustainability and its impact on business performance is dynamic and multifaceted. Different industries, regions, and organizational contexts can influence the outcomes of ESG initiatives. Additionally, the timeframe over which these effects are observed might play a significant role in the varying results obtained in different studies.

The researchers' investigation into operational, financial, and market performance indicators might provide valuable insights into understanding the nuanced

relationship between ESG and performance, potentially contributing to more informed decision-making for businesses and policymakers regarding sustainability strategies. However, the complexity of the topic and the ongoing evolution of ESG practices necessitate continued research and analysis to draw comprehensive conclusions.

From reviewing researches on ESG (Table 2.1) it was found that the data arrangement was used from data stream (Aboud & Diab, 2018 and Bosco & Misani, 2016) Thomson Reuters (Mar, Luis, & Redondo, 2019; Velte, 2017 and Semenova & Hassel, 2016) Bloomberg database (Buallay, 2019 and Atan, Mahmudul, Said, & Zamri, 2018) or the respective found a mental data such as CODAL database and FTS Euro first 300 Index constituents. The reviewing of ESG data in Thailand, it was found that ESG score was not published publicly. The researcher finds that scoring criteria of ESG data of the involved department which organizes this test in the stock market. Here are criteria of scoring ESG.

The Stock Exchange of Thailand: There are two steps of E.S.G. evaluation.

The first step: Questionnaire of sustainability (100 questions), Questionnaire of sustainability: there is the score determination for each question in advance. The company will receive a score. After answering all questions, each will be collected by equal weighted on industrial subject.

The second step: Interview

It is to present and answer about the process of sustainability. The committee will consider registered companies sustainably by calculating and comparing scores to filter companies. Criteria:

1. Management and control category 41%

1.1 Policy and managerial control and governance (7%)

1.2 Risk management and economic crisis (6%)

1.3 Taking action under the law and regulation/corruption management and bribery (7%)

1.4 Customer relation management (CRM)

1.5 Brand image management (4%)

1.6 Supply chain management from the source to consumers (3%)

1.7 Policy of crime protection (4%)

1.8 Financial stability and risks in work process (4%)

2. Environment category 24%

2.1 Report about environment to stakeholders and the public (3%)

2.2 Environment management and policy (4%)

- 2.3 The effectiveness of environmental work process (4%)
- 2.4 Risk management and the opportunity affecting business (9%)
- 2.5 Strategy acting against the climate change issue (4%)

3. Society category 35%

- 3.1 Reporting to society (3%)
- 3.2 Labor and human rights (5%)
- 3.3 Human resource development (6%)
- 3.4 Persuading abilities employees (6%)
- 3.5 Showing of decent citizen and giving back to society (3%)
- 3.6 Hygienic and safety at work (3%)
- 3.7 No transparency of money investment and business loans (4%)
- 3.8 Opportunity to access money sources equally (3%)
- 3.9 Giving opportunity to stakeholders to business process (2%)

The researcher evaluated by measuring ESG performance. There are two models:



Figure 2.2 Measuring ESG performance

Step.1 Environmental, social, and governance (ESG) criteria

(1) Measuring the environmental and social score

The researcher used seven indicators to relate the costs and factors of companies with environmental and social impacts, such as energy consumption, carbon emissions (GHG), water consumption, waste generation, employee injury rate, employee turnover, and personnel costs (payroll). The study, Measuring Sustainability Disclosure: Ranking the World's Stock Exchanges (Sustainable Stock Exchanges Initiative, 2019), ranks sustainable disclosure for registered companies on fifty-five stock exchanges. Thailand's stock market is ranked 10th and is the only stock market in Asia. And it is also one of the emerging stock markets ranked in the top ten. This reflects the quality of registered companies, which is in line with the standard of developed markets.

(2) Measurement of corporate governance score (CGS)

The CG ranking criteria of the Thai IOD data was used for this research, as it is an international standard. It is accepted by Wylie and can reflect the advantage of the negative process in the case of management strategy. In addition, from the stakeholders' point of view, transparency should protect executives and managers from being tempted to take advantage of their position. A high value of CGS strengthens shareholders' confidence in investments and leads to a high enterprise value.

Step 2: Assessing ESG disclosure (ranking model based on three metrics)

The disclosure score is based on the percentage of significant publicly traded corporations that published the seven indicators between 2016 and 2021.

First, the percentage of significant companies trading on a particular exchange that disclosed a specific indication is calculated. This is done for all of the evaluated stock exchanges.

Second, for each company, the resulting percentages are ordered, with the highest percentage receiving the highest score.

This process is repeated for the remaining six indicators. Finally, the disclosure score of an exchange is a simple average of the seven percentage scores. In terms of their contribution to the disclosure score, the indicators are weighted equally.

Step 3: Giving each area a weight

For the Securities and Exchange Commission's overall ESG score, an automated, data-driven, and objective logic is used to figure out how much weight each area should have. The number of indicators in each category compared to the total number of indicators used in the ESG score determines how much each category is worth. This means that problems with more information are given more weight, and the relative performance scores of different companies can be calculated with more confidence. So, categories like management (CG score) that have a lot of topics that are fairly clear and companies that report more information on these topics are given more weight than categories that aren't as clear and don't have as much information.

2.5.2 Theoretical Framework, Literature Review and Hypothesis Development of Institutional Ownership

Most corporate governance studies focus on internal governance mechanisms and board characteristics, such as board independence, board size, audit committee independence, audit committee size, CEO duality, and board diversity. These are considered as indicators of a good corporate governance mechanism that affects the corporate added value (Butt et al., 2022; Farooq et al., 2022; Alajmi & Worthington, 2023). However, investment analysts or equity analysts are an integral part of the external governance mechanism that affects investment decisions of individual investors (Navissi & Naiker, 2006). With a role in investment analysis and the role of shareholders, institutional investors reflect good corporate governance mechanisms since their analysis focuses on investment with the goal of generating long-term returns. With an investment committee with expertise and administrative mechanisms, they are able to manage risks to generate higher returns for the efficiency of the investments. Furthermore, with a shareholder who can audit the management, agent costs caused by major and minor shareholders and the management can be decreased (Jensen & Meckling, 1976). It has been widely accepted that institutional investors have an influence on managerial performance. A company with a high proportion of shares held by institutional investors indicates a higher performance since this can lead to a good corporate governance mechanism and the most efficient use of resources (Nurleni et al., 2018). Institutional shareholders are considered as a key investor group in the capital market due to the fact that their large proportion of investment helps promote the improvement of corporate governance in the capital market (SEC, 2022).

The above evidence suggests that the shares held by institutional investors reflect a good corporate governance mechanism since this type of investor is able to monitor the management to efficiently perform their duties which would add value to the company. In this regard, managerial efficiency is the use of skills, knowledge, and abilities reflected through operational strategies to achieve business success. Demerjian et al., (2012) defined managerial efficiency as a change in the corporate resources, and high managerial efficiency was correlated with higher firm performance. According to Chen & Lin (2018), companies with high managerial efficiency generate higher returns on purchases and hold their investments over the long term. Furthermore, Khurana et al. (2018) found that high managerial efficiency had an influence on effective investment in capital markets.

Thailand, as a developing country with huge stock market growth, was found to have a leap in investor growth in 2021 (SEC, 2022). Despite the growth situation of listed companies on the Thai Stock Exchange, financial institution shareholders still need to study whether corporate governance can lead to performance and confidence among stakeholders. Academic evidence on institutional investor relations and performance reveals that institutional investors with positive engagement and managerial perspectives can enhance allocating effective resources and benefit the company in building a good image. Retail investors can be confident that their investments will be protected and maximize their investment returns. It is expected that the results of this study can provide empirical evidence that enriches the literature on institutional shareholding structures on firm performance and managerial efficiency, which expands the scope of how institutional shareholder relationships impact firm performance.

Based on agency theory, Jensen & Meckling, (1976) stated that agency costs can arise when conflicts of interests between the management and the shareholders occur. Shareholders may require management to add value to shareholders. On the other hand, the management may want to operate in a different direction which may cause conflicts of the interests of shareholders. As a result, shareholders have to encounter agency costs. For agency costs, institutional shareholders act as a good corporate governance mechanism since they can monitor the management more closely and more systematically since they hold a large number of shares. Institutional investors can also increase firm value for shareholders (Navissi & Naiker, 2006). In addition, institutional investors consist of fund managers and professional analysts with knowledge and expertise in finance, investment and macroeconomics that can drive strategies. This leads to advantages and increases company value (Nurleni et al., 2018).

However, institutional shareholders may promote self-interest behavior. In other words, if institutional shareholders are involved with the company as an investor with voting rights from investing in securities and a business partner at the same time, this may lead to conflicts of interests. In addition, if the institutional shareholders and the company have mutual benefits, the institutional shareholders will not be able to fully monitor the management's performance. As a result, institutional investors' holdings may also have a negative impact on firm performance (Pound, 1998; Sakawa & Watanabel, 2020; Saleh et al., 2022).

Institutional ownership activism has played an increasing role in the stock market growth, together with laws and regulations that have increasingly empowered shareholders since the 2001 due to the scandal of the management in several big companies, such as Enron Tyco and WorldCom, engaged in fraudulent account manipulation and embezzlement, which caused crash in the stock market and negatively affected the image of big business. Thus, investors in the United States have cooperated in monitoring the management more closely and systematically, especially institutional investors who have power due to their large number of shares with the ability to arrange private discussions to create social pressure, and use legal channels to gather other shareholders to jointly vote on important issues, such as the removal of directors or executives who misbehave, propose business plan improvement, support or oppose the acquisition plan or oppose the plans of suspicious major shareholders (Sakawa & Watanabel, 2020). Previous research has taken different views of the relationship between institutional shareholder structure and corporate performance as follows:

Firstly, institutional shareholders have a positive relationship with firm performance. Ferreira & Matos (2008) found that the role of institutional investors was

monitoring the performance of a company. The higher percentage of institutional investors can increase firm performance since they are investors with knowledge, expertise, and the ability to monitor the management at a lower cost than retail investors. Likewise, Abedin et al., (2022) found a positive linear relationship between institutional shareholders and firm performance (Tobin's Q and ROA). Cornett et al., (2007) suggested that institutional investors with the power to monitor the management's performance or pressure insensitive investors can increase firm performance. On the other hand, the institutional investors with no power or pressure-sensitive investors were found to have no correlation with firm performance.

Secondly, institutional shareholders have a negative relationship to firm performance. Practical evidence suggests that major shareholders are concentrated ownership and are able to access to internal information, which is important information for decision-making. The concentrated ownership of institutional shareholders can lead to agency problems since they have a lot of voting rights and the opportunity to determine financial and operational policies according to their own group's expectations. These can cause conflicts of interests between the majority of shareholders and the shareholders who do not have control over the business. Highly concentrated structure of shareholders can be easily exploited since the shareholders influence the decision of the board of directors. In other words, major shareholders influence corporate future performance. Daryaei & Fattahi (2020) suggested that large shareholders might not support the management to improve their performance according to the theory of profitability. In other words, if the management is unable to manage effectively, institutional shareholders will have the opportunity to take up management positions in the future upon the vote of the shareholders. Based on this assumption, corporate governance mechanisms may be reduced as institutional shareholders and the management do not operate for the best interest of the company, and do not support policies that are beneficial to minor shareholders (Bushee, 1998). Tsouknidis (2019) found a significant negative correlation of non-strategic institutional investors who aim to hold stocks in the short term tend to have no incentive to constantly monitor the performance of management. Kirchmaier & Grant (2006) found that institutional investors who are major shareholders have a negative relationship with long-term share price performance of public companies in European economies, and indicated that it is difficult for institutional shareholders to contribute to the efficient operation of future interests.

Thirdly, institutional ownership has an inverted U-shaped relationship with firm performance despite evidence of the uncertainty of the relationship of institutional investor shareholders with firm performance. Bushee (1998) found that institutional shareholders had a non-linear relationship with firm performance. It was found that institutional investors must hold 30% of the shares and have long-term investment objectives in order to increase firm performance. However, the performance would decrease if the proportion of institutional investors is more than 30 percent. This is in line with Daryaei & Fattahi (2020), who found that the U-shaped relationship between institutional ownership and firm performance confirms the validity of the efficient monitoring. Navissi & Naiker (2006) and Daryaei & Fattahi (2020) confirmed that institutional investor ownership does not play a role in creating a corporate governance mechanism that increases firm performance. Thus, the influence of institutional shareholders on operating results cannot be clearly concluded since the shares held by institutional investors also depend on other characteristics of the company (Bushee, 1998; Tsouknidis, 2019; Daryaei & Fattahi, 2020). Thus, the hypotheses are as follows:

H2a. Institutional ownership increases ROA.

H2b. Institutional ownership increases Tobin's Q.



Figure 2.3 Linking institutional ownership and firm performance
Authors	Authors Purpose Variables		Results
Abedin et al., (2022)	To investigate the effect of institutional ownership on firm performance	X: Foreign institutional investors Y: ROA, Tobin's Q Control: size, leverage, liquidity, asset growth, price volatility, property, plant and equipment divided by total assets, year dummy	Foreign institutional investors positive significant effect on Tobin's Q and ROA
Ilyas et al., (2022)	To investigate the effect of foreign and domestic institutional investors on the value holdings.	X: Foreign institutional investors Mod: Excess cash holdings Y: firm market value Control: earnings, net assets, R&D expenditures, interest expenses and dividends	 Foreign institutional investors no significant Tobin's Q Foreign institutional investors positive significant Tobin's Q for higher excess cash holdings
Saleh et al., (2022)	To investigate the moderating role of CEO power on the relationship between institutional ownership and performance	X: Institutional ownership Mod: CEO power Y: firm market value Control: earnings, net assets, R&D expenditures, interest expenses and dividends	 Institutional ownership and CEO power positively with firm performance. Institutional ownership positive significant Tobin's Q for higher CEO power
Daryaei & Fattahi, (2020)	To investigate the effect of institutional ownership on firm performance.	X: Institutional ownership Y: ROA, ROE, Tobin's Q Control: size and leverage	 Institutional ownership below 28.5% and 43.5% positive significant on ROA and Tobin's Q Institutional ownership above 28.5% and 43.5% negative significant on ROA and Tobin's Q Institutional ownership from 4.2% to 14.1% positive significant on ROE.
Sakawa & Watanabel, (2020)	To investigate the effect of institutional ownership on the performance	X: Institutional ownership Y: ROA, Tobin's Q Control: firm size, financial leverage, free cash flow, firm risk, the board size, outside director ratio, a stock option dummy, big auditors dummy	Institutional ownership positive significant with ROA and Tobin's Q

 Table 2.2 Summary of studies on institutional ownership and firm performance

Authors	Purpose	Variables	Results
Tsouknidis, (2019)	To investigate the effect of institutional ownership on the performance	X: Institutional ownership Y: ROA, Tobin's Q Control: firm size, financial leverage,	Institutional ownership negative significant with Tobin's Q
Nurleni et al., (2018)	To investigate the effect of managerial and institutional ownership on the corporate social responsibility (CSR) disclosure.	X: Institutional, managerial ownership, Y: CSR disclosure.	 Institutional ownership positive significant with CSR disclosure Managerial ownership positive significant with CSR disclosure
Sean Cleary & Jun Wang (2017)	To investigate the effect of institutional investors' investment horizons (IIIH) on a wide variety of key corporate policies.	X: institutional ownership (% institutional investors into three groups) Y: market value of leverage Control: size, Tobin's Q, capital expenditures, growth, asset tangibility, financial health, dividends and ROA	Institutional ownership positive significant with market value of leverage
Jory, Ngo, & Sakaki (2017)	To investigate the effect of institutional ownership stability and dividend payout ratio	X: institutional ownership (% institutional ownership based on a five-year rolling period) Y: dividend payout ratio Control: market capitalization, market-to-book ratio, growth, ratio of cash and bank balances-to-total assets ROA	Institutional ownership positive significant with dividend payout ratio
Dana AL- Najjar (2015)	To investigate the effect of institutional ownership and firm performance	X: institutional ownership (% of institutional ownership) Y: firm performance (ROA and ROE) Control: Size, tangibility, business risk, debt to asset and marketability	Institutional ownership no significant with ROA and ROE
P. Wang (2014) Sources: emerald insight	To investigate the effect of foreign institutions and stock returns	X: institutional ownership (% of institutional ownership) Y: stock returns (ROE) Control: book-to-market ratio, market capitalization, stock closing price, age, cash dividend	Institutional ownership positive significant with ROE

 Table 2.2 Summary of studies on institutional ownership and firm performance (Cont.)

Authors	Purpose	Variables	Results
Ferreira & Matos, (2008)	To investigate the effect institutional ownership and firm value	X: institutional ownership Y: Tobin's Q Control: SIZE, growth opportunities, leverage, cash holdings,	Institutional ownership positive significant with Tobin's Q
Cornett et al., (2007)	To investigate the effect institutional ownership and profitability	cross-listing X: institutional ownership Y: profitability (ROA and ROE) Control: book-to-market ratio, market capitalization, stock closing price, age, cash dividend	Institutional ownership positive significant with ROA and ROE
Navissi & Naiker (2006)	To investigate the effect institutional ownership and and firm value	X: Institutional ownership (levels of shareholdings - 10,20,30,40,50 and more 50%) Y: firm value (market value to the book value of equity) Control: Size	 Institutional ownership (up to 30%) positive significant with firm value Institutional ownership (beyond 30%) negative significant with firm value

Table 2.2 Summary of studies on institutional ownership and firm performance (Cont.)

2.5.3 Managerial efficiency (M_Score) and firm performance

The objective of this study is to quantify managerial efficiency. Previous scholarly investigations have established that certain characteristic specific to managers, such as talent, reputation, ability, or style, have a significant impact on outcomes. Consequently, these factors hold considerable importance for research in the fields of economics, management, finance, accounting, and their practical applications. In order to assess managerial efficiency, scholars commonly employ various indicators, known as proxies, including but not limited to firm size, growth rate, historical abnormal performance, compensation levels, tenure, media coverage, and educational background.

Scholars have additionally deduced the effectiveness of managers by employing data envelopment analysis (DEA) in distinct sectors. However, it should be noted that a majority of these measures also encompass substantial aspects of the organization that lie beyond the purview of managerial influence. Efficiency is a metric employed to evaluate the proficiency of managers in effectively managing resources, particularly within

companies engaged in diversification. In order to obtain more comprehensive data, it is elucidated that the utilization of company resources enhances effectiveness. In their study, Demerjian et al. (2012) examined the impact of managerial effectiveness on the ability of managers to modify organizational resources. The outcome is to assess the effectiveness of a manager and prioritize the highest level of performance. In order for an organization to function effectively, it is imperative for managers to possess a high level of efficiency. I would like to inquire about your assessment of managerial performance. The implementation of the Data Envelopment Analysis (DEA) can serve as a valuable method for assessing managerial efficiency. Managerial efficiency plays a significant role in influencing various aspects of firm performance, including executive compensation, investment decisions, corporate governance, economic effects of corporate ownership, and cross-country productivity differences.

The evaluation of proper input and output selection is crucial due to the dependence of the ratio on the factors employed. The perspective of managerial efficiency was examined by Demerjian et al. (2012). The input factors in this context encompass the cost of goods sold, selling general and administrative expenses, property, plant, and equipment, operating lease expenses, research and development costs, as well as goodwill and other intangible assets. On the other hand, the output variable is represented by net sales. The generation of revenue is influenced by various inputs, all of which are subject to managerial discretion and can be impacted by managerial efficiency. Demerjian et al. (2012) introduced the MA-Score as a metric for assessing managerial efficiency. The utilization of the ranked managerial efficiency measure developed by Demerjian et al. (2012) has been observed among numerous researchers. The relationship was examined through various approaches, as demonstrated by the study conducted by Luo and Zhou (2017). The study examined the impact of managerial aptitude on the sentiment expressed in earnings announcements, as well as its influence on the market's reaction to such sentiment. This study discovered that individuals who possess the skill to effectively lead teams tend to employ a more optimistic language in their financial statements.

This finding expands upon the existing body of knowledge regarding factors that influence tone, which includes operational performance, managerial incentives, growth prospects, and company size. In addition to this research, it has been observed that stock markets exhibit more pronounced positive responses to optimistic language used in earnings announcements released by companies with highly competent management teams. In their study, Habib and Hasan (2017) examined the relationship between managerial ability and two key variables: investment efficiency and future stock price crash risk. Research has revealed a significant correlation between the proficiency of Chief Executive Officers (CEOs) and their investment decisions. According to Cox (2017), Huanga and Sunb (2017), and Hesarzadeh and Bazrafshan (2019), it has the potential to mitigate the impact of future stock price crash risk. It has been confirmed that the efficacy of a Chief Executive Officer (CEO) or a higher-level capability is established. In general, the findings indicate that the influence of managerial efficiency on performance is more substantial. The ability to create an advantage in competition is evident. Based on the evidence presented, it can be inferred that there is a demonstration of managerial efficiency. It has the potential to generate a favorable impact on advancements. The researcher conducted an investigation into the impact of managerial efficiency on firm performance. The researcher introduced the concept of managerial efficiency as an additional factor to be taken into account prior to making investments.



Authors	Purpose	Variables	Results
Jouber, (2022)	To investigate the moderating role of managerial ability on the relationship between female leaders and corporate social performance	X : Female leaders Mod : Managerial ability Y: Corporate social performance Control : firm size, ROA, leverage, cash flow from operations, age	Female leaders has a positive effect on corporate social performance for higher managerial ability
Magerakis, (2022)	To investigate the moderating role of managerial discretion on the relationship between managerial ability and cash holding	X : Managerial ability Mod : Managerial discretion Y: Cash holding Control : leverage, net working capital to total assets , cash flow to assets, R&D expenditures, firm size, firm age, Tobin's Q, capital expenditures, acquisition activity, debt, net equity issuance relative to assets, industry cash flow risk, a dummy year and industry	Managerial ability has a positive effect on cash holding for higher discretion
Xu et al., (2022)	To investigate the impact of age diversity on firm performance and the mediating role of managerial ability	X : Age diversity Med : Managerial ability Y: Tobin's Q Control : firm size, capital expenditure, growth, R&D	 Age diversity negative significant with firm performance Managerial ability plays a mediating role in the relationship between age diversity and Tobin's Q
Chen & Chen (2020)	To investigate the impact of managerial ability on the quality of environmental disclosures	X : Managerial ability Y: Environmental disclosures. Control : market-to-book ratio, loss and leverage	Managerial ability negative significant with environmental capital expenditure

 Table 2.3 Summary of studies on managerial efficiency and performance

Authors	Purpose	Variables	Results
Velte, (2020)	To investigate the moderating role of characteristics of the chief executive officer (CEO) on the relationship between CEO power and corporate social responsibility (CSR) performance.	X : CEO power Mod : Characteristics of CEO (age, gender, managerial ability and overconfidence) Y: Corporate social responsibility (CSR) performance Control : Corporate governance dimension, ROA, leverage, market-to- book ratio, dividend payout ratio, current ratio, industry and year effects.	 CEO power negative significant with corporate social responsibility (CSR) performance for younger CEOs. CEO power negative significant with corporate social responsibility (CSR) performance for female CEOs. CEO power positive significant with corporate social responsibility (CSR) performance for female CEOs. CEO power positive significant with corporate social responsibility (CSR) performance for high managerial ability CEO power negative significant with corporate social responsibility (CSR) performance for high managerial ability CEO power negative significant with corporate social responsibility (CSR) performance for high managerial ability
Hesarzadeh & Bazrafshan (2019)	To investigate the impact of managerial ability on regulatory review risk	X: Managerial ability Y: Regulatory review risk Control: accrual quality, accrual earnings management, real earnings management, market cap, age, loss, ROA, growth, Big 4	Managerial ability negative significant with regulatory review risk
Habib & Hasan (2017)	To investigate the impact of managerial ability on firm-level investment efficiency and future stock price crash risk.	X: Managerial ability Y: Investment efficiency and future stock price crash risk. control: firm-specific, size, growth, leverage, ROA,	 Managerial ability positive significant with investment efficiency Managerial ability negative significant with future stock price crash risk
Huanga & Sunb (2017)	To investigate the impact of managerial ability and real earnings management	X: Managerial ability Y: Real earnings management Control: size , ZSCORE, ROA, CFO, growth,	Managerial ability negative significant with real earnings management

 Table 2.3 Summary of studies on managerial efficiency and performance (Cont.)

Authors	Purpose	Variables	Results
Cox (2017)	To investigate the impact of managerial ability and growth opportunities on the operating and return performance	X: Managerial ability Y: Market cap, Stock return, Tobin's Q Control: Cash ratio, R&D intensity, net debt issuance, leverage, net	Managerial ability positive significant with market cap, stock return and Tobin's Q
Luo & Zhou (2017)	To investigate the impact of managerial ability on the tone of earnings announcements	X: Managerial ability Y: Tone of earnings announcement Control: ROA, size, MTB, , stock return volatility, CEO equity- based wealth, year and industry	Managerial ability positive significant with tone of earnings announcements

Table 2.3 Summary of studies on managerial efficiency and performance (Cont.)

2.5.4 Impact of Managerial Efficiency on Environmental, Social and Governance Performance

Lee et al. (2023) discovered that successful companies prioritize ESG implementation by raising awareness of ESG and integrating it into their overall strategy. Additionally, executives place emphasis on ESG reporting in line with annual reporting criteria to improve disclosure efficiency. Sustainability committees have been established to oversee and drive the ESG agenda, with some companies even assigning ESG duties and responsibilities to them. Listed companies are more likely to establish such committees than non-listed ones. Lastly, improving corporate sustainability can lead to several positive impacts, including efficient operations, cost reduction, improved brand image and credibility, and better risk management (SET, 2023).

Stakeholder theory and agency theory confirm the link between managerial efficiency and CSR performance. This suggests that the effectiveness of senior management impacts strategic decisions, sustainable business operations, and business outcomes. Welch & Yoon (2022) found that managers with greater efficiencies can optimize ESG performance, leading to improved firm performance due to their skills, expertise, experience, and knowledge necessary to promote business innovation, which

is crucial for business survival and growth (Shao et al., 2020). Previous studies showed that educational and skill-related characteristics enhance innovation and lead to higher performance (Andreou et al., 2015; Shao et al., 2020; Zhang, 2023). Other studies (Demerjian et al., 2012; Cox, 2017; Xu et al., 2022) found that managerial efficiency improves both accounting- and market-based performance. This suggests that ESG performance by capable managers can lead to innovation benefits that enhance business performance. In other words, if a company has efficient management, the relationship between ESG and company performance may be strengthened. Thus, the hypotheses are as follow:

H3a. Managerial efficiency moderates the positive relationship between ESG performance on ROA

H3b. Managerial efficiency moderates the positive relationship between ESG performance on Tobin's Q



Figure 2.4 Linking ESG performance, managerial efficiency and firm performance

2.5.5 Moderating Effect of Managerial Efficiency on Firm Performance

The available data aforementioned have not provided obvious evidence regarding firm performance. According to Jensen & Meckling (1976), institutional investors can represent good corporate governance mechanisms, which leads to a question

whether institutional investors actually increase firm performance. Since the occurrence of economic crisis in 1997, Southeast Asia has become a concrete example of the importance of corporate governance in developing countries. The economic losses and losses of investor capital come from the inefficiency of corporate governance mechanisms due to lack of monitoring and directing of the management, fraud, and misconduct of the management. Obviously, the management has significant influence firm performance. Thus, the characteristics of the management become an important factor in determining firm performance. The management that produces maximum efficiency is one of the characteristics that ensure honesty, transparency, and teamwork. Thus, managerial efficiency refers to the ability of the management based on their business skills, knowledge, and expertise in the industry to maximize corporate benefits within limited resources (Hendriksen, 1992; Demerjian et al., 2012).

Salehi et al., (2021), Ting et al., (2021), and Demerjian et al., (2012) found a significant positive correlation between managers' efficiency and firm performance. Kumar & Zbib, (2022) stated that during the COVID-19 pandemic, companies with high managerial efficiency have better stock price reactions than other companies in the same industry. It was also found that companies with high managerial efficiency witnessed higher raw and cumulative abnormal returns during the COVID-19 pandemic than those with low managerial efficiency. Companies with high managerial efficiency were found to achieve better returns on equity despite financial constraints caused by economic crisis. In this way, higher capabilities of the management can lead to more efficient management. In particular, the management's decisions can positively affect firm performance during crisis (Andreou et al., 2015). Hambrick & Quigley, (2014) discovered that capable managers can invest more than other managers. This is in line with Cheung et al. (2017), who found higher levels of managerial discretion allow more capable managers to raise firm performance.

Conflicts in findings regarding the correlation of institutional ownership and firm performance show that institutional ownership has to be well managed to improve firm performance. Corporate governance mechanisms can be implemented effectively with institutional ownership can (Simamora, 2023). High and well-managed corporate governance mechanisms are considered as a risk assessment, evaluation, monitoring, and controlling process when business uncertainty occurs, which can improve firm performance (Berthelot et al., 2010). Internal factors, such as manager contributions can also effectively improve firm performance. Since managers are in charge of business strategy, managerial efficiency is critical in determining the best shareholder value.

It is interesting to figure out whether managerial efficiency allows outlining better performance and value orientations that support the performance of Thai-listed companies. Thus, the hypothesis is proposed as follows:

H4a. Managerial efficiency moderates the positive relationship between institutional ownership on ROA

H4b. Managerial efficiency moderates the positive relationship between institutional ownership on Tobin's Q



Figure 2.5 Linking institutional ownership, managerial efficiency and firm performance.

Figure 2.5 presents the proposed model regarding a positive relationship between institutional ownership and firm performance moderated by managerial efficiency.

2.5.6 Control variables

This study employs five control variables to control company characteristics that can influence firm performance, namely firm size, financial leverage, firm growth, and year and industry fixed effects. While controlling differences in company characteristics, our research model includes control variables and industry and year fixed effects (Albitar et al., 2020; Velte, 2020; Xu et al., 2022). The control variables include firm size (SIZE), which is measured by the natural logarithm of total assets, as larger firms often have economies of scale that may be difficult to replicate. Previous research has also shown that firm size is related to stakeholders' interest in a firm's ESG activities. Firm leverage is separated into two risk factors: the ratio of total debt to total equity (LEV) as a proxy for unsystematic risk, and firm growth (GR) which measures the percentage change in sales and indicates whether the firm has been growing compared to the previous year (Velte, 2020; Albitar et al., 2020; Dkhili, 2023).

Firm size (SIZE): The firm size can impact its firm performance. The large firm the simpler it will be for it to obtain internal and external funding sources more small firms (Berger et al., 1995). The firm size is a reflection of its total assets. It can be said that the size of a company has a direct effect on the performance of the company, as large-scale companies tend to have strong performance due to their influence on future performance. The magnitude of a company is determined using the natural logarithms of total assets.

Firm leverage (LEV): Firm leverage is the capacity of businesses to use assets or funds with a fixed obligation to increase their profits. The greater the level of leverage, the greater the risk that the firm must assume and the greater the expected profit (Lang, 1996). In this study, leverage is measured as the ratio of total debt to equity; the greater the leverage ratio, the greater the firm's risk.

Firm growth (GR): Firms with high sales or asset growth values may have optimistic profit projections for the foreseeable future. Stakeholders view an indication of positive profit projections as an excellent opportunity for firm performance in the future. Utilizing growth rates on company growth, this study determines the level of growth.

Another control variable is **industry and year fixed effect**, in econometrics and panel data analysis, industry and year-fixed effects are common concepts. In a panel dataset, they are specific categories of dummy variables used to account for unobserved heterogeneity and time-specific effects. In econometrics, panel data refers to data acquired for the same group of individuals, firms, or entities over multiple time periods. For instance, a panel dataset may contain information on the financial performance of various companies over multiple years.

Industry fixed effect: Industry fixed effects are used to control for differences between industries or sectors that are not observable. In panel data analysis, distinct industry characteristics that are not captured by observable variables may influence the dependent variable of interest (e.g., company profits or productivity) despite not being captured by observable variables. By incorporating industry-fixed effects, econometricians can account for these unobserved industry-specific factors and isolate the effects of other relevant variables.

Year fixed effect: Year-fixed effects are employed to capture time-specific effects that are shared by all entities in a dataset during a given year. They are used to account for variables that influence all observations in the same manner over time. These year-specific effects may be the result of macroeconomic factors, policy changes, or other temporal influences that have a similar impact on all entities.

For example, including year-fixed effects can help control for factors such as global economic cycles that may affect all countries in a given year. In both instances, regression models incorporate fixed effects as dummy variables. The value of a dummy variable is either 0 or 1, indicating the absence or presence of a specific effect, accordingly. Controlling for other variables, the coefficient of these fixed effects provides information about the average effect of belonging to a particular industry or year. Incorporating industry and year-fixed effects in panel data analysis is essential for obtaining consistent and unbiased estimates, as they help address potential endogeneity and omitted variable bias issues that may arise as a result of unobserved heterogeneity and time-specific factors.

CHAPTER 3 RESEARCH METHODOLOGY

This study concentrates on how environment, social and governance performance and institutional ownership contribute to firm performance. In order to answer the research questions and examine the hypotheses, this chapter consists of sample and data sources, variables, and statistical models.

3.1 Statistical Analysis Model

The hypotheses were tested with regression analyses in SPSS and the Hayes PROCESS for SPSS developed by Hayes (2013). PROCESS is specifically designed to test complex models of moderation. With the Hayes PROCESS macro, it was possible to test the model in a more conservative and accurate way.

3.2 Research and Sampling Design

This research uses the non-probability sampling method, specifically the purposive sampling method, to choose a sample from the available population. In this method, the sample is chosen based on how well it meets the research needs. The sample has no negative shareholders' equity value. This sample research also uses listed firms with a book value of equity positive. According to Simamora (2023), companies with negative equity are more likely to engage in divestments than investments. It denotes that no risk investments in businesses with negative equity will be made. Furthermore, the positive book value of equity is used to avoid the bias inherent in Tobin's Q measurement. The sample includes 373 non-financial firms (2,104 firm-year observations) listed on the Market of the Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET), for which data are manually collected from 2016 to 2021. The data are collected from SETSMART, which provides the financial statement information as well as financial market data of Thailand companies.

 Table 3.1 Research sample

Sample selection process	Firms	Obs.
Non- finance firms listed in Thailand Stock Exchange 2016–2021	523	3,138
Data missing (insufficient data to construct variables)	(150)	(900)
Total	373	2,238
Negative equity		(14)
Data outlier		(120)
Net sample		2,104

The sample selection process begins with downloading data from 2016 to 2021. The obtain financial statement data from the SET SMART database and companies' websites. After merging the above data sets, eliminate observations with insufficient data to construct the variables and further delete 150 firms. The final sample consists of 2,104 firm-year observations.

Table 3.2 Describes the sample fiscal year

Year	No. of observations	(%)	Cumulative (%)
2016	299	14.21%	14.21%
2017	334	15.87%	30.09%
2018	362	17.21%	47.29%
2019	2 368	17.49%	64.78%
2020	368	17.49%	82.27%
2021	373	17.73%	100.00%
	2,104	100%	7

Table 3.2 presents the distribution of observations by fiscal year. In terms of the number of yearly observations, there is an upward trend for the period of 2016 - 2021.

Industry	Description	Firms	Observation
1	Argo & Food Industry	47	267
2	Consumer Products	27	151
3	Industrials	68	375
4	Property & Construction	78	437
5	Resources	41	235
6	Services	79	454
7	Technology	33	185
	Total	373	2,104

Table 3.3 Sample distribution by industry

Table 3.3 presents the sample distribution by industry (based on the Stock Exchange of Thailand.)

3.3 Research Variables

3.3.1 Dependents Variable

The study's dependents variable is firm performance, which is measured by two measures: ROA and Tobin's Q. ROA is used to measure accounting-based performance, whereas Tobin's Q is used to measure market-based performance. A combination of these measurements is typically used in empirical studies focusing on ESG and firm performance, as evidenced by previous studies (Alareeni & Hamdan, 2020; Albitar et al., 2020; Velte, 2020; Duque-Grisales & Aguilera-Caracuel, 2021; Tampakoudis et al., 2021; Dkhili, 2023). ROA is calculated by dividing net income by total assets, while Tobin's Q is calculated by dividing the market value of equity and debt by total assets.

ROA is to gauge the company's profitability by measuring how effectively it utilizes its assets to generate profit. It calculates the net income as a percentage of the total assets, providing insights into the company's ability to generate profits relative to its asset base. A higher ROA suggests that the company is efficient in generating profits from its assets. The formula for ROA is as follows:

Net Income / Total Assets

Tobin's Q is a financial measure that assesses the market value of a company in relation to the total value of its assets. It is utilized to evaluate long-term performance and

growth by comparing the market value of a company's outstanding equity and debt with its total assets. If Tobin's Q is greater than 1, it indicates that the market value of the company's assets surpasses the book value, suggesting that the company has generated value for its shareholders. Conversely, if tobin's q is below 1, it suggests that the company's assets are valued lower than their book value. The formula for Tobin's Q is as follows:

(Market Value of Equity + Market Value of Debt) / Total Assets

3.3.2 Independents Variable

ESG performance: The methodology for designing ESG performance and institutional ownership are considered independent variables. The environmental criteria for this study involve assessing carbon emissions (GHGs), water usage, and waste generation. The social criteria include examining employee injury rates, employee turnover, and personnel costs, as outlined by the United Nations in 2019. The disclosure proportion of large companies trading on a given stock exchange is used to measure the E and S factors (Velte, 2020). To evaluate governance performance, daily calculations are conducted based on the Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD). Finally, the overall ESG score is determined by assigning weights of 24%, 35%, and 41% to the E, S, and G factors, respectively (SEC, 2023).

Institutional ownership: Institutional ownership is percentage of shares held by the top five institutional investors with an ownership interest (%TOP5)

3.3.3 Moderator Variable

The moderator variable in this study is managerial efficiency (M_Score), which is measured based on industry and year, as developed by Demerjian et al. (2012). Higher score indicates a higher efficiency of manager. To proxy the construct of managerial efficiency, a two-step method is used. In the first stage, data envelopment analysis (DEA) is used to measure efficiency by using seven inputs (inventory carrying costs, selling and administrative expenditures, property, plant and equipment, operating leases, research and development costs, goodwill, and other intangible assets) divided by revenues to represent outputs (firm efficiency).

$$\theta = \frac{Sales}{COGS + SG&A + OpsLese + PPE + GW + OtherInt + R&D}$$

 θ is firm efficiency. Sale revenue is the output, as firms' main goal is to generate sales. Firm efficiency refers to the maximization of sales at the lowest possible cost per sale. The cost to produce sales has seven inputs (Demerjian et al., 2012).

There are firm and top manager-specific factors that contribute to the firm's efficacy. Factors unique to top managers are used to evaluate managerial skills. In the second stage, total firm efficiency is regressed on various company characteristics, including firm size, market share, free cash flow ratio, life cycle, firm age, number of segments, and a dummy variable for foreign currency. The following model is proposed:

$\theta = \beta_0 + \beta_1 FirmSize + \beta_2 FirmMarket + \beta_3 FreeCashFlow + \beta_4 FirmAge + \beta_5 BusinessSegment + \beta_6 ForignCurrency + YearDummy + \varepsilon$

3.3.4 Controls Variable

To address endogeneity concerns and based on the literature on ESG performance, firm performance, and managerial efficiency, our research model includes control variables and industry and year fixed effects (Albitar et al., 2020; Velte, 2020; Xu et al., 2022). The control variables include firm size (SIZE), which is measured by the natural logarithm of total assets, as larger firms often have economies of scale that may be difficult to replicate. Previous research has also shown that firm size is related to stakeholders' interest in a firm's ESG activities. Firm leverage is separated into two risk factors: the ratio of total debt to total equity (LEV) as a proxy for unsystematic risk, and firm growth (GR) which measures the percentage change in sales and indicates whether the firm has been growing compared to the previous year (Velte, 2020; Albitar et al., 2020; Dkhili, 2023).

Variables	Notation	Description		
Return on assets	ROA	Net income divided by total assets		
Tobin's Q	Q	The market value of equity and debt capital		
		divided by total assets.		
ESG performance	ESG	Determined by assigning weights of 24%, 35%,		
		and 41% to the E, S, and G factors, respectively		
Institutional ownership	INS	The percentage of shares held by the top five		
		institutional investors with an ownership		
		(%TOP5).		
Managerial efficiency	M_Score	Demerjian et al. (2012) model		
Firm size	LnFS	Logarithm of total assets		
Firm Leverage	LEV	The firm's debt-to-equity ratio		
Sales growth	GR	The firm's annual sales growth rate		
Industry	INDUS	A dummy variables (fixed effect)		
Year	TIMES	A dummy variables (fixed effect)		

 Table 3.4 Definition of variables

3.4 Study Model

The dependent variable of this study is firm performance, which consists of two components: financial and market performance, also consider control variables (Velte, 2020; Albitar et al., 2020; Dkhili, 2023). The equation below is used to present the link between ESG performance and firm performance.

ESG Model

$$Perf_{i,t} = \beta_0 + \beta_1 ESG_{i,t} + \beta_2 M_Score_{i,t} + \beta_3 ESG * M_Score_{i,t} + \beta_4 LnFS_{i,t} + \beta_5 LEV_{i,t} + \beta_6 GR_{i,t} + Year/Industry Fixed Effects + \varepsilon_{i,t} \dots \dots \dots \dots \dots \dots \dots \dots (1)$$

This equation is further divided into two sub-equations based on the following performance criteria:

$$\begin{aligned} ROA_{i,t} &= \beta_0 + \beta_1 ESG_{i,t} + \beta_2 M_Score_{i,t} \\ &+ \beta_3 ESG * M_Score_{i,t} + \beta_4 LnFS_{i,t} + \beta_5 LEV_{i,t} + \beta_6 GR_{i,t} \\ &+ Year/Industry Fixed Effects + \varepsilon_{i,t} \dots \end{aligned}$$
(2)

$$Q_{i,t} = \beta_0 + \beta_1 ESG_{i,t} + \beta_2 M_Score_{i,t} + \beta_3 ESG * M_Score_{i,t} + \beta_4 LnFS_{i,t} + \beta_5 LEV_{i,t} + \beta_6 GR_{i,t} + Year/Industry Fixed Effects + \varepsilon_{i,t} \dots (3)$$

Institutional ownership model

$$Perf_{i,t} = \beta_0 + \beta_1 INS_{i,t} + \beta_2 M_S core_{i,t} + \beta_3 INS * M_S core_{i,t} + \beta_4 LnFS_{i,t} + \beta_5 LEV_{i,t} + \beta_6 GR_{i,t} + Year/Industry Fixed Effects + \varepsilon_{i,t} \dots (4)$$

This equation is further divided into two sub-equations based on the following performance criteria:

where Perf represents the dependent variable which is firm performance measured against two models (ROA and Q). β_0 represents the constant while β_{1-6} represents the slope of the independent and controls variables.

3.4.1 Model Test: The two-way Interaction Effect between the ESG, and Firm Performance on Managerial Efficiency



Figure 3.1 Two-way interaction effect between ESG performance and firm performance on managerial efficiency conceptual diagram

Model 1 for PROCESS for SPSS (Hayes, A.F., 2013), The first model examines the effect of environment, social and governance performance on firm performance (H1a/b) and interaction effect (H3a/b). It represents a conceptual diagram in figure 3.1 and a statistical diagram as shown in figure 3.2.



Figure 3.2 Two-way interaction effect between ESG performance and firm performance on managerial efficiency statistical diagram

3.4.2 Model Test: The two-way Interaction Effect between the Institutional Ownership, and Firm Performance on Managerial Efficiency



Figure 3.3 Two- way interaction effect between institutional ownership and firm performance on managerial efficiency conceptual diagram

Model 2 for PROCESS for SPSS (Hayes, A.F., 2013), The second model examines the effect of institutional ownership on firm performance (H2a/b) and interaction effect (H4a/b). It represents a conceptual diagram in figure 3.3 and a statistical diagram as shown in figure 3.4



Figure 3.4 Two- way interaction effect between institutional ownership and firm performance on managerial efficiency statistical diagram

3.5 Data Preparation

Careful preparation of data was prepared and assumptions were checked to ensure that the sample was consistent with the assumptions of the analysis techniques. Monitoring will help ensure that proposed analysis is feasible and runs smoothly, valid results are obtained and analytical results are not unduly influenced by anomalies or errors.

3.5.1 Missing Data

The thresholds for out of the 523 companies that were included, 373 had data required to compute variables for some years (ranging from a missing data for one year for some companies, up to 6 years of missing data for others).

3.5.2 Outlier Detection and Cleaning

The outliers were then determined by using Mahalanobis distance is the distance of a case from the centroid of the remaining cases where the centroid is the point created at the intersection of the means of all the variables. No outliers were estimated (Mahalanobis 53.818, p < 0.001) (Hair, et al., 2013). Lastly, to verify for normal distribution, skewness and kurtosis values were analyzed. These values suggest that the data in the sample had a normal distribution because they fall within the suggested threshold values of ± 3 for skewness and ± 10 for kurtosis, respectively, as advised by Kline (2016).



CHAPTER 4 RESEARCH RESULT

The objective of this chapter is to address the results of the PROCESS analysis used to test the hypotheses as presented in Chapter 3. The results and the previous empirical studies are discussed in this part.

4.1 Descriptive statistics

Variables	Obs.	Mean	Median	SD	Min	Max
Panel A: Firm perfo	rmance	1				
ROA	2,104	4.94	4.33	7.24	-19.27	29.88
Q	2,104	1.423	1.165	0.700	0.524	3.055
Panel B: Independer	ıt variables					
ESG	2,104	0.592	0.478	0.257	0.296	1.000
E	2,104	0.321	0.000	0.444	0.000	1.000
S	2,104	0.517	0.286	0.326	0.143	1.000
G	2,104	0.813	0.800	0.157	0.600	1.000
INS	2,104	20.08	12.62	19.95	0.00	70.92
Panel C: Moderator	variable					
M_Score	2,104	0.743	0.714	0.355	0.002	1.799
Panel D: Control va	riables					
FS	2,104	39,868	6,434	158,426	450	3,078,019
LnFS	2,104	15.934	15.677	1.540	13.016	20.848
LEV	2,104	0.876	0.736	0.599	0.102	2.356
GR	2,104	3.72	2.15	21.72	-38.89	59.38

Table 4.1 Descriptive statistics on the variables of the study

Note: This table presents the number of observations, pooled mean, median, standard deviation, minimum and maximum of the dependent variables (return on assets: ROA, Tobin's Q: Q), independent variables (environmental social governance: ESG, institutional ownership: INS), moderator variable (managerial efficiency: M_Score) control variables (firm size: FS, firm leverage: LEV, firm growth: GR). The sample consists of 2,104 firm-year observations from 2016 to 2021, representing 373 individual public firms in Thailand. Units of variable measurement: E, S, G, ESG, M_Score (Score); INS, ROA, GR (%); Q, LEV; (Ratio); FS (millions Bath), LnFS – The natural logarithm of firm size

Table 4.1 presents a summary of the descriptive statistics for the variables in this model. Panel A displays the firm performance variables, with the mean and median

values of return on assets (ROA) of 4.9% (4.33%) and Tobin's Q (Q) of 1.423 times (1.165 times). Panel B contains the ESG scores, ranging from 0 to 1. The mean and median values of ESG are 0.592 score (0.478 score). The mean and median values of environmental dimension (E) are 0.321 score (0.00 score). The mean and median values of social dimension (S) are 0.517 score (0.286 score). The mean and median values of governance (G) are 0.813 score (0.80 score). The governance (G) scores are higher than the others. The mean and median values of institutional ownership (INS) is 20.08% (12.62%) Panel C shows the moderator variable (M_Score) with the mean and median values of 0.743 score (0.714 score). Panel D provides descriptive statistics for control variables, such as firm size (FS), nature logarithm of firm size (LnFS), leverage (LEV), and firm growth (GR), with means of 15.934, 0.876, times and 3.72%, respectively, and medians of 15.677, 0.736, times and 2.15%, respectively. For firm size (FS), the lowest value is 39,868 million Baht, the highest value is 3,078,019 million Baht, and the average value is 39,868 million Baht.

4.2 Variables Diagnostics.

4.2.1 Normality Test

Before testing the hypothesis, the normality test was conducted in this study. The results are shown in Table 4.2

	N	Skewness		Kurtosis	
Variables	statistic	statistic	Std. error	statistic	Std. error
Dependent: ROA	2,104	.373	.053	2.071	.107
Q	2,104	.998	.053	185	.107
Independent: ESG	2,104	.678	.053	-1.219	.107
INS	2,104	.999	.053	050	.107
Moderator: M_Score	2,104	.867	.053	1.167	.107
Control: FS	2,104	11.89	.053	178.59	.107
LnFS	2,104	.670	.053	.063	.107
LEV	2,104	.442	.053	-1.037	.107
GR	2,104	.519	.053	.208	.107

 Table 4.2 Normality test of sample distribution

Note: This table presents the normality test (skewness and kurtosis) of the dependent variables (return on assets: ROA, Tobin's Q: Q), independent variables (environmental social governance: ESG, institutional ownership: INS), moderator variable (managerial efficiency: M_Score) control variables (firm size: FS, LnFS – The natural logarithm of firm size; firm leverage: LEV, firm growth: GR). The sample consists of 2,104 firm-year observations from 2016 to 2021, representing 373 individual public firms in Thailand.

According to Table 4.2, The data were not normally distributed, abnormally distributed data may not have an impact on the study's credibility. Since the sample was large, it was assumed that the data were not normally distributed. Thus, the natural logarithms (LnFS) of these variables were used to solve this issue. The range of skewness was between 0.373 and 0.999, while the range of kurtosis was between -1.219 and 2.071. These values suggest that the data in the sample had a normal distribution because they fall within the suggested threshold values of ± 3 for skewness and ± 10 for kurtosis, respectively, as advised by Kline (2016).

4.2.2 Correlation and Auto-Correlation

In order to assess the importance of the regression analysis in this study, a statistical technique used to investigate the assumptions and relationships between the variables in a multiple regression analysis had to be applied after the model was estimated. This is achieved by adopting diagnostic tests that take into account the correlation among variables, such as multicollinearity, which includes tolerance and VIF, and heteroscedasticity. The dataset's autocorrelation is determined using the Durbin–Watson

testing on a scale of 1.5–2.5 for the indices and time series to determine if any form of autocorrelation exists.

Variables	ESG mo	odel	INS model		
	Correlat	ions	Correlations		
	Tolerance	VIF	Tolerance	VIF	
ESG/ INS	0.724	1.381	1.049	0.953	
M_Score	0.857 🛆	1.166	1.141	0.876	
ESG x M_Score/ INS x M_Score	.939	1.065	1.020	0.980	
LN_FS	0.564	1.774	1.374	0.728	
LEV	0.758	1.320	1.314	0.761	
GR	0.901	1.110	1.111	0.900	
Model	Autocorrelation	test Durbin–	Autocorrelatio	n test Durbin–	
	Watson (DW)	Watson (DW)		
ROA	1.995	5	1.989		
Q	1.917	7	1.873		

Table 4.3 The result of correlation and auto-correlation analysis

Note: This table presents the correlation (tolerance, VIF) and auto-correlation (Durbin–Watson) analysis of the dependent variables (return on assets: ROA, Tobin's Q: Q), independent variables (environmental social governance: ESG, institutional ownership: INS), moderator variable (managerial efficiency: M_Score) control variables (firm size: lnFS; LnFS – The natural logarithm of firm size; firm leverage: LEV, firm growth: GR).

The study used mean centering variables before analyzing moderated PROCESS regression equations has been proposed for statistical (reduced multicollinearity) and substantive (better comprehension of the resulting regression equations) grounds. In the least squares regression, this article compares centered and raw score analysis. The two methods are shown to be functionally comparable, producing identical hypothesis tests linked with the moderation effect and regression equations. PROCESS for SPSS developed by Hayes (2013) was utilized in this study. Hayes recommended using mean centering before regression analysis since the antecedent variable (X) and the interaction term (XM) are highly correlated. This can lead to multicollinearity and results in poor estimation of regression coefficients, large standard errors, and decreased power of the statistical test of interaction.

The effectiveness of the linear regression model is based on the assumption that the independent variables are not correlated with each other. When multicollinearity is present, the standard errors of calculated coefficients tend to rise. Table 4.3 provides information on the collinearity statistics, tolerance, and variance inflation factor (VIF), and it indicates that they are all within acceptable limits (tolerance > 0.1 and VIF < 10). This shows that there is no interdependence among the explanatory variables, and therefore, none of the variables should be removed from the multivariate analysis.

Through the examination of the Durbin-Watson (DW) and the residual autocorrelation test, it was found that the DW values of the models were between 1.5 and 2.5, indicating no autocorrelation problem that could distort the regression outcomes, or that could be anticipated in panel data if the error terms were linked to the data of the previous year, as suggested by Kline (2016). These results are reported in Table 4.3

4.3 Panel Regression Tests (Hausman Test for Fixed vs Random Effects)

A test for poolability [pooled ordinary least square (OLS) versus fixed effect] and the Hausman (1978) test can also be used to choose between fixed effects (FE) and random effects (RE) estimation methods in panel data analysis. Panel data refers to a dataset that combines both cross-sectional and time-series observations for the same individuals or entities over multiple time periods.

The null hypothesis of orthogonality in regression models suggests that the test statistic H, which follows a chi-square distribution with degrees of freedom equal to the number of repressors in the model, is used to test the significance of individual regression coefficients. A *p*-value of 0.05 is interpreted as evidence that, at conventional levels of significance, the two models differ sufficiently to reject the null hypothesis and, consequently, to reject the random effects model in favor of the fixed effects model (Hausman, 1978). According to estimation models, the Hausman test has been applied to each model to determine whether the fixed effect model or the random effect model is more applicable (Table 4.4).

Model test	p-value	Accept/reject	Result
Model 1 ESG \rightarrow ROA	0.000	H_0 : reject	Fixed effects
Model 2 ESG \rightarrow Tobin's Q	0.000	H_0 : reject	Fixed effects
Model 3 INS \rightarrow ROA	0.000	H_0 : reject	Fixed effects
Model 4 INS \rightarrow Tobin's Q	0.000	H_0 : reject	Fixed effects

Tal	ble 4	4.4	Goodne	ess of	fit	for	the	panel	data	mod	el	S
-----	-------	-----	--------	--------	-----	-----	-----	-------	------	-----	----	---

Note: This table presents the goodness of fit for the panel data models of the dependent variables model 1-4 (return on assets: ROA, Tobin's Q: Q)

4.4 Robustness Checks

To ensure the validity of the moderation analysis, a robustness check was performed by using multiple regression as an alternative measure for moderation. The results of this test were consistent with the original analysis using Andrew F. Hayes' Process for moderation of managerial efficiency between ESG, institutional ownership and firm performance. Please refer to table 4.7 and 4.14 detailed robustness checks the outcomes of the effect and the findings of the moderated multiple regression analysis.

4.5 PROCESS Regression Analysis

In this study, the proposed model and hypotheses were evaluated using the Hayes Process (2013). Hayes's conditional process analysis, also known as the analysis of moderated, estimates models that enable for the moderation of a mechanism using ordinary least squares regression-based path analysis (Hayes et al., 2017). Hayes et al. (2017) describe the process macro introduced by Hayes (2013) as a computational instrument with models preprogrammed into the process that estimates all path analyses for each equation individually. The Hayes process was utilized because it generates all the necessary statistics (conditional indirect effects and the index of moderated) and implements bootstrapping in a manner that facilitates inferences based on these statistics. Additionally, the process avoids the piecemeal nature of "estimation with regression" associated with indirect effect and concentrates on integration across the pieces (Hayes et al., 2017). Using the Hayes process macro, the entire model was simultaneously evaluated, allowing for a more conservative and accurate evaluation.

4.6 Proposed Model and Hypotheses Testing: ESG Model

4.6.1 Results from Regression Moderating Effect of Managerial Efficiency (M_Score) on ESG and Firm Performance Relationship

PROCESS Regression Analysis

Table 4.5 – 4.6 presents the results of the moderation analysis of the relationship between ESG and firm performance (ROA and Tobin's Q) through the methodology of Hayes (2013). The results indicate that there is a significant interaction between managerial efficiency and ROA, as evidenced by the *p*-value 0.001 (p < 0.01) and LLCI and ULCI values (0.017 and 0.067, respectively). Similarly, for the interaction between managerial efficiency and Tobin's Q, the *p*-value 0.023 is significant (p < 0.05), and the LLCI and ULCI values are 0.038 and 0.518, respectively. These findings demonstrate that the relationship between ESG and firm performance is moderated by managerial efficiency.

Model 1 ROA							
Variables	Expected	В	SE ß	t- value	p-value	LLCI	ULCI
constant		-0.061	0.017	-3.601	0.000	-0.094	-0.028
ESG	H1a: +	-0.004	0.012	-0.335	0.738	-0.026	0.019
M_Score	+	0.061	0.009	6.937	0.000***	0.044	0.078
Int_1	H3a: +	0.042	0.013	3.260	0.001***	0.017	0.067
LnFS	+	0.006	0.001	5.462	0.000***	0.004	0.008
LEV	-	-0.039	0.002	-16.341	0.000***	-0.043	-0.034
GR	+	0.074	0.006	12.443	0.000***	0.063	0.086
$N = 2,104, R S_{c}$	quare= 39.61%	%, R Square	Change =	3.1%, F 80.4	436***		
Conditional eff	ects of the foc	al predictor	at values o	f the modera	tor(s):		
M_Score	M_Score	effect	SE β	t- value	p-value	LLCI	ULCI
Low	0.388	0.012	0.008	1.627	0.104	-0.003	0.027
Medium	0.743	0.027	0.006	4.803	0.000***	0.016	0.038
High	1.098	0.042	0.007	6.078	0.000***	0.028	0.055
Conditional eff	ect of focal pro	edictor at va	alues of the	moderator:			
Statistical	M_Score	effect	SE β	t- value	p-value	LLCI	ULCI
significance							
insignificant	0.002	-0.004	0.012	-0.328	0.743	-0.026	0.019
	0.092	0.000	0.011	-0.002	0.998	-0.021	0.021
	0.182	0.004	0.010	0.390	0.697	-0.015	0.022
	0.272	0.008	0.009	0.863	0.388	-0.010	0.024
	0.361	0.011	0.008	1.435	0.151	-0.004	0.027

Table 4.5 PROCESS regression moderating effect of managerial efficiency on ESG and

 ROA relationship

Model 1 ROA							
Variables	Expected	В	SE β	t- value	p-value	LLCI	ULCI
indicate	M_Score	effect	$SE\beta$	t- value	p-value	LLCI	ULCI
positive	0.432	0.014	0.007	1.961	0.0500**	0.000	0.028
significance	0.451	0.015	0.007	2.118	0.0343**	0.001	0.029
Significance	0.541	0.019	0.006	2.908	0.0037**	0.006	0.031
	0.631	0.022	0.006	3.767	0.000***	0.011	0.034
	0.721	0.026	0.006	4.610	0.000***	0.015	0.037
	0.811	0.030	0.006	5.317	0.000***	0.019	0.041
	0.901	0.034	0.006	5.797	0.000***	0.022	0.045
	0.990	0.037	0.006	6.035	0.000***	0.025	0.050
	1.080	0.041	0.007	6.084	0.000***	0.028	0.054
	1.170	0.045	0.008	6.015	0.000***	0.030	0.060
	1.260	0.049	0.008	5.885	0.000***	0.032	0.065
	1.350	0.052	0.009	5.731	0.000***	0.035	0.070
	1.440	0.056	0.010	5.573	0.000***	0.036	0.076
	1.530	0.060	0.011	5.422	0.000***	0.038	0.082
	1.619	0.064	0.012	5.281	0.000***	0.040	0.087
	1.709	0.067	0.013	5.153	0.000***	0.042	0.093
	1.799	0.071	0.014	5.037	0.000***	0.043	0.099

Table 4.5 PROCESS regression moderating effect of managerial efficiency on ESG and

 ROA relationship (Cont.)

Note: This table presents PROCESS regression moderating effect of managerial efficiency (M_Score) on ESG and firm performance relationship analysis of the dependent variable (return on assets: ROA), independent variable (environmental social governance: ESG, moderator variable (managerial efficiency: M_Score) control variables (firm size: lnFS, firm leverage: LEV, firm growth: GR). The sample consists of 2,104 firm-year observations from 2016 to 2021, representing 373 individual public firms in Thailand.



***, ** indicate statistical significance at the 0.01, 0.05 levels, respectively



Figure 4.1 show the investigate the nature of the interactions term, plots of the effects of ESG performance on ROA at different levels of managerial efficiency (M_Score) were constructed. As depicted in Figure 4.1 and in support of Hypothesis 3a, the moderating effect demonstrates that at low managerial efficiency, ESG performance has no impact on ROA, whereas, at medium and high managerial efficiency (up to 0.432 score), ESG performance has a significant positive effect on ROA.

Table 4.6 PROCESS regression moderating effect of managerial efficiency on ESG and

 Tobin's Q relationship

Model 2 Tobin's Q							
Variables	Expected	В	SE ß	t- value	p-value	LLCI	ULCI
constant		1.301	0.162	8.045	0.000	0.984	1.618
ESG	H1b: +	0.137	0.110	1.245	0.213	-0.079	0.354
M_Score	+	0.645	0.084	7.638	0.000***	0.479	0.810
Int_1	H3b: +	0.278	0.123	2.268	0.023**	0.038	0.518
LnFS	+	-0.017	0.010	-1.677	0.094	-0.037	0.003
LEV	-	-0.055	0.023	-2.412	0.016**	-0.099	-0.010
GR	+	0.175	0.057	3.050	0.002***	0.062	0.287
N = 2,104, R	<i>R Square= 40.48</i> %	6, R Square	e Change =	5.1%, F 83.4	447***		
Conditional	effects of the foca	al predictor	at values of	f the modera	tor(s):		
M_Score	M_Score	effect	SE β	t- value	p-value	LLCI	ULCI
Low	0.388	0.245	0.073	3.377	0.001***	0.103	0.388
Medium	0.743	0.344	0.054	6.354	0.000***	0.238	0.450
High	1.098	0.443	0.066	6.694	0.000***	0.313	0.573
Conditional	effect of focal pre	edictor at va	alues of the	moderator:			
Statistical	M_Score	effect	SE β	t- value	p-value	LLCI	ULCI
significance	e and	0.100	0.110		0.010	0.050	0.054
insignifican	t 0.002	0.138	0.110	1.253	0.210	-0.078	0.354
	0.092	0.163	0.101	1.619	0.106	-0.035	0.360
indicate	0.164	0.183	0.093	1.961	0.050**	0.000	0.366
positive	0.182	0.188	0.092	2.053	0.040**	0.008	0.368
significance	e 0.272	0.213	0.083	2.568	0.010***	0.050	0.376
	0.361	0.238	0.075	3.177	0.002***	0.091	0.385
	0.451	0.263	0.068	3.883	0.000***	0.130	0.396
	0.541	0.288	0.062	4.668	0.000 * * *	0.167	0.409
	0.631	0.313	0.057	5.476	0.000 * * *	0.201	0.425
	0.721	0.338	0.055	6.201	0.000***	0.231	0.445
	0.811	0.363	0.054	6.720	0.000***	0.257	0.469
	0.901	0.388	0.056	6.961	0.000***	0.279	0.497
	0.990	0.413	0.060	6.942	0.000***	0.296	0.529
	1.080	0.438	0.065	6.747	0.000***	0.311	0.565
	1.170	0.463	0.072	6.463	0.000***	0.322	0.603
	1.260	0.488	0.079	6.151	0.000***	0.332	0.643
	1.350	0.513	0.088	5.847	0.000***	0.341	0.685
	1.440	0.538	0.097	5.566	0.000***	0.348	0.727

Table 4.6 PROCESS regression moderating effect of managerial efficiency on ESG and

 Tobin's Q relationship (Cont.)

Model 2 Tobin's Q							
Variables	Expected	В	SE β	t- value	p-value	LLCI	ULCI
	M_Score	effect	SE β	t- value	p-value	LLCI	ULCI
indicate	1.530	0.563	0.106	5.312	0.000***	0.355	0.770
positive	1.619	0.588	0.116	5.086	0.000***	0.361	0.814
significance	1.709	0.613	0.125	4.886	0.000***	0.367	0.859
	1.799	0.638	0.135	4.708	0.000***	0.372	0.903

Note: This table presents PROCESS regression moderating effect of managerial efficiency (M_Score) on ESG and firm performance relationship analysis of the dependent variable (Tobin's Q: Q), independent variable (environmental social governance: ESG), moderator variable (managerial efficiency: M_Score) control variables (firm size: lnFS, firm leverage: LEV, firm growth: GR). The sample consists of 2,104 firm-year observations from 2016 to 2021, representing 373 individual public firms in Thailand.

***, ** indicate statistical significance at the 0.01, 0.05 levels, respectively



Figure 4.2 Moderating effect of managerial efficiency (M_Score) on ESG and Tobin's Q relationship

To investigate the nature of the interactions term, plots of the effects of ESG performance on Tobin's Q at different levels of managerial efficiency (M_Score) were constructed. As depicted in Figure 4.2 and in support of Hypothesis 3b, the moderating effect demonstrates that at low managerial efficiency, ESG performance has no impact on Tobin's Q, whereas, at managerial efficiency up to 0.164, ESG performance has a significant positive effect on Tobin's Q.

Table 4.5 - 4.6 reveal that there is no correlation between the performance of Environmental, Social, and Governance (ESG) and the firm's overall performance in Thailand, regarding both the return on assets (ROA) and Tobin's Q. These results suggest that ESG practices do not have a substantial impact on the company's performance. The study concludes that enhancing ESG performance does not translate to better business performance, which aligns with the findings of previous research conducted by Utz et al. (2014) and Junius et al. (2020).

The results of the moderated regression analysis demonstrate that there is a significant and positive correlation between managerial efficiency and conscientiousness, which has a direct impact on the relationship between ESG and firm performance. These findings imply that effective management is a crucial factor in a company's ESG performance and overall success. These findings stress the significance of prioritizing both managerial efficiency and ESG performance, and offer important implications for researchers, regulators, and companies.

The results suggest that simply implementing ESG practices is not enough to improve performance, as companies cannot rely solely on their ESG disclosures to gain the trust of various stakeholders. Rather, high levels of managerial efficiency are essential to realize the potential benefits of ESG, increasing management efficiency and reducing business risks, ultimately enhancing competitive advantage and promoting sustainable development (Cox, 2017; Welch & Yoon, 2022). The study further emphasizes the need for effective ESG regulations in Thailand to encourage sustainable development. The stakeholder-agency theory provides a possible explanation for why listed companies are required to report ESG data, despite voluntary disclosure.

Robustness checks (multiple regression analysis)

Table 4.7 presents robustness checks the outcomes of the direct effect and the findings of the moderated multiple regression analysis. It provides a summary of the interaction between the two models, ROA and Tobin's Q, including beta coefficients, t-statistics, and p-values.

Variables	Expected sign	Model 1 ROA	Model 2 Q
ESG	H1a/b: +	-0.0039 (-0.335)	0.1374 (1.245)
M_Score	+	0.061 (6.397***)	0.6445 (7.638***)
$ESG \times M_Score$	H3a/b: +	0.0417 (3.260***)	0.2780 (2.268**)
LnFS	+	0.0058 (5.462***)	-0.0171 (-1.677)
LEV	-	-0.0386 (-16.341***)	-0.0547 (-2.412**)
GR	+	0.0744 (12.443***)	0.1749 (3.050***)
Industry Effects		Yes	Yes
Year Effects		Yes	Yes
Constant		-0.0607 (-3.601***)	1.3008 (8.045***)
Ν		2,104	2,104
R Square		39.61%	40.48%
Adj R Square		39.12%	39.99%
R Square change		3.1%	5.1%
F	L'AL	80.436***	83.447***

Table 4.7 Multiple regression moderating effect of managerial efficiency on ESG and firm performance relationship (ROA and Tobin's Q)

Note: This table presents multiple regression moderating effect of managerial efficiency (M_Score) on ESG and firm performance (beta, *t*-value) relationship analysis of the dependent variables (return on assets: ROA, Tobin's Q: Q), independent variable (environmental social governance: ESG), moderator variable (managerial efficiency: M_Score) control variables (firm size: LnFS, firm leverage: LEV, firm growth: GR). The sample consists of 2,104 firm-year observations from 2016 to 2021, representing 373 individual public firms in Thailand.

***, ** indicate statistical significance at the 0.01, 0.05 levels, respectively (regression coefficients below the t-values in parentheses)

Table 4.7 reveals that there is no significant relationship between the performance of environmental, social, and governance (ESG) and the firm performance in the Thai listed companies, regarding both the return on assets (ROA) and Tobin's Q (Q). These results suggest that ESG practices do not have a substantial impact on the company's performance (p > 0.05). The study concludes that enhancing ESG performance does not translate to better business performance, which aligns with the findings of previous research conducted by Utz et al. (2014) and Junius et al. (2020).

The results of the moderated regression analysis demonstrate that there is a significant and positive relationship between managerial efficiency (M_Score) and conscientiousness, which has a direct impact on the relationship between ESG and firm performance. Specifically, the statistical values reveal that for ROA, the beta coefficient

is 0.0417, the *t*-value is 3.260, and the *p*-value is less than 0.01. Similarly, for tobin's q, the beta coefficient is 0.2780, the *t*-value is 2.268, and the *p*-value is less than 0.05. These findings imply that effective management is a crucial factor in a company's ESG performance and overall success.

4.6.2 Additional specification test

In this subsection, an additional specification is conducted. The additional test is motivated by Drempetic et al., (2020) and Bissoondoyal-Bheenick et al., (2023) that examination of the contemporaneous relationship between ESG and firm performance. However, the role of firm size in explaining the relationship between ESG and firm performance. Nonetheless, the firm size can be explaining the relationship between ESG and firm performance. Larger firms are more likely to invest in ESG activities due to economies of scale in order to better reflect stakeholder demands, and larger firms often have more resources and capabilities, which can give them a competitive advantage in addressing environmental, social, and governance (ESG) performance.


Variables	L	arge firm:	3)	Sm	Small firms (n = 1,391)			
variables	Mean	SD	Min	Max	Mean	SD	Min	Max
Panel A: Fi	rm perform	ance						
ROA	7.07	6.64	-16.79	29.88	3.84	7.30	-19.27	29.48
Q	1.71	0.74	0.55	3.05	1.28	0.63	0.52	3.06
Panel B: Independent variables								
ESG	0.62	0.32	0.04	1.00	0.40	0.25	0.04	1.00
Е	0.53	0.48	0.00	1.00	0.21	0.38	0.00	1.00
S	0.67	0.35	0.14	1.00	0.44	0.28	0.14	1.00
G	0.88	0.15	0.60	1.00	0.78	0.15	0.60	1.00
INS	21.08	20.28	0.00	70.92	19.57	19.76	0.00	70.92
Panel C: M	oderator va	ıriable						
M_Score	0.76	0.41	0.02	1.80	0.73	0.32	0.00	1.80
Panel D: Co	ontrol varid	ıbles						
FS	105,964	259,584	711	3,078,019	5,989	8,224	450	107,873
LnFS	17.49	1.27	13.47	20.85	15.13	0.93	13.02	18.50
LEV	1.01	0.58	0.11	2.36	0.81	0.60	0.10	2.35
GR	5.86	20.24	-38.18	59.37	2.63	22.37	-38.89	59.38

Table 4.8 Descriptive statistics on the variables of large and small samples

Note: This table presents the number of observations, pooled mean, median, standard deviation, minimum and maximum of the dependent variables (return on assets: ROA, Tobin's Q: Q), independent variables (environmental social governance: ESG, institutional ownership: INS), moderator variable (managerial efficiency: M_Score) control variables (firm size: FS, firm leverage: LEV, firm growth: GR). The sample consists of 713 firm-year observations of large firm and 1,391 firm-year observations of small firm from 2016 to 2021, representing 373 individual public firms in Thailand. Units of variable measurement: E, S, G, ESG, M_Score (Score); INS, ROA, GR (%); Q, LEV; (Ratio) and FS (millions Bath); LnFS – The natural logarithm of firm size

Table 4.8 presents a summary of the descriptive statistics for the variables in large and small firms. Panel A displays the firm performance variables, with the mean large (small) firms' values of return on assets (ROA) of 7.07% (3.84%) and Tobin's Q (Q) of 1.71 times (1.28 times). Panel B contains the ESG scores, ranging from 0 to 1. The mean large (small) firms' of ESG are 0.62 score (0.40 score). The mean large (small) firms' value of environmental dimension (E) is 0.53 score (0.21 score). The mean large (small) firms' values of social dimension (S) are 0.67 score (0.44 score). The mean large (small) firms of governance (G) are 0.88 score (0.78 score). The governance dimension (G) scores are higher than the others. The mean large (small) firms' value of institutional ownership (INS) is 21.08% (19.57%) Panel C shows the moderator variable (M_Score) with the large (small) firms' values of 0.76 score (0.73 score). Panel D provides

descriptive statistics for control variables large (small) firms, such as firm size (FS), nature logarithm of firm size (LnFS), firm leverage (LEV), and firm growth (GR), with mean large firms of 17.49, 1.01 times and 5.86% respectively, and mean small firms of 15.93, 0.60 times, 2.63%, respectively. For firm size (FS), the lowest mean value of large is 105,964 million Baht, the mean value of small is 5,989 million Baht.

Additional specification ESG model test

4.6.2.1 Reconciling the evidence by using the large firms of samples

Table 4.9 PROCESS regression moderating effect of managerial efficiency on ESG and firm performance (ROA and Tobin's Q) relationship on large firms

Variables	Expected	В	SE <i>β</i>	t- value	p-value	LLCI	ULCI
constant		0.245	0.033	7.429	0.000	0.180	0.309
ESG	+	0.024	0.013	1.810	0.071	-0.002	0.049
M_Score	+	0.064	0.010	6.341	0.000***	0.044	0.084
Int_1	+	-0.005	0.014	-0.352	0.725	-0.033	0.023
LnFS	+	-0.010	0.002	-5.060	0.000***	-0.014	-0.006
LEV	-	-0.038	0.004	-10.201	0.000***	-0.045	-0.031
GR	+	0.085	0.010	8.794	0.000***	0.066	0.104
N = 713, R Sq	juare= 48.25%,	F 38.116**	**				
			Model 4	Q			
Variables	Expected	В	SE β	t- value	p-value	LLCI	ULCI
constant		4.545	0.345	13.181	0.000	3.868	5.222
ESG	+30	0.201	0.136	1.481	0.139	-0.066	0.468
M_Score	4900	0.626	0.106	5.923	0.000***	0.418	0.833
Int_1	Pvk	0.060	0.150	0.403	0.687	-0.234	0.354
LnFS	+ 9-0	-0.181	0.020	-8.879	0.000***	-0.222	-0.141
LEV	3	-0.001	0.039	-0.016	0.987	-0.077	0.076
GR	130	0.262	0.102	2.580	0.010***	0.063	0.462
N = 713, R Sa	mare = 54.19%.	F 48.353**	**				

Note: This table presents PROCESS regression moderating effect of managerial efficiency (M_Score) on ESG and firm performance relationship analysis of the dependent variable (return on assets: ROA and Tobin's Q: Q), independent variable (environmental social governance: ESG), moderator variable (managerial efficiency: M_Score) control variables (firm size: FS, LnFS – The natural logarithm of firm size; firm leverage: LEV, firm growth: GR). The sample consists of 713 firm-year observations from 2016 to 2021, representing 130 individual public firms in Thailand. ***, ** indicate statistical significance at the 0.01, 0.05 levels, respectively

Table 4.9 presents the results of the moderation analysis of the relationship between ESG and firm performance (ROA and Tobin's Q) through the methodology of Hayes (2013). The results indicate that there is a no significant interaction between managerial efficiency and ROA, as evidenced by the *p*-value (p > 0.05, p = 0.725) and LLCI and ULCI values (-0.033 and 0.023, respectively). Similarly, for the interaction between managerial efficiency and Tobin's Q, the *p*-value is significant (p > 0.05, p = 0.687), and the LLCI and ULCI values are -0.234 and 0.354, respectively. These findings demonstrate that the no relationship between ESG and firm performance is moderated by managerial efficiency.

4.6.2.2 Reconciling the evidence by using the small firms of samples

It is important to note that the research on ESG performance and large companies is an evolving field, and findings may differ across studies due to variations in methodologies, timeframes, and geographic contexts. However, the overall trend suggests that integrating ESG considerations into the strategies and operations of large companies can have a positive impact on financial performance, risk management, stakeholder relationships, and long-term sustainability. It should be recognized that small and large firms differ in terms of resources and stakeholder expectations, but both can contribute to sustainable practices and benefit from integrating ESG considerations into their operations. The specific approach to ESG may vary depending on the size, industry, and operational context of each firm.

While research findings on ESG practices vary across countries, they emphasize the need for a contextual approach to understanding ESG performance. Particularly, the study acknowledges the importance of small firms in the context of the Stock Exchange in Thailand, as a developing country, when examining ESG performance. Thus, this study is the first to comprehensively evaluate the impact of ESG on firm performance using a multi-year dataset of small firms in Thailand. Furthermore, it is the only study to demonstrate the moderating effect of managerial efficiency on the relationship between ESG and financial performance.

KOA lelauoliship oli shlali fiffis Model 5 ROA B LLCI ULCI Variables Expected SE *β* t- value *p*-value -0.0340.030 -1.1430.253 -0.093 0.025 constant ESG -0.066 0.014 -4.593 0.000*** -0.095 +-0.038 M_Score +0.042 0.009 4.923 0.000*** 0.025 0.059 Int_1 0.016 7.946 0.000*** 0.095 +0.126 0.158 LnFS +0.004 0.002 1.983 0.048** 0.000 0.008 LEV 0.000*** -0.035 0.003 -11.698 -0.041 -0.029_ GR 0.067 0.007 9.417 0.000*** 0.053 0.081 +N = 1,391, R Square = 40.84%, R Square Change = 12.72%, F 55.747*** Conditional effects of the focal predictor at values of the moderator(s): M_Score M_Score effect SE β t- value *p*-value LLCI ULCI Low -1.587 0.411 -0.0140.009 0.113 -0.032 0.003 Medium 0.000*** 0.733 0.026 0.007 4.046 0.014 0.039 High 1.055 0.067 0.008 8.997 0.000*** 0.052 0.082 Conditional effect of focal predictor at values of the moderator: Statistical M_Score effect SEβ t- value p-value LLCI ULCI

0.014

0.013

0.012

0.011

0.009

0.009

0.008

0.008

0.007

0.007

0.006

0.006

0.007

0.007

0.008

0.009

0.010

0.012

0.013

-4.584

-4.137

-3.575

-2.859

-1.962

-1.938

-0.749

0.762

1.962

2.590

4.592

6.474

7.944

8.903

9.438

9.692

9.782

9.782

9.737

0.000***

0.000***

0.000***

0.004***

0.050**

0.053

0.454

0.446

0.050**

0.010***

0.000***

0.000 ***

0.000***

0.000***

0.000 * * *

0.000 ***

0.000***

0.000***

0.000***

-0.094

-0.080

-0.065

-0.051

-0.037

-0.037

-0.023

-0.009

0.000

0.004

0.017

0.029

0.040

0.051

0.061

0.071

0.081

0.091

0.100

-0.038

-0.028

-0.019

-0.010

0.000

0.000

0.010

0.020

0.028

0.031

0.042

0.054

0.067

0.080

0.093

0.107

0.122

0.136

0.150

Table 4.10 PROCESS regression moderating	effect of managerial	efficiency on ESG and
ROA relationship on small firms		

	1.610	0.137	0.014	9.670	0.000***	0.109	0.165		
	1.704	0.149	0.016	9.594	0.000***	0.119	0.180		
	1.799	0.161	0.017	9.516	0.000***	0.128	0.194		
<i>Note:</i> This table presents PROCESS regression moderating effect of managerial efficiency (M_Score)									
on ESG and	firm performance	relationship	analysis of	the depende	nt variable (retu	Irn on asset	s: ROA),		
independent	independent variable (environmental social governance: ESG), moderator variable (managerial								
efficiency: M_Score) control variables (firm size: FS, LnFS – The natural logarithm of firm size; firm									
leverage: LEV, firm growth: GR). The sample consists of 1,391 firm-year observations from 2016 to									

2021, representing 243 individual public firms in Thailand.

significance indicate

negative

significance

in

significance

indicate

positive

significance

0.002

0.097

0.191

0.286

0.378

0.380

0.475

0.569

0.633

0.664

0.759

0.853

0.948

1.042

1.137

1.231

1.326

1.420

1.515

-0.066

-0.054

-0.042

-0.030

-0.019

-0.018

-0.006

0.006

0.014

0.018

0.030

0.042

0.054

0.065

0.077

0.089

0.101

0.113

0.125

***, ** indicate statistical significance at the 0.01, 0.05 levels, respectively

Table 4.10 shows the results of moderated PROCESS regression analysis of small firms, and the results of the interaction of ESG and managerial efficiency (M_Score) with beta coefficients, *t*-statistics, and *p*-values. Upon analyzing the relationship between ESG and financial performance in small listed companies with a market capitalization below 10,000 million baht, the findings reveal that in Model 5 (ROA), the coefficient value is -0.066 with a *p*-value of 0.000 (p < 0.01). This indicates a significant negative relationship between ESG performance and ROA.

These results are consistent with the findings of previous studies conducted by Duque-Grisales & Aguilera-Caracuel (2021) and Tampakoudis et al. (2021), who observed a negative relationship between ESG and ROA. These studies explained that ESG does not play a significant role in enhancing firm efficiency and its impact on corporate performance is less prominent in smaller firms. The analysis also reveals that the instigator variable (Int_1) in Model 5 demonstrates the interaction effect of ESG and M_Score on ROA. The interaction effect accounts for R square of 40.84% and exhibits a positive and statistically significant coefficient of 0.126 (p < 0.01). These additional data analysis results indicate that managerial efficiency acts as a moderating variable, influencing the relationship between ESG and financial performance.

Figure 4.3 shows investigate the nature of the interactions term, plots of the effects of ESG performance on ROA at different levels of managerial efficiency (M_Score) were constructed. The moderating effect demonstrates that at low managerial efficiency, ESG performance has no impact on ROA, whereas, at medium and high managerial efficiency (up to 0.633 score), ESG performance has a significant positive effect on ROA.



Figure 4.3 Moderating effect of managerial efficiency on ESG and ROA relationship of small firms

Table 4.11 PROCESS regression mode	rating e	effect of m	anagerial ef	ficiency or	n ESG and
Tobin's Q relationship on small firms					

Model 6 Q							
Variables	Expected	В	SE β	t- value	p-value	LLCI	ULCI
constant	(C	3.725	0.261	14.280	0.000	3.213	4.236
ESG	+	-0.216	0.125	-1.726	0.085	-0.461	0.030
M_Score	+082	0.499	0.074	6.772	0.000***	0.355	0.644
Int_1	+	0.614	0.138	4.459	0.000***	0.344	0.885
LnFS	+ 20	-0.183	0.017	-10.633	0.000***	-0.217	-0.150
LEV	- 22	0.041	0.026	1.569	0.117	-0.010	0.092
GR	+ 3	0.121	0.062	1.954	0.051	-0.001	0.242
N = 1,391, R S	quare= 40.39%	ó, R Square	Change =	4.86%, F 54	.716***		
Conditional eff	fects of the foca	al predictor	at values o	f the modera	tor(s):		
M_Score	M_Score	effect	$SE\beta$	t- value	p-value	LLCI	ULCI
Low	0.411	0.037	0.078	0.468	0.640	-0.117	0.190
Medium	0.733	0.235	0.056	4.157	0.000***	0.124	0.345
High	1.055	0.433	0.065	6.698	0.000***	0.306	0.559
Conditional eff	fect of focal pre	dictor at va	alues of the	moderator:			
Statistical	M_Score	effect	$SE\beta$	t- value	p-value	LLCI	ULCI
significance							
insignificant	0.002	-0.214	0.125	-1.719	0.086	-0.459	0.030
	0.092	-0.159	0.114	-1.400	0.162	-0.382	0.064
	0.182	-0.104	0.103	-1.009	0.313	-0.306	0.098
	0.272	-0.049	0.093	-0.526	0.599	-0.231	0.133
	0.361	0.006	0.083	0.076	0.939	-0.157	0.170
	0.451	0.062	0.075	0.826	0.409	-0.085	0.208
	0.541	0.117	0.067	1.746	0.081	-0.014	0.248

			Model 6	Q			
Variables	Expected	В	SE ß	t- value	p-value	LLCI	ULCI
	0.560	0.128	0.065	1.962	0.050**	0.000	0.257
	0.631	0.172	0.061	2.829	0.005***	0.053	0.291
	0.721	0.227	0.057	4.000	0.000***	0.116	0.339
	0.811	0.282	0.055	5.102	0.000***	0.174	0.391
	0.900	0.338	0.057	5.962	0.000***	0.226	0.449
	0.990	0.393	0.061	6.496	0.000***	0.274	0.511
indicate	1.080	0.448	0.066	6.743	0.000***	0.318	0.578
positive	1.170	0.503	0.074	6.799	0.000***	0.358	0.648
significance	1.260	0.558	0.083	6.748	0.000***	0.396	0.721
	1.350	0.613	0.092	6.646	0.000***	0.432	0.795
	1.439	0.669	0.103	6.525	0.000***	0.468	0.870
	1.529	0.724	0.113	6.400	0.000***	0.502	0.946
	1.619	0.779	0.124	6.281	0.000***	0.536	1.022
	1.709	0.834	0.135	6.169	0.000***	0.569	1.100
	1.799	0.889	0.147	6.067	0.000***	0.602	1.177

Table 4.11 PROCESS regression moderating effect of managerial efficiency on ESG and

 Tobin's Q relationship on small firms (Cont.)

Note: This table presents PROCESS regression moderating effect of managerial efficiency (M_Score) on ESG and firm performance relationship analysis of the dependent variable (Tobin's Q: Q), independent variable (environmental social governance: ESG), moderator variable (managerial efficiency: M_Score) control variables (firm size: FS, LnFS – The natural logarithm of firm siz; firm leverage: LEV, firm growth: GR). The sample consists of 1,391 firm-year observations from 2016 to 2021, representing 243 individual public firms in Thailand.

***, ** indicate statistical significance at the 0.01, 0.05 levels, respectively

Table 4.11 shows the results of moderated PROCESS regression analysis, and the results of the interaction of ESG and managerial efficiency (M_Score) with beta coefficients, *t*-statistics, and *p*-values. Upon analyzing the relationship between ESG and Tobin's Q in small firms, the findings reveal that in Model 6, the coefficient value is -0.216 with a *p*-value of 0.085 (p > 0.05). This indicates an insignificant relationship between ESG and Tobin's Q.

These studies explained that ESG does not play a significant role in enhancing firm efficiency and its impact on corporate performance is less prominent in smaller firms. The analysis also reveals that the instigator variable (Int_1) in Model 6 demonstrates the interaction effect of ESG and M_Score on Tobin's Q. The interaction effect accounts for R square of 40.39% and exhibits a positive and statistically significant coefficient of 0.614 (p < 0.01). These additional data analysis results indicate that managerial efficiency acts as a moderating variable, influencing the relationship between ESG and Tobin's Q.





Based on the results obtained from bootstrapping (Table 4.11), the relationship between ESG and Tobin's Q is found to be significant only for individuals with high and medium scores on managerial efficiency (up to 0.560). Specifically, for Tobin's Q, the findings indicate that managerial efficiency positively moderates the indirect relationship between ESG and Tobin's Q.

4.7 Proposed Model and Hypotheses Testing: Institutional Ownership Model

4.7.1 Results from Regression Moderating Effect of Managerial Efficiency on Institutional Ownership and Firm Performance Relationship

PROCESS Regression Analysis

Table 4.12 – 4.13 present the results of the moderation analysis of the relationship between institutional ownership (INS) and firm performance (ROA and Tobin's Q) through the methodology of Hayes, A.F. (2013). The results indicate that there is an institutional ownership (INS) has a positive relationship with the performance of both models. In Model 7, the coefficient value is 0.0001, and the *p*-value is 0.026 (p < 0.05) and LLCI and ULCI values (0.000 and 0.0003, respectively). In Model 8, the coefficient value is 0.002, and the *p*-value is 0.000 (p < 0.01) and LLCI and ULCI values (0.001 and 0.0004, respectively).

Similarly, for the interaction between managerial efficiency and firm performance ROA, the *p*-value is significant (p < 0.01), and the LLCI and ULCI values are 0.000 and 0.001, respectively. Tobin's Q, the p-value is significant (p < 0.01), and the LLCI and ULCI values are 0.004 and 0.011, respectively. These findings demonstrate that the relationship between institutional ownership and firm performance is moderated by managerial efficiency.

	Model 7 ROA									
Variables	Expected	В	SE ß	t- value	p-value	LLCI	ULCI			
constant		-0.033	0.015	-2.158	0.031	-0.063	-0.003			
INS	H2a: +	0.0001	0.0001	2.222	0.026**	0.0000	0.0003			
M_Score	+	0.088	0.004	23.699	0.000***	0.081	0.096			
Int_1	H4a: +	0.001	0.000	3.248	0.001***	0.000	0.001			
LnFS	+	0.008	0.001	8.375	0.000***	0.006	0.010			
LEV	-	-0.040	0.002	-16.654	0.000***	-0.044	-0.035			
GR	+	0.074	0.006	12.283	0.000***	0.062	0.086			
N = 2,104, 1	R Square= 38.989	%, R Square	e Change =	3.1%, F 78	389***					
Conditional	effects of the foc	al predictor	at values of	f the modera	tor(s):					
M_Score	M_Score	effect	SE β	t- value	p-value	LLCI	ULCI			
Low	0.388	-0.0001	0.0001	-0.851	0.395	0.0000	0.0001			
Medium	0.743	0.0001	0.0001	2.222	0.026**	0.0000	0.0003			
High	1.098	0.0004	0.0001	3.826	0.000***	0.0002	0.0005			
Conditional	effect of focal pr	edictor at va	alues of the	moderator:						
Statistical	M_Score	effect	SE β	t- value	p-value	LLCI	ULCI			
significanc	e									
indicate negativ	ve 0.002	-0.0003	0.0002	-2.070	0.039**	0.0000	0.0000			
significance	0.061	-0.0003	0.0001	-1.961	0.050**	0.0000	0.0000			
insignificar	nt 0.097	-0.0003	0.0001	-1.887	0.059	0.0000	0.0000			
	0.191	-0.0002	0.0001	-1.648	0.100	0.0000	0.0000			
	0.286	-0.0001	0.0001	-1.328	0.184	0.0000	0.0001			
	0.380	-0.0001	0.0001	-0.894	0.372	0.0000	0.0001			
	0.475	0.0000	0.0001	-0.301	0.764	0.0000	0.0001			
	0.570	0.0000	0.0001	0.484	0.628	0.0000	0.0002			
	0.664	0.0001	0.0001	1.426	0.154	0.0000	0.0002			
	0.716	0.0001	0.0001	1.961	0.050**	0.0000	0.0002			

 Table 4.12 PROCESS regression moderating effect of managerial efficiency on

 institutional ownership and ROA relationship

Model 7 ROA								
Variables	Expected	В	SE ß	t- value	p-value	LLCI	ULCI	
	M_Score	effect	$SE\beta$	t- value	p-value	LLCI	ULCI	
indicate	0.759	0.0002	0.0001	2.366	0.018**	0.0000	0.0003	
positive	0.853	0.0002	0.0001	3.095	0.002***	0.0001	0.0003	
significance	0.948	0.0003	0.0001	3.538	0.000***	0.0001	0.0004	
	1.042	0.0003	0.0001	3.761	0.000***	0.0002	0.0005	
	1.137	0.0004	0.0001	3.853	0.000***	0.0002	0.0006	
	1.232	0.0004	0.0001	3.877	0.000***	0.0002	0.0007	
	1.326	0.0005	0.0001	3.870	0.000***	0.0002	0.0008	
	1.421	0.0006	0.0001	3.847	0.000***	0.0003	0.0008	
	1.515	0.0006	0.0002	3.819	0.000***	0.0003	0.0009	
	1.610	0.0007	0.0002	3.790	0.000***	0.0003	0.0010	
	1.704	0.0007	0.0002	3.761	0.000***	0.0004	0.0011	
	1.799	0.0008	0.0002	3.734	0.000***	0.0004	0.0012	

Table 4.12 PROCESS regression moderating effect of managerial efficiency on

 institutional ownership and ROA relationship (Cont.)

Note: This table presents PROCESS regression moderating effect of managerial efficiency (M_Score) on institutional ownership (INS) and firm performance relationship analysis of the dependent variable (return on assets: ROA), independent variable (institutional ownership: INS), moderator variable (managerial efficiency: M_Score) control variables (firm size: FS, LnFS – The natural logarithm of firm size; firm leverage: LEV, firm growth: GR). The sample consists of 2,104 firm-year observations from 2016 to 2021, representing 373 individual public firms in Thailand. ***, ** indicate statistical significance at the 0.01, 0.05 levels, respectively

Table 4.12 shows that the institutional ownership has a positive relationship with the ROA. In Model 7, the coefficient value is 0.0001, and the *p*-value is 0.026 (p < 0.05). Institutional ownership can enhance corporate governance mechanisms and operational capability. Thus, the hypothesis H2a is accepted since the positive relationship between institutional ownership and ROA is at statistical significance levels of 0.05, which is in line with agency theory (Jensen & Meckling, 1976) and the studies conducted by Navissi & Naiker (2006) and Nurleni et al., (2018). The results of the analysis of the influence of the control variable (Int_1) and the analysis of the influence of managerial efficiency (M_Score) for ROA show that managerial efficiency has a significant influence on the relationship between institutional ownership on ROA (Figure 4.5)



Figure 4.5 Moderating effect of managerial efficiency on institutional ownership and ROA relationship

Figure 4.5 shows that institutional ownership has no effect on firm performance at low managerial efficiency, institutional ownership has a level effect on firm performance at managerial efficiency, and institutional ownership has a significantly positive influence on firm performance at medium and high managerial efficiency (up to 9.716 score).



Model 8 Q							
Variables	Expected	В	SE ß	t- value	p-value	LLCI	ULCI
constant		1.549	0.146	10.621	0.000	1.263	1.835
INS	H2b: +	0.002	0.001	3.913	0.000***	0.001	0.004
M_Score	+	0.832	0.036	23.308	0.000***	0.762	0.902
Int_1	H4b: +	0.008	0.002	4.198	0.000***	0.004	0.011
LnFS	+	0.010	0.009	1.093	0.274	-0.008	0.028
LEV	-	-0.064	0.023	-2.836	0.005***	-0.109	-0.020
GR	+	0.170	0.058	2.953	0.003***	0.057	0.283
N = 2,104, R Sc.	quare= 40.019	%, R Square	e Change =	5.1%, F 81.	822***		
Conditional eff	ects of the foc	al predictor	at values o	f the modera	tor(s):		
M_Score	M_Score	effect	SE β	t- value	p-value	LLCI	ULCI
Low	0.388	0.0001	0.001	-0.373	0.709	-0.002	0.001
Medium	0.743	0.002	0.001	3.913	0.000***	0.001	0.004
High	1.098	0.005	0.001	5.647	0.000***	0.003	0.007
Conditional eff	ect of focal pr	edictor at va	alues of the	moderator:			
Statistical	M_Score	effect	SE β	t- value	p-value	LLCI	ULCI
significance							
indicate negative	0.002	-0.003	0.002	-2.241	0.025**	-0.006	0.000
significance	0.094	-0.003	0.001	-1.961	0.050**	-0.005	0.000
insignificant	0.097	-0.003	0.001	-1.953	0.051	-0.005	0.000
	0.191	-0.002	0.001	-1.581	0.114	-0.004	0.000
	0.286	-0.001	0.001	-1.091	0.275	-0.003	0.001
	0.380	0.000	0.001	-0.437	0.662	-0.002	0.001
	0.475	0.000	0.001	0.438	0.662	-0.001	0.002
	0.570	0.001	0.001	1.563	0.118	0.000	0.002
indicate	0.599	0.001	0.001	1.961	0.050**	0.000	0.003
positive	0.664	0.002	0.001	2.864	0.004***	0.001	0.003
significance	0.759	0.003	0.001	4.095	0.000***	0.001	0.004
0	0.853	0.003	0.001	4.979	0.000***	0.002	0.005
	0.948	0.004	0.001	5.448	0.000***	0.003	0.005
	1.042	0.005	0.001	5.624	0.000***	0.003	0.006
	1.137	0.005	0.001	5.643	0.000***	0.004	0.007
	1.232	0.006	0.001	5.591	0.000***	0.004	0.008
	1.326	0.007	0.001	5.512	0.000***	0.004	0.009
	1.421	0.008	0.001	5.428	0.000***	0.005	0.010
	1.515	0.008	0.002	5.345	0.000***	0.005	0.011
	1.610	0.009	0.002	5.269	0.000***	0.006	0.012
	1.704	0.010	0.002	5.199	0.000***	0.006	0.013
	1.799	0.010	0.002	5.137	0.000***	0.007	0.014

 Table 4.13 PROCESS regression moderating effect of managerial efficiency on

 institutional ownership and Tobin's Q relationship

Note: This table presents PROCESS regression moderating effect of managerial efficiency (M_Score) on institutional ownership (INS) and firm performance relationship analysis of the dependent variable (Tobin's Q: Q), independent variable (institutional ownership: INS), moderator variable (managerial efficiency: M_Score) control variables (firm size: FS, LnFS – The natural logarithm of firm siz firm leverage: LEV, firm growth: GR). The sample consists of 2,104 firm-year observations from 2016 to 2021, representing 373 individual public firms in Thailand. ***, ** indicate statistical significance at the 0.01, 0.05 levels, respectively.

The institutional ownership has a positive relationship with Tobin's Q, as shown in Table 4.13, where the coefficient value is 0.002 and the *p*-value is 0.000 (p < 0.01). Institutional ownership can improve corporate governance mechanisms and operational effectiveness. In accordance with agency theory (Jensen & Meckling, 1976) and the studies conducted by Navissi & Naiker (2006) and Nurleni et al. (2018), the positive relationship between institutional ownership and tobin's *q* is statistically significant at the 0.01% level. The results of the analyses of the influence of the control variable (Int_1) and the influence of managerial efficiency (M_Score) for model 8 indicate that managerial efficiency has a significant impact on the relationship between institutional ownership, and performance. Figure 4.6 demonstrates that managerial efficiency moderates the positive relationship between institutional ownership and tobin's *q* and the conditional effects of the focal predictor at values of the moderator.



Figure 4.6 Moderating effect of managerial efficiency on institutional ownership and Tobin's Q relationship

Robustness Checks (Multiple Regression Analysis)

Table 4.14 presents robustness checks the outcomes of the institutional ownership and firm performance direct effect and the findings of the moderated multiple regression analysis. It provides a summary of the interaction between the two models, ROA and Tobin's Q, including beta coefficients, *t*-statistics, and *p*-values.

Variables	Expected sign	Model 7 ROA	Model 8 Q
INS	H2a/b: +	0.0001 (2.222**)	0.0024 (3.913***)
M_Score	+	0.0883 (23.699***)	0.8323 (23.308***)
INS × M_Score	H4a/b: +	0.0006 (3.248***)	0.0076 (4.198***)
LnFS	+	0.0079 (8.375***)	0.0099 (1.093)
LEV	-	-0.0395 (-16.654***)	-0.0644 (-2.835***)
GR	+	0.0738 (12.283***)	0.1700 (2.953***)
Industry Effects		Yes	Yes
Year Effects		Yes	Yes
Constant		-0.0607 (-3.601***)	1.3008 (8.045***)
Ν		2,104	2,104
R Square		38.98%	40.48%
Adj R Square		38.48%	39.99%
F	S. E	78.389***	81.821***

Table 4.14 Multiple regression moderating effect of managerial efficiency on ESG and firm performance (ROA and Tobin's Q) relationship

Note: This table presents multiple regression moderating effect of managerial efficiency (M_Score) on institutional ownership and firm performance relationship analysis of the dependent variables (return on assets: ROA, Tobin's Q: Q), independent variable (institutional ownership: INS), moderator variable (managerial efficiency: M_Score) control variables (firm size: FS, LnFS – The natural logarithm of firm size; firm leverage: LEV, firm growth: GR). The sample consists of 2,104 firm-year observations from 2016 to 2021, representing 373 individual public firms in Thailand. ***, ** indicate statistical significance at the 0.01, 0.05 levels, respectively (regression coefficients below the t-values in parentheses

Table 4.14 reveal that there is positive significant relationship between the institutional ownership and firm performance in the Thai listed companies, regarding both the return on assets (ROA) and Tobin's Q. The results of the moderated regression analysis demonstrate that there is a significant and positive relationship between managerial efficiency and conscientiousness, which has a direct impact on the relationship between institutional ownership and firm performance.

4.7.2 Additional Specification Institutional Ownership Test

To clarify the findings of Models 7 and 8, the data regarding the influence of managerial efficiency (M_Score) on the relationship between institutional ownership and firm performance were analyzed. Model 7 and Model 8 were analyzed by year and by industry. A clear influence of the dependent variable has not been found. However, the

influence of the regulatory variable according to the firm size based on the classification of listed companies and market capitalization groups.

4.7.2.1 Reconciling the Evidence by Using the Large Firms of Samples

Table 4.15 PROCESS regression moderating effect of managerial efficiency on

 institutional ownership and firm performance relationship on large firms

Model 9 ROA							
Variables	Expected	В	SE ß	t- value	p-value	LLCI	ULCI
constant		0.266	0.029	9.094	0.000	0.209	0.324
INS	+	0.000	0.000	2.258	0.024**	0.000	0.000
M_Score	+	0.061	0.005	12.348	0.000***	0.052	0.071
Int_1	+	0.000	0.000	0.169	0.866	-0.001	0.001
LnFS	+	-0.008	0.002	-4.461	0.000***	-0.011	-0.004
LEV	-	-0.039	0.004	-10.617	0.000***	-0.047	-0.032
GR	+	0.085	0.010	8.753	0.000***	0.066	0.104
N = 713, R S	Square= 48.00%,	F 37.745*	**				
			Model 1	0 Q			
Variables	Expected	В	$SE\beta$	t- value	p-value	LLCI	ULCI
constant		4.613	0.308	14.966	0.000	4.008	5.218
INS	+	0.001	0.001	1.213	0.226	-0.001	0.003
M_Score	+	0.678	0.052	12.980	0.000***	0.575	0.780
Int_1	+	0.002	0.003	0.648	0.517	-0.004	0.007
LnFS	+	-0.148	0.018	-8.221	0.000***	-0.184	-0.113
LEV	-	-0.018	0.039	-0.466	0.642	-0.095	0.058
GR	+ (()	0.257	0.102	2.512	0.012**	0.056	0.458
N = 713, R S	N = 713, R Square = 53.50%, F 47.041***						

Note: This table presents PROCESS regression moderating effect of managerial efficiency (M_Score) on institutional ownership and firm performance relationship analysis of the dependent variable (return on assets: ROA and Tobin's Q: Q), independent variable (institutional ownership: INS), moderator variable (managerial efficiency: M_Score) control variables (firm size: FS, LnFS – The natural logarithm of firm size; firm leverage: LEV, firm growth: GR). The sample consists of 713 firm-year observations from 2016 to 2021, representing 130 individual public firms in ****, ** indicate statistical significance at the 0.01, 0.05 levels, respectively

Table 4.15 presents the results of the moderation analysis of the relationship between institutional ownership and firm performance (ROA and Tobin's Q) through the methodology of Hayes (2013). The results indicate that there is a insignificant interaction between managerial efficiency and ROA, as evidenced by the *p*-value (p > 0.05, p =0.866) and LLCI and ULCI values (-0.001and 0.001, respectively). Similarly, for the interaction between managerial efficiency and Q, the *p*-value is significant (p > 0.05, p =0.517), and the LLCI and ULCI values are -0.004 and 0.007, respectively. These findings demonstrate that the no relationship between institutional ownership and firm performance is moderated by managerial efficiency.

4.7.2.2 Reconciling the Evidence by Using the Small Firms of Samples

It is crucial to note that the research on institutional ownership and large companies is an evolving field, with findings that may vary between studies due to differences in methodologies, time frames, and geographic contexts. The overall trend, however, indicates that incorporating institutional ownership considerations into the strategies and operations of large companies can have a positive effect on financial performance, risk management, stakeholder relationships, and long-term sustainability. It should be acknowledged that minor and large businesses possess different resources.

While research findings on institutional ownership differ from country to country, they highlight the importance of a contextual approach to understanding institutional ownership. When examining institutional ownership performance, the study acknowledges the significance of minor firms in the context of Thailand's Stock Exchange, a developing nation. This is the first study to evaluate the effect of institutional ownership on firm performance using a multi-year dataset of Thai small firms. In addition, it is the only study to demonstrate the moderating influence of managerial efficiency on the association between institutional ownership and firm performance.



Model 11 ROA							
Variables	Expected	В	SE ß	t- value	p-value	LLCI	ULCI
constant		-0.078	0.031	-2.537	0.011	-0.138	-0.018
INS	+	-0.0001	0.000	-2.163	0.031**	-0.001	0.000
M_Score	+	0.083	0.008	10.837	0.000***	0.068	0.098
Int_1	+	0.001	0.000	2.928	0.004***	0.000	0.001
LnFS	+	0.005	0.002	2.625	0.009***	0.001	0.009
LEV	-	-0.035	0.003	-11.288	0.000***	-0.041	-0.029
GR	+	0.067	0.007	9.086	0.000***	0.052	0.081
N = 1,391, R Square= 37.17%, R Square Change = 13.9%, F 47.789***							
Conditional effects of the focal predictor at values of the moderator(s):							
M_Score	M_Score	effect	SE β	t- value	p-value	LLCI	ULCI
Low	0.411	-0.0001	0.0001	-1.121	0.263	0.0000	0.0001
Medium	0.733	0.0001	0.0001	1.416	0.157	0.0000	0.0003
High	1.055	0.0004	0.0001	3.009	0.003***	0.0001	0.0006
Conditional effect of focal predictor at values of the moderator:							
Statistical	M_Score	effect	$SE\beta$	t- value	p-value	LLCI	ULCI
significance							
indicate	0.002	0.000	0.000	-2.161	0.031**	-0.001	0.000
negative	0.097	0.000	0.000	-2.029	0.043**	-0.001	0.000
significance	0.136	0.000	0.000	-1.962	0.050**	-0.001	0.000
	0.191	0.000	0.000	-1.851	0.064	-0.001	0.000
in	0.286	0.000	0.000	-1.607	0.108	-0.001	0.000
significance	0.380	0.000	0.000	-1.261	0.208	0.000	0.000
	0.475	0.000	0.000	-0.769	0.442	0.000	0.000
	0.569	0.000	0.000	-0.085	0.932	0.000	0.000
	0.664	0.000	0.000	0.770	0.442	0.000	0.000
	0.759	0.000	0.000	1.642	0.101	0.000	0.000
	0.798	0.000	0.000	1.962	0.050**	0.000	0.000
indicate	0.853	0.000	0.000	2.326	0.020**	0.000	0.000
positive	0.948	0.000	0.000	2.754	0.006***	0.000	0.001
significance	1.042	0.000	0.000	2.987	0.003***	0.000	0.001
	1.137	0.000	0.000	3.106	0.002***	0.000	0.001
	1.231	0.001	0.000	3.162	0.002***	0.000	0.001
	1.326	0.001	0.000	3.186	0.002***	0.000	0.001
	1.420	0.001	0.000	3.194	0.002***	0.000	0.001
	1.515	0.001	0.000	3.192	0.002***	0.000	0.001
	1.610	0.001	0.000	3.186	0.002***	0.000	0.001
	1.704	0.001	0.000	3.178	0.002***	0.000	0.001
	1.799	0.001	0.000	3.169	0.002***	0.000	0.002

Table 4.16 PROCESS regression moderating effect of managerial efficiency on

 institutional ownership and ROA relationship on small firms

Note: This table presents PROCESS regression moderating effect of managerial efficiency (M_Score) on institutional ownership and firm performance relationship analysis of the dependent variable (return on assets: ROA), independent variable (institutional ownership: INS), moderator variable (managerial efficiency: M_Score) control variables (firm size: FS, LnFS – The natural logarithm of firm size; firm leverage: LEV, firm growth: GR). The sample consists of 1,391 firm-year observations from 2016 to 2021, representing 243 individual public firms in Thailand.

***, ** indicate statistical significance at the 0.01, 0.05 levels, respectively

Table 4.16 shows the results of moderated PROCESS regression analysis, and the results of the interaction of institutional ownership and managerial efficiency (M_Score) with beta coefficients, *t*-statistics, and *p*-values. Upon analyzing the relationship between institutional ownership and financial performance in small listed companies with a market capitalization below 10,000 million baht, the findings reveal that in Model 11 (ROA), the coefficient value is -0.0001 with a *p*-value of 0.031 (p < 0.05). This indicates a significant negative relationship between institutional ownership and ROA.

Interestingly, a company with a high level of managerial efficiency can lead to a positive relationship between the proportion of institutional ownership and firm performance. This indicates that institutional ownership in small companies with a good corporate governance mechanism can lead to efficient management. Obviously, managerial efficiency moderates the positive relationship between institutional ownership on firm performance and conditional effects of the focal predictor at values of the moderator, plots of the effects of institutional ownership on firm performance (Figure 4.7)





Model 12 Q							
Variables	Expected	В	SE β	t- value	p-value	LLCI	ULCI
constant		3.469	0.260	13.362	0.000	2.960	3.978
INS	+	-0.004	0.002	-2.232	0.026**	-0.007	-0.001
M_Score	+	0.598	0.065	9.198	0.000***	0.470	0.725
Int_1	+	0.009	0.002	3.991	0.000***	0.004	0.013
LnFS	+	-0.168	0.017	-9.831	0.000***	-0.201	-0.134
LEV	-	0.038	0.026	1.433	0.152	-0.014	0.089
GR	+	0.118	0.062	1.892	0.059	-0.004	0.240
N = 1,391, R Square= 37.17%, R Square Change = 13.9%, F 47.789***							
Conditional effects of the focal predictor at values of the moderator(s):							
M_Score	M_Score	effect	SE β	t- value	p-value	LLCI	ULCI
Low	0.411	-0.0002	0.001	-0.252	0.801	-0.002	0.002
Medium	0.733	0.003	0.001	3.707	0.000***	0.001	0.004
High	1.055	0.005	0.001	5.318	0.000***	0.003	0.007
Conditional effect of focal predictor at values of the moderator:							
Statistical	M_Score	effect	$SE\beta$	t- value	p-value	LLCI	ULCI
significance							
indicate	0.002	-0.004	0.002	-2.227	0.026**	-0.007	0.0004
negative	0.096	-0.003	0.002	-1.962	0.050**	-0.006	0.000
significance	0.097	-0.003	0.002	-1.958	0.050**	-0.006	0.000
	0.191	-0.002	0.001	-1.608	0.108	-0.005	0.001
in	0.286	-0.001	0.001	-1.139	0.255	-0.004	0.001
significance	0.380	-0.001	0.001	-0.503	0.615	-0.003	0.002
	0.475	0.000	0.001	0.363	0.717	-0.001	0.002
	0.569	0.001	0.001	1.494	0.135	0.000	0.003
indicate	0.604	0.001	0.001	1.962	0.050**	0.000	0.003
positive	0.664	0.002	0.001	2.802	0.005***	0.001	0.003
significance	0.759	0.003	0.001	4.001	0.000***	0.001	0.004
	0.853	0.004	0.001	4.805	0.000***	0.002	0.005
	0.948	0.004	0.001	5.193	0.000***	0.003	0.006
	1.042	0.005	0.001	5.314	0.000***	0.003	0.007
	1.137	0.006	0.001	5.305	0.000***	0.004	0.008
	1.231	0.007	0.001	5.244	0.000***	0.004	0.009
	1.326	0.008	0.002	5.165	0.000***	0.005	0.011
	1.420	0.009	0.002	5.084	0.000***	0.005	0.012
	1.515	0.009	0.002	5.008	0.000***	0.006	0.013
	1.610	0.010	0.002	4.938	0.000***	0.006	0.014
	1.704	0.011	0.002	4.875	0.000***	0.007	0.015
	1.799	0.012	0.002	4.819	0.000***	0.007	0.017

 Table 4.17 PROCESS regression moderating effect of managerial efficiency on

 institutional ownership and Tobin's Q relationship of small firms

Note: This table presents PROCESS regression moderating effect of managerial efficiency (M_Score) on institutional ownership and firm performance relationship analysis of the dependent variable (Tobin's Q: Q), independent variable (institutional ownership: INS, moderator variable (managerial efficiency: M_Score) control variables (firm size: FS, LnFS – The natural logarithm of firm size; firm leverage: LEV, firm growth: GR). The sample consists of 1,391 firm-year observations from 2016 to 2021, representing 243 individual public firms in Thailand.

***, ** indicate statistical significance at the 0.01, 0.05 levels, respectively

The table 4.17 shows the coefficient value is -0.004, and the *p*-value is 0.026 (p < 0.05), which indicates that institutional ownership has a negative relationship with Tobin's Q. Likewise, Bushee (1998), Kirchmaier&Grant (2006), and Daryaei & Fattahi (2020) explained that institutional ownership cannot be good corporate governance mechanisms in small companies as aforementioned. However, from examining the influence from the instigator (Int_1), it was found that managerial efficiency had a significant influence on the relationship between the institutional ownership and firm performance, the coefficient value is 0.009, and the *p*-value is 0.000 (p < 0.01). The results of additional data analysis indicate that managerial efficiency acts as a regulating variable that can change the relationship and the relationship of the institutional ownership and Tobin's Q.

To examine the nature of the interactions, the effects of institutional ownership on Tobin's Q at various score of managerial efficiency were plotted. According to Figure 4.8, managerial efficiency (M_Score) as a moderating variable must be at a high level in order to influence the relationship between institutional ownership and higher Tobin's Q.



Figure 4.8 Moderating effect of managerial efficiency on institutional ownership and ROA relationship of small firms

4.8 Summary of Research Hypotheses

The moderating effect of managerial ability on the effect of ESG performance, institutional ownership and firm performance, the hypothesis testing results can be summarized as follows.

Table 4.18 Summary of research hypotheses

Hypotheses	Result
Hypothesis 1: The ESG performance will lead to increased firm	Insignificance
performance.	
Hypothesis 2: Institutional ownership will lead to increased firm	Positive significance
performance.	
Hypothesis 3: The managerial efficiency moderates the effect of ESG performance on firm performance, such that the effect is stronger in firms with high managerial efficiency than in firms with low managerial efficiency	Positive significance
Hypothesis 4: Managerial efficiency moderates the effect of institutional ownership on firm performance, such that the effect is stronger in firms with high managerial efficiency than in firms with low managerial efficiency	Positive significance
with low managerial efficiency	



CHAPTER 5 CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATIONS

The final chapter of this dissertation is conclusions and recommendations, including the research methodology, and findings that should be used as a basis for making implications of this study, and highlights the contributions, and limitations. This chapter additionally includes recommendations for further study. This chapter has been organized into five sections, including section 5.1 conclusion of this study, section 5.2 discusses the research results, section 5.3 highlights contributions of this study and discusses the implications of study findings, section 5.4 the main limitations of the study, and section 5.5 provides suggestions for further research.

5.1 Conclusion

This dissertation aims to examine the effect of environmental, social, and governance (ESG) performance and institutional ownership on firm performance (ROA and tobin's q) and to examine the moderating role of the managerial efficiency between environmental, social, and governance (ESG) performance, institutional ownership and firm performance. The study uses the non-probability sampling method, specifically the purposive sampling method, to choose a sample from the available population. The sample is chosen based on how well it meets the research needs. The sample includes 373 non-financial firms (2,104 firm-year observations) listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET), for which data are manually collected from 2016 to 2021. The data are collected from SETSMART, which provides the financial statement information as well as financial market data of Thai listed companies. The statistical method used to analyze the data was Andrew Hayes's Process regression to test the hypothesis. The alternative measurement for moderation was multiple linear regression, conducting a robustness check for moderation by re-calculating moderation through multiple regression analysis. The robustness test results show similar results of the moderation of managerial efficiency between ESG performance, institutional ownership, and firm performance.

The research question was separated into four categories, as follows:

Research Question 1: Does ESG performance affect the firm performance of listed companies in Thailand?

Research Question 2: Does institutional ownership affect the firm performance of listed companies in Thailand?

Research Question 3: Does managerial efficiency moderate the effect of ESG performance on firm performance and when does it moderate?

Research Question 4: Does managerial efficiency moderate the effect of institutional ownership on firm performance and when does it moderate?

The objectives of this study were: 1) To determine the influence of environmental, social, and governance (ESG) performance on firm performance. 2) To determine the influence of institutional ownership on firm performance. 3) To explore a potential moderation effect of managerial efficiency on the relationship between environmental, social, and governance (ESG) performance on firm performance and 4) To explore a potential moderation effect of managerial efficiency on the relationship between institutional ownership on firm performance.

According to the research questions and objectives, the hypotheses were proposed as follows:

Hypothesis 1: ESG performance will lead to increased firm performance.

Hypothesis 2: Institutional ownership will lead to increased firm performance.

Hypothesis 3: Managerial efficiency moderates the effect of ESG

performance on firm performance, such that the effect is stronger in firms with high managerial efficiency than in firms with low managerial efficiency after controlling for firm characteristics.

Hypothesis 4: Managerial efficiency moderates the effect of institutional ownership on firm performance, such that the effect is stronger in firms with high managerial efficiency than in firms with low managerial efficiency after controlling for firm characteristics.

5.2 Research Results and Discussions

The following is a classification of the summary of research findings and discussion of the findings based on the research question:

Research Question 1: Does ESG performance affect the firm performance of listed companies in Thailand?

In research question 1, there is no significant relationship between ESG and financial performance (ROA) and market performance (Tobin's Q). The univariate analysis shows that firms with strong ESG performance have no link with company performance when compared to other firms. The study concludes that enhancing ESG performance does not translate to better firm performance, which aligns with the findings of previous research conducted by Utz et al. (2014) and Junius et al. (2020). It can be explained that environmental social governance performance disclosure did not inability to achieve effective utilization of assets and investors were unconvinced that ESG performance reflects the corporate social responsibility performance of the company and that ESG performance will deliver high long-term returns.

Research Question 2: Does institutional ownership affect the firm performance of listed companies in Thailand?

In research question 2, the results of the study showed that institutional ownership had a positive significance with financial performance (ROA) and market performance (Tobin's Q). As hypothesized by revealing that when the company shares are held by institutional ownership, firm performance increases, as a result, a large number of shares are held by institutional investors can lead to advantages and increase firm performance (Navissi & Naiker, 2006; Nurleni et al., 2018). The higher percentage of institutional ownership can increase firm performance since they are investors with knowledge, expertise, and the ability to monitor the management at a lower cost than retail investors (Ferreira & Matos, 2008). Institutional ownership with the power to monitor the management's performance or pressure-insensitive investors can increase firm performance. On the other hand, institutional ownership with no power or pressure-sensitive investors were found to have no relationship with firm performance (Cornett et al., 2007).

Research Question 3: Does managerial efficiency moderate the effect of ESG performance on firm performance and when does it moderate?

In research question 3, This study aimed to investigate how ESG performance relates to firm performance when managerial efficiency is taken into account as a moderator. The study drew from stakeholder theory and agency theory, which suggest that managerial efficiency is a crucial factor in determining the impact of ESG performance on firm performance. The study found that managerial efficiency positively moderates the impact of ESG performance on firm performance on firm performance. The positive effect of ESG performance on firm performance is stronger when managerial efficiency increases. Specifically, the positive impact of ESG performance on firm performance increases only when the managerial efficiency is reflected in average and above-average managerial efficiency is below average. This study contributes to the literature by finding that ESG performance tends to increase the firm performance only when the business has managerial efficiency that is average and above-average managerial efficiency. (Andreou et al., 2015; Shao et al., 2020; Zhang, 2023).

These findings stress the significance of prioritizing both managerial efficiency and ESG performance, and offer important implications for researchers, regulators, and companies. The results suggest that simply implementing ESG practices is not enough to improve performance, as companies cannot rely solely on their ESG disclosures to gain the trust of various stakeholders. Rather, high levels of managerial efficiency are essential to realize the potential benefits of ESG, increasing management efficiency and reducing business risks, ultimately enhancing competitive advantage and promoting sustainable development (Cox, 2017; Welch & Yoon, 2022; Lee et al., 2023).

In addition, the study was conducted based on firm size and the results showed that small firms found ESG performance had a negative significance with financial performance (ROA) and no significance with market performance (Tobin's Q), Based on the findings of Yoon et al., (2018) an increase in ESG performance could result in a decrease in financial performance because it increases the firm's costs, and Oware & Mallikarjunappa (2022) research supports this notion. Saygili et al., (2022) discover that social and governance performance have a positive impact on financial performance,

whereas environmental disclosure has the opposite effect. It is crucial for small firms to carefully evaluate the costs and benefits of specific ESG initiatives and develop a comprehensive strategy that aligns with business goals and capabilities.

However, the influence of managerial efficiency in small firms was found to be can change relationship of ESG performance on ROA and Tobin's Q. Specifically, the positive impact of managerial efficiency on firm performance increases only when the firm efficiency is reflected in average and above-average managerial efficiency. In contrast, managerial efficiency has no significant effect on firm performance when managerial efficiency is below average. This study offers evidence regarding the significance of managerial efficiency in determining the effectiveness of ESG implementation mechanisms, which cannot be ascertained solely from the disclosure of ESG operations. Instead, it must be evaluated alongside managerial efficiency, which measures how effectively executives can manage the organization, and consequently, indicates the effectiveness of ESG operations.

Research Question 4: Does managerial efficiency moderate the effect of institutional ownership on firm performance and when does it moderate?

In response to research question 4. This study aims to investigate the impact of institutional ownership on firm performance, as well as the potential moderating effect of managerial efficiency on this relationship. The results of the managerial efficiency influence test showed that managerial efficiency had a positive influence on firm performance (ROA) and market performance (Tobin's Q) that are affected by institutional ownership. In contrast, managerial efficiency has no significant effect on firm performance when managerial efficiency is below average. In other words, shares held by institutional investors, together with efficient management are important factors affecting firm performance (Demerjian et al., 2012; Salehi et al., 2021; Ting et al., 2021; Simamora, 2023).

The study examined insights into managerial efficiency conducted based on firm size and the results showed that large companies did not find the influence of managerial efficiency as a relationship between institutional ownership and firm performance. However, the influence of institutional ownership in small firms was found negatively significant to firm performance. The study found that managerial efficiency positively moderates the impact of institutional ownership on firm performance in small firms. The positive effect of institutional ownership on firm performance is stronger when managerial efficiency increases. Specifically, the positive impact of institutional ownership on firm performance increases only when the managerial efficiency is reflected in average and above-average managerial efficiency. In contrast, institutional ownership has no significant effect on firm performance when managerial efficiency is below average. This study provides new evidence of managerial efficiency as an indicator of firm efficiency. Institutional ownership should be considered in conjunction with managerial efficiency in order to examine managerial efficiency and to reflect whether institutional ownership can be deemed as good firm performance.

5.3 Contributions of the Study

5.3.1 Academic Contributions

The results this study contribute to academic literatures in three folds as follows.

(1) This study shows that ESG (Environmental, Social, and Governance) performance data can improve company performance. ESG activities that lead to truly efficient practices can enhance operational efficiency, reduce risks, create revenue opportunities, and lower business costs. This study reflects through managerial efficiency that if a company reports on ESG performance but does not actually improve its operations, it won't lead to better outcomes. The results of this study support the stakeholder theory, which is widely accepted as an ethical and responsible approach to conducting business, leading to sustainable success (Freeman, 1984).

Furthermore, this research also supports agency theory since the findings reveal that ESG activities that lead to efficient practices can help mitigate the conflicts of interest between shareholders or principals and managers or agents, commonly referred to as agency theory (Jensen & Meckling, 1976). In other words, they can maximize benefits for shareholders, or in the context of this research, enhance managerial efficiency (Fama & Jensen, 1983).

This study provides additional insights into ESG performance data based on the size of businesses. It highlights an intriguing observation that in small-sized companies, engaging in ESG activities can lead to a decrease in company performance. This suggests

that for small-sized companies, ESG operations may still pose a relatively high cost when compared to the benefits gained. Conversely, if small firms conduct ESG performance efficiently and achieve high management efficiency, ESG performance will lead to better firm performance as well as large firms.

(2) This study demonstrates that institutional ownership is an integral part of effective corporate governance, which supports agency theory. The results show that the proportion of institutional investor ownership has a positive impact on company performance. In other words, institutional investors can align the interests of principals (shareholders) and agents (managers) more effectively and improve operational outcomes. In accordance with corporate governance principles, institutional investors are viewed as external monitors who possess knowledge, expertise, and the ability to act as effective oversight mechanisms for efficient managerial performance. Therefore, companies with higher levels of institutional investor ownership tend to exhibit better operational results (Jensen & Meckling, 1976).

Additionally, this study delves deeper into the analysis of institutional ownership data, categorizing it based on the size of companies. The study found a notable difference between small and large companies concerning institutional ownership. Specifically, in small-sized companies, the proportion of institutional investor ownership has a negative impact on company performance. This suggests that in small-sized companies, institutional investors may not effectively serve as external monitors for corporate governance. However, if small-sized companies can attract institutional investors who can contribute to efficient operations, which in this research context refers to achieving high managerial efficiency, they can also improve their overall company performance like larger companies.

(3) The focuses of ESG-related research can be divided into the national, corporate, and individual levels. While national and corporate-level factors have been the spotlight of much research in CSR and sustainability accounting, individual-level factors have been relatively under-researched. This lack of research on individual-level determinants of ESG performance is critical since it is at the individual level where decisions regarding ESG performance are made (Kao et al., 2023). Therefore, this study seeks to address this gap in the literature by examining the role of managerial efficiency

in determining voluntary ESG performance. In addition, given that ESG information can increase its reliability and credibility, this study further considers whether managerial efficiency is associated with the relationship between ESG performance on company performance.

The contributions of this study can be summarized in several aspects. First, by focusing on managerial efficiency, this study provides a unique perspective on ESG performance that complements the existing literature. The empirical results align with the idea that managerial efficiency is a critical factor in promoting ESG performance. Second, this study provides empirical evidence that supports the notion that managerial efficiency can affect not only ESG performance but also overall company performance. This is particularly important given the increasing importance of ESG performance. Finally, the study contributes to the literature on ESG performance and disclosure by focusing on the Thai context, which has received less attention in the existing literature compared to other developed countries. This provides a unique perspective on the determinants of ESG performance disclosure and managerial efficiency in a newly emerging market.

5.3.2 Practical Contribution

The findings of this study are highly relevant to shareholders, board members, managers, investors, and regulators as follows:

Shareholders and the Board of Directors

The results demonstrate that higher managerial efficiency is associated with a greater tendency toward ESG performance. Our empirical findings have several meaningful implications.

Firstly, the positive correlation between managerial efficiency and both ESG performance and overall company performance underscores the importance of companies investing in the development and training of managers with the necessary competencies and skills to effectively disclose ESG information. To enhance ESG performance, companies with low managerial efficiency are advised to implement policies aimed at improving it. Such policies may include offering training, certification programs, or organizing seminars for managers to enhance their skills, knowledge, and expertise. This approach allows companies to leverage ESG performance as a competitive advantage, strengthening their position in the market.

Secondly, shareholders can consider strategies involving the hiring of additional personnel, such as consultants or specialized executives, who possess expertise in specific fields. Companies with more efficient executives can enhance their performance by embracing innovative production methods, adopting new technologies, and exploring new markets. These measures aim to improve cost management and revenue generation efficiency within the organization.

The top Management Teams

Managers should disclose key ESG issues that align with the organizational strategy and the needs of stakeholders. This should be done by presenting concise, focused content that is easy to understand. Additionally, they should avoid disclosing excessive amounts of information that do not address the information needs of users. Furthermore, managers should present quantitative data, such as the amount of resources the company has reduced or recycled and the cost savings achieved. This helps demonstrate the results of corporate sustainability efforts from the past to the present and allows for comparisons with competitors and other businesses in the industry. Moreover, it is essential to continually monitor and improve company performance after the information has been disclosed or after receiving feedback from stakeholders.

Managerial efficiency serves as a valuable tool for enhancing work efficiency and evaluating ESG performance. If the management team has lower managerial efficiency compared to the industry average, it is essential to implement follow-up measures and improve team operations. This involves fostering a deeper understanding of operations by developing the potential of personnel, welcoming new teams with expertise in digital technologies for knowledge exchange and collaborating with business experts. These actions will facilitate continuous growth and the achievement of organizational goals within the dynamic business environment. Strengthening managerial efficiency is a crucial factor that paves the way for corporate future growth and success.

Investors

Firstly, when considering investments in companies with ESG performance, it is essential to factor in managerial efficiency as an additional indicator. This consideration does not result in extra costs for the company, which could otherwise reduce investors' profits. Instead, it involves utilizing various assets and costs that contribute to creating value, generating revenue, strengthening the company's financial position, and improving overall performance.

Secondly, retail investors should use the shareholding ratio of institutional investors as an initial screening tool when evaluating companies for investment, in addition to other factors. This applies to both large and small companies. However, institutional investors should exercise caution when it comes to stock holdings, especially in small conglomerates (with a market value of less than 3,000 million baht). The findings of this study provide new evidence indicating that managerial efficiency plays a significant role in the impact of institutional ownership on company performance, particularly in smaller firms. Therefore, when making important investment decisions, it is crucial to consider the ratio of institutional ownership in conjunction with managerial efficiency.

The Regulators

Regulatory bodies should encourage registered companies to provide highquality ESG disclosure that is aligned with their response to the United Nations Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs). Additionally, in terms of quantitative data, support should be given for reporting formats that include statistical data collection to demonstrate positive impacts resulting from ESG activities. This could encompass cost reductions, reduced resource consumption, the number of beneficiaries, community financial benefits, and more. Furthermore, there should be established criteria for companies' ESG disclosure, using consistent metrics to facilitate clearer data processing and a comprehensive understanding of the quantifiable impacts. Consequently, regulators must acknowledge this fact and seek solutions to the issue. The various objections raised against sustainability reporting underscore the expected challenges in adopting a uniform global standard for ESG performance activities.

Another aspect of these findings relevant to regulators is the cost-benefit analysis of ESG performance. The results reveal a significant adverse impact on profitability in small firms, contrary to the predictions and findings of most studies. It is plausible that these enterprises, particularly small firms, are engaging in ESG performance activities at exceptionally high costs. Therefore, for the proposed standard to gain acceptance and success among firms, regulators must assess its compliance costs and ensure they are lower than the current expenses associated with providing such information.

5.4 Limitation and Future Research

This study still has some limitations that will necessitate further investigation.

5.4.1 Limitations

(1) The measures of the score of ESG performance

This study measures the score of ESG performance in two sections. The first section, environmental and social performance disclosure. The environmental and social performance disclosure data is based on the criteria of the Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) adopted by the United Nations in 2019. The checklist method includes indicators for measuring environmental and social performance. Hence, a dummy variable will be used to measure the environmental and social performance disclosure score, where a score of 1 will be assigned if the item is detected; otherwise, a score of zero will be assigned. For example, if a company reports on the management of greenhouse gasses or the use of water resources, that data is a score of 1. It evaluates data based on disclosed company performance without statistically measuring the positive impact of ESG activities with quantitative data collection, such as cost reduction ratio or reduced resource use ratio. Because, when collecting quantitative data, especially environmental data such as electricity, water, waste, and greenhouse gas emissions, registered companies disclose information in different formats and use different metrics. Each indicator is very different, making it impossible to consolidate data into a single ESG score for each company.

In addition, the processing of operational data from registered companies is very limited. This limitation stems from the fact that companies do not disclose data on every topic, but only on topics that are considered material to their business. Thus, the data only covers the topics that the company has disclosed. Furthermore, quantitative data depicting actual consequences is restricted because corporations supply information in the form of descriptions or qualitative data but not quantitative data. The reports, for example, include descriptive data on energy use, electricity consumption, water consumption, waste, and greenhouse gas emissions. Consequently, the data does not reflect the overall picture of the actual corporate activities of registered Thai companies.

The second section is governance performance disclosure. The corporate governance performance is measured based on the results of the Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD) Corporate Governance Report. Only companies that have been assessed and received a score of 70 or above are included in this report. Scores are reported as 3, 4, and 5 and are therefore an interval scale rather than a ratio scale. Consequently, these scores may not accurately reflect differences in corporate governance performance among companies based on their actual practices. In addition, companies that scored less than 70 are not included in this study because their data are not disclosed, and they do not provide sufficient information as per the research objectives. This is because they may not align with the data collection model.

(2) This study does not include the financial sector since it measures the value of managerial efficiency according to the methodology outlined by Demerjian et al. (2012). Managerial efficiency refers to the contributions of managers in making optimal economic decisions. The efficiency of a firm is influenced by both firm-specific and manager-specific factors. The firm's efficiency is assessed using data envelopment analysis (DEA), a statistical procedure that measures the relative efficiency of decision-making units (DMUs) in transforming specific inputs into outputs. In the study by Demerjian et al. (2012), seven inputs and one output were considered. The inputs consist of net property, plant, and equipment; net operating leases; net R&D; purchased goodwill; other intangible assets; the cost of goods sold; selling, general, and administrative expenses. The output is represented by sales. Given that a company performance is influenced by both firm-specific and manager-specific factors, Demerjian et al. (2012) identified size, market share, age, free cash flow, and business operation complexity as firm-specific factors. Therefore, this study is limited in its ability to study the financial sector due to differences in operational characteristics compared to other industries.

5.4.2 Future Research

This study still has some limitations that will necessitate further investigation.

Firstly, in-depth interviews should be conducted in the future to confirm and generalize the findings of this current study and future research should address the research gaps by focusing on measuring the value of ESG performance quantitatively, emphasizing quantitative indicators. This can involve assessing the value based on changes and progress in ESG initiatives by comparing current reporting results (t) to the previous year's results (t-1). This approach would allow for measuring the level of progress in corporate operations, providing research results that reflect the overall performance of Thai-listed companies.

Secondly, future research should extend the study should be conducted within the financial sector. The financial sector stands out in its ESG operations, as it has the potential to create positive impacts on customers and society at large through responsible finance practices. Within this sector, ESG operations are often integrated into the product development process, and there is a focus on promoting financial inclusion for all segments of society. Moreover, future studies should explore measuring managerial efficiency based on the Balanced Scorecard concept and employing Data Envelopment Analysis (DEA) to evaluate the efficiency of companies operating in this sector.



List of Bibliography

- Abedin, S. H., Haque, H., Shahjahan, T., & Kabir, M. N. (2022). Institutional ownership and firm performance: Evidence from an emerging economy. *Journal of Risk and Financial Management*, 15(567), 1–17.
- Aboud, A., & Diab, A. (2018). The impact of social, environmental and corporate governance disclosures on firm value: Evidence from Egypt. *Journal of Accounting in Emerging Economies*, 8(4), 442–458.
- Acero, I., Serrano, R., & Dimitropoulo, P. (2017). Ownership structure and financial performance in European football. *The International Journal of Business in Societ*, 17(3), 511–523.
- Adeabah, D., Gyeke-Dako, A., & Andoh, C. (2019). Board gender diversity, corporate governance and bank efficiency in Ghana: a two-stage data envelope analysis (DEA) approach. *The International Journal of Business in Society*, *19*(2), 299–320.
- Al-Najjar, B., & Kilincarslan, E. (2016). The effect of ownership structure on dividend policy: evidence from Turkey. *The International Journal of Business in Society*, *16*(1), 135–161.
- Alajmi, A., & Worthington, A. C. (2023). Corporate governance in Kuwait: Joining the dots between regulatory reform, organizational change in boards and audit committees and firm market and accounting performance. *Journal of Financial Reporting and Accounting*, ahead-of-print(ahead-of-print). https://doi.org/10.1108/JFRA-04-2022-0133
- Alareeni, B. A., & Hamdan, A. (2020). ESG impact on performance of US S&P 500listed firms. Corporate Governance: *The International Journal of Business in Society*, 20(7), 1409–1428.
- Albitar, K., Hussainey, K., Kolade, N., & Gerged, A. M. (2020). ESG disclosure and firm performance before and after IR. *International Journal of Accounting & Information Management*, 28(3), 429–444.

- Ali Fatemi, Martin Glaum, & Stefanie Kaiser. (2018). ESG performance and firm value: The moderating role of disclosure. *Global Finance Journal*, 38(November), 45–64.
- Alipour, M., Ghanbari, M., Jamshidinavid, B., & Taherabadi, A. (2019). Does board independence moderate the relationship between environmental disclosure quality and performance? Evidence from static and dynamic panel data.
 Corporate Governance: *The International Journal of Business in Society*, *10*(1), 62–96.
- Altaf, N., & Shah, F. A. (2018). Ownership concentration and firm performance in Indian firms: does investor protection quality matter? *Journal of Indian Business Research*, 10(1), 33–52.
- Amel-Zadeh, A., & Serafeim, G. (2018). Why and how investors use ESG information: Evidence from a global survey. *Financial Analysts Journal*, 74(3), 87–103.
- Andreou, C., Philip, D., & Robejsek, P. (2016). Bank liquidity creation and risk-taking: Does managerial ability matter? *Journal of Business Finance & Accounting*, *43*(2), 226–259.
- Andreou, P. C., Karasamani, I., Louca, C., & Ehrlich, D. (2017). The impact of managerial ability on crisis-period corporate investment. *Journal of Business Research*, 79(2017), 107–122.
- Andreou, P., Ehrlich, D., Karasamani, I., & Louca, C. (2015). Managerial ability and firm performance: Evidence from the global financial crisis. SSRN Electronic Journal. Retrieved from https://doi.org/10.2139/ssrn.2633216.
- Arvidsson, S. (2010). Communication of corporate social responsibility: A study of the views of management teams in large companies. *Journal of Business Ethics*, 96(3), 339–354.
- Atan, R., Mahmudul, A., Md, Said, J., & Zamri, M. (2018). The impacts of environmental, social, and governance factors on firm performance: Panel study of Malaysian companies. *Management of Environmental Quality*: An International Journal, 29(2), 182–194.
- Ayman, R., Chemers, M. M., & Fiedler, F. (1995). The contingency model of leadership effectiveness: Its levels of analysis. *The Leadership Quarterly*, 6(2), 147–167.
- Barrya, T. A. (2009). Ownership structure and bank efficiency in the Asia pacific region (Université de Limoges). Retrieved from https://ssrn.com/abstract=1244163
- Bassen, A., & Kovacs, A. M. M. (2008). Environmental, social and governance key performance indicators from a capital market perspective. *Zeitschrift Für Wirtschafts- Und Unternehmensethik*, 9(2), 182–192.
- Beaver, W. H. (1968). The information content of annual earnings announcements. *Journal of Accounting Research*, 6(1), 67–92.
- Berkowitz, S. A., Logue, D. E., & Noser, E. A. (1998). The total cost of transactions on the NYSE. *The Journal of Finance*, *43*(1), 97–112.
- Berthelot, S., Morris, T., & Morrill, C. (2010). Corporate governance rating and financial performance: A Canadian study. Corporate Governance: *The International Journal of Business in Society*, *10*(5), 635–646.
- Bertrand, M., & Schoar, A. (2003). Managing with style: The effect of managers on firm policies. *The Quarterly Journal of Economics*, *118*(4), 1169–1208.
- Bhandari, K. R., & Salo, M. R., Jari. (2022). The resource-based view, stakeholder capitalism, ESG, and sustainable competitive advantage: The firm's embeddedness into ecology, society, and governance. *Business Strategy and the Environment*, *31*(4), 1525–1537.
- Bharadwaji, A. S., Bharadwaj, S. G., & Konsynsk, B. R. (1999). Information technology effects on firm performance as measured by Tobin's q. *Management Science*, 45(7), 905–1024.
- Bhattacharya, S., & Sharma, D. (2019). Do environment, social and governance performance impact credit ratings: A study from India. *International Journal* of Ethics and Systems, 35(3), 466–484.

Bloomberg. (2019). ESG Data. Retrieved from https://www.bloomberg.com

Bodhanwala, S., & Bodhanwala, R. (2023). Environmental, social and governance performance: Influence on market value in the COVID-19 crisis. *Management Decision, ahead-of-print*(ahead-of-print). https://doi.org/10.1108/MD-08-2022-1084

- Bombardier Inc. (2021). *Environmental, social and governance report (ESG)*. Retrieved from https://bombardier.com/en/system/files?file=2022-05/Bombardier-ESG-Report-2021.pdf
- Bosco, B. D., & Misani, N. (2016). The effect of cross-listing on the environmental, social, and governance performance of firms. *Journal of World Business*, 51(1), 977–990.
- Buallay, A. (2019). Is sustainability reporting (ESG) associated with performance?
 Evidence from the European banking sector". Management of Environmental
 Quality: *An International Journal*, *30*(1), 98–115.
- Bunsaisup, T., Chatjuthamard, P., & Jiraporn, P. (2015). Managerial ability and bond credit ratings. *European Journal of Economics, Finance and Administrative Sciences*, 71(January), 1–13.
- Bushee, B. J. (1998). The influence of institutional investors on myopic R&D investment behavior. *The Accounting Review*, 73(3), 305–333.
- Butt, A. A., Rizavi, S. S., Nazir, M. S., & Shahzad, A. (2022). Corporate derivatives use and firm value: Conditional role of corporate governance. *South Asian Journal of Business Studies, ahead-of-print*(ahead-of-print). https://doi.org/10.1108/SAJBS-02-2021-0059
- C.Han, K., & Y.Suk, D. (1998). The effect of ownership structure on firm performance: Additional evidence. *Review of Financial Economics*, 7(2), 143–155.
- CG Fund Thailand. (2018). *ESG Investment Strategy*. *Retrieved from* http://www.cgfundthailand.com/?page_id=143
- Chang, H., Ishida, S., & Kochiyama, T. (2018). Evaluation of managerial ability in Japanese setting. *The Japanese Accounting Review*, 8(1), 1–22.
- Charnes, A., Cooper, W. W., & Rhodes, E. (1978). Measuring the efficiency of decision-making units. *European Journal of Operational Research*, 2(6), 429–444.
- Chatterjee, S., & Simonoff, J. S. (2013). *Handbook of Regression Analysis* (1st ed.). Wiley.

- Chen, J., & Chen, J. (2020). Does managerial ability affect the quality of environmental financial disclosure? Sustainability Accounting, *Management and Policy Journal*, 11(6), 1055–1073.
- Chen, S., & Lin, C. (2018). Managerial ability and acquirer returns. *The Quarterly Review of Economics and Finance*, *68*(May), 171–182.
- Cornett, M. M., Marcus, A. J., Saunders, A., & Tehranian, H. (2007). The impact of institutional ownership on corporate operating performance. *Journal of Banking & Finance*, 31 (1), 1771–1794.
- Cox, J. S. (2017). Managerial ability, growth opportunities, and IPO performance. *Managerial Finance*, *43*(4), 488–507.
- Crane, A. D., Michenaud, S., & Weston, J. P. (2016). The effect of institutional ownership on payout policy: Evidence from Index Thresholds. *The Review of Financial Studies*, 29(6), 1377–1408.
- D'Souza, J., & Saxena, A. K. (1999). Agency cost, market risk, investment opportunities and dividend policy – an international perspective. *Managerial Finance*, 25(6), 35–43.
- Dana AL-Najjar. (2015). The effect of institutional ownership on firm performance: Evidence from Jordanian listed firms. *International Journal of Economics* and Finance, 7(12), 97–105.
- Darrell, W., & Schwartz, B. N. (1997). Environmental disclosures and public policy pressure. *Journal of Accounting and Public Policy*, 16(2), 125–154.
- Daryaei, A. A., & Fattahi, Y. (2020). The asymmetric impact of institutional ownership on firm performance: Panel smooth transition regression model. Corporate Governance: *The International Journal of Business in Society*, 20(7), 1191– 1203.
- David, P., & Kochhar, R. (1996). Barriers to effective corporate governance by institutional investors: Implications for theory and practice. *European Management Journal*, 14(5), 457–466.
- Demerjian, P. R., Lev, B., & McVay, S. E. (2012). Quantifying managerial ability: A new measure and validity tests. *Management Science*, 58(7), 1229–1248.

- Dkhili, H. (2023). Does environmental, social and governance (ESG) affect market performance? The moderating role of competitive advantage. Competitiveness Review: *An International Business Journal, ahead-of-print*(ahead-of-print). https://doi.org/10.1108/CR-10-2022-0149
- Donaldson, T., & Preston, L. E. (1995). The stakeholder theory of the corporation: concepts, evidence, and implications. *The Academy of Management Review*, *20*(1), 65–91.
- Dow, J., & Gorton, G. (1997). Noise trading, delegated portfolio management, and economic welfare. *Journal of Political Economy*, 105(5), 1024–1050.
- Dragomir, V. D. (2010). Environmentally sensitive disclosures and financial performance in a European setting. *Journal of Accounting & Organizational Change*, 6(3), 359–388.
- Duque-Grisales, E., & Aguilera-Caracuel, J. (2021). Environmental, social and governance (ESG) scores and financial performance of Multilatinas: moderating effects of geographic international diversification and financial slack. *Journal of Business Ethics*, *168*(2), 315–334.
- Eisenhardt, K. M. (1989). Agency theory: An assessment and review. *The Academy of Management Review*, *14*(1), 57–74.
- ElKelish, W. W. (2018). Corporate governance risk and the agency problem. *The International Journal of Business in Society*, 8(2), 254–269.
- ElKelish, W. W., & Hassan, M. K. (2015). Corporate governance disclosure and share price accuracy: Empirical evidence from the United Arab Emirates. *Journal of Applied Accounting Research*, 16(2), 265–286.
- Fama, E. F. (1970). Efficient capital markets: A review of theory and empirical work. *The Journal of Finance*, 25(2), 383–417.
- Fama, E. F., & Jensen, M. C. (1983). Agency problems and residual claims. *The Journal of Law & Economic*, 26(2), 327–349.
- Farooq, M., Noor, A., & Ali, S. (2022). Corporate governance and firm performance: Empirical evidence from Pakistan. Corporate Governance: *The International Journal of Business in Society*, 22(1), 42–66.

- Farrell, M. J. (1957). The Measurement of productive efficiency. *Journal of the Royal Statistical Society*, 120(3), 253–290.
- Feroz, E. H., Sanjay Goel, & Raymond L. Raab. (2008). Performance measurement for accountability in corporate governance: A data envelopment analysis approach. *Review of Accounting and Finance*, 7(2), 121–130.
- Ferreira, M. A., & Matos, P. (2008). The colors of investors' money: The role of institutional investors around the world. *Journal of Financial Economics*, 88(3), 499–533.
- Freeman, R. E. (1984). *Strategic Management: A Stakeholder Approach* (Vol. 2010). Cambridge university press.
- Gan, H., & Park, M. S. (2017). CEO managerial ability and the marginal value of cash. Advances in Accounting, 38(September), 126–135.
- García-Meca, E., & García-Sanchez, I.-M. (2017). Does managerial ability influence the quality of financial reporting? *European Management Journal*, *14*(2). 1–14.
- George, D., & Mallery, P. (2011). SPSS for windows step by step: A simple guide and reference, 18.0 Update. Allyn & Bacon/Pearson.
- Gurol, B., & Lagasio, V. (2023). Women board members' impact on ESG disclosure with environment and social dimensions: Evidence from the European banking sector. *Social Responsibility Journal*, 19(1), 211–228.
- Habib, A., & Hasan, M. M. (2017). Managerial ability, investment efficiency and stock price crash risk. *Research in International Business and Finance*, 42(2017), 262–274.
- Hadlock, C. J., & Fee, C. E. E. (2003). Raids, rewards, and reputations in the market for managerial talent. *Review of Financial Studies*, 16(4), 1315–1357.
- Hair, J. F., Babin, B. J., Anderson, R. E., & Black, W. C. (2018). *Multivariate Data Analysis* (8th edition). Cengage India.
- Hair, J.F., Ringle, C.M., & Sarstedt, M. (2013). Partial least squares structural equation modeling: Rigorous applications, better results and higher acceptance. *Long Range Planning*, 46(1), 1–12.

- Hambrick, D. C., & Quigley, T. J. (2014). Toward more accurate contextualization of the CEO effect on firm performance. *Strategic Management Journal*, 35(4), 473–491.
- Hausman, J. A. (1978). Specification tests in econometrics. *The Econometric Society*, 46(6), 1251–1271.
- Hayes, A.F. (2013). *Introduction to mediation, moderation, and conditional process analysis*. The Guilford Press.
- Hayes, A.F., Montoya, A.K., & Rockwood, N.J. (2017). The analysis of mechanisms and their contingencies: PROCESS versus structural equation modeling. *Australasian Marketing Journal (AMJ)*, 25(1), 76–81.
- Hesarzadeh, R., & Bazrafshan, A. (2019). CEO ability and regulatory review risk. *Managerial Auditing Journal*, 34(5), 571–601.
- Hood, M., Nofsinger, J. R., & Small, K. (2009). Identifying the non-normality premium of an investment. *Managerial Finance*, 35(4), 385–403.
- Huanga, X. (Sharon), & Sunb, L. (2017). Managerial ability and real earnings management. *Advances in Accounting*, 39(2017), 91–104.
- Jearauthaitamrong, P. (2017). *Role of IR in ESG Communication*. Retrieved from https://www.thaipr.net/general/720995
- Jensen, M. C., & Meckling, W. H. (1976). Theory of the firm: Managerial behavior, agency costs and ownership structure. *Journal of Financial Economics*, 3(4), 305–360.
- Jory, S. R., Ngo, T., & Sakaki, H. (2017). Institutional ownership stability and dividend payout policy. *Managerial Finance*, 43(10), 1170–1188.
- Junius, D., Adisurjo, A., Rijanto, Y. A., & Adelina, Y. E. (2020). The impact of ESG performance to firm performance and market value. *Jurnal Aplikasi Akuntansi*, 5(1), 21–41.
- Khan, R., Dharwadkar, R., & Brandes, P. (2005). Institutional ownership and CEO compensation: A longitudinal examination. *Journal of Business Research*, 58(2005), 1078–1088.

- Khurana, I. K., Moser, W. J., & Raman, K. K. (2018). Tax avoidance, managerial ability, and investment efficiency. *Journal of Accounting Finance and Business Studies*, 54(4), 547–575.
- Kirchmaier, T., & Grant, J. (2006). Corporate ownership structure and performance in Europe. Accounting Management Review, 2(3), 231–245.
- Kline, R. B. (2016). *Principles and practice of structural equation modeling*, 4th ed. (pp. 534). Guilford Press.
- Kumar, S., & Zbib, L. (2022). Firm performance during the Covid-19 crisis: Does managerial ability matter? *Finance Research Letters*, 47 (1), 102-7=120.
- Kumlungsua, B. (2018). *Shareholders' current movement and ways to engage them effectively*. Retrieved from https://www.thai-iod.com
- Kweh, Q. L., Alrazi, B., Chan, Y. C., & Abdullah, W. M. T. W. (2017). The effects of environmental, social and governance on the corporate performance of Malaysian government linked companies. *EDP Sciences*, 36(2017), 1–11.
- Lauterbach, B., & Vaninsky, A. (1999). Ownership structure and firm performance: Evidence from Israel. *Journal of Management and Governance*, 3(1), 189–201.
- Lee, C., Wang, C., Chiu, W., & Tien, T. (2018). Managerial ability and corporate investment opportunity. *International Review of Financial Analysis*, 57(May), 65–76.
- Lee, J., Kim, S., & Kim, E. (2023). The effect of managerial ability on voluntary disclosure of carbon emissions. *Borsa Istanbul Review. ahead-of-print*(aheadof-print). https://doi.org/10.1016/j.bir.2023.01.008
- Lintner, J. (1956). Distribution of incomes of corporations among dividends, retained earnings, and taxes. *The American Economic Review*, *46*(2), 97–113.
- Liu, H., Shah, S., & Jiang, W. (2004). On-line outlier detection and data cleaning.*Computers & Chemical Engineering*, 28(9), 1635–1647.
- Louhichi, W. (2008). Adjustment of stock prices to earnings announcements: evidence from Euronext Paris. *Review of Accounting and Finance*, **7**(1), 102–115.

- Lu, L. W. Xiang, & Taylor, M. E. (2018). A study of the relationships among environmental performance, environmental disclosure, and financial performance. *Asian Review of Accounting*, 26(1), 180–193.
- Lu, W., Wang, W., Hung, S., & Lu, E. (2012). The effects of corporate governance on airline performance: Production and marketing efficiency perspectives.
 Transportation Research Part E, 48, 529–544.
- Luo, Y., & Zhou, L. (2017). Managerial Ability, tone of earnings announcements, and market reaction. *Asian Review of Accounting*, 25(4), 454–471.
- MacAulay, K., Dutta, S., Oxner, M., & Hynes, T. (2009). The impact of a change in corporate governance regulations on firms in Canada. Quarterly Journal of Finance and Accounting, 48(4), 29–52.
- Maji, S. G., & Lohia, P. (2023). Environmental, social and governance (ESG) performance and firm performance in India. *Society and Business Review*, *18*(1), 175–194.
- Manetti, G. (2011). The quality of stakeholder engagement in sustainability reporting: empirical evidence and critical points. Corporate Social Responsibility and Environmental Management, 18(2), 110–122.
- Menicucci, E., & Paolucci, G. (2022). ESG dimensions and bank performance: An empirical investigation in Italy. Corporate Governance: *The International Journal of Business in Society, ahead-of-print*(ahead-of-print). https://doi.org/10.1108/CG-03-2022-0094
- Morita, H., & Avkiran, N. K. (2009). Selecting inputs and outputs in data envelopment analysis by designing statistical experiments. *Journal of the Operations Research*, 52(2), 163–173.
- Napoletano, E., & Curry, B. (2022). *Environmental, Social and Governance: What Is ESG Investing?* Retrieved from

https://www.forbes.com/advisor/investing/esg-investing/

Navissi, F., & Naiker, V. (2006). Institutional ownership and corporate value. *Managerial Finance*, *32*(3), 247–256.

- Nor, N. M., Bahari, N. A. S., Adnan, N. A., Kamal, M. Q. A. S., & Ali, I. M. (2016). The effects of environmental disclosure on financial performance in Malaysia. *Procedia Economics and Finance*, 35(2016), 117 – 126.
- Nurleni, N., Bandang, A., Darmawati, & Amiruddin. (2018). The effect of managerial and institutional ownership on corporate social responsibility disclosure. *International Journal of Law and Management*, 60(4), 979–987.
- OECD. (2021). Business dynamism during the COVID-19 pandemic: Which policies for an inclusive recovery? Retrieved from https://www.oecd.org
- Phung, M., Cheng, C., & Kao, C. (2018). Ownership structure and efficiency of banking industry in China and Vietnam - A political view. *International Journal of Financial Research*, 9(3), 61–74.
- Pound, J. (1998). Proxy contests and the efficiency of shareholder oversight. Journal of Financial Economics, 20(January–March), 237–265.
- Price, R., Román, F. J., & Rountree, B. (2011). The impact of governance reform on performance and transparency. *Journal of Financial Economics*, 99(1), 76–96.
- Putra, A. A., Mela, N. F., & Putra, F. (2022). Green CEO, managerial ability and environmental performance. *Social Responsibility Journal*, 19(4), 666-684.
- Qiu, Y., Shaukat, A., & Tharyan, R. (2016). Environmental and social disclosures: Link with corporate financial performance. *The British Accounting Review*, 48(1), 102–116.
- Reddy, K., & Gordon, L. W. (2010). The effect of sustainability reporting on financial performance: an empirical study using listed companies. *Journal of Asia Entrepreneurship and Sustainability*, 6(2), 19–42.
- Reuters, T. (2017). *Thomson Reuters ESG Scores*. Retrieved from https://www.esade.edu/itemsweb/biblioteca/bbdd/inbbdd/archivos/Thomson_ Reuters_ESG_Scores.pdf
- Sakaki, H., Jackson, D., & Jory, S. (2017). Institutional ownership stability and real earnings management. *Review of Quantitative Finance and Accounting*, 49(1), 227–244.

- Sakawa, H., & Watanabel, N. (2020). Institutional ownership and firm performance under stakeholder-oriented corporate governance. *Sustainability*. 12(3), 1021. https://doi.org/10.3390/su12031021
- Saleh, M. W. A., Eleyan, D., & Maigoshi, Z. S. (2022). Moderating effect of CEO power on institutional ownership and performance. *Euro Med Journal of Business, ahead-of-print*(ahead-of-print). https://doi.org/10.1108/EMJB-12-2021-0193
- Salehi, M., Bazrafshan, A., & Hosseinkamal, M. (2021). The relationship between supervision quality, CEO's ability and authority with firm performance. *Journal of Facilities Management*, 19(2), 150–173.
- Samontaray, D. P. (2010). Impact of corporate governance on the stock prices of the nifty 50 broad index listed companies. *International Research Journal of Finance and Economics*, 41(1), 7–18.
- Sean Cleary & Jun Wang. (2017). Institutional investors, monitoring and corporate finance policies. *International Journal of Managerial Finance*, 13(2), 186–212.
- SEC. (2022). The growth in Thai stock market investors. Retrieved from https://weblink.set.or.th/dat/vdoArticle/attachFile/AttachFile_1646880706843. pdf
- SEC. (2023). CG Thailand for sustainability of business and society. Retrieved from https://www.sec.or.th/cgthailand/EN/Pages/CGCode/CGCodeIntroduction.asp x
- Semenova, N., & Hassel, L. G. (2016). The moderating effects of environmental risk of the industry on the relationship between corporate environmental and financial performance. *Journal of Applied Accounting Research*, 17(1), 97–114.
- SET. (2019). SET's supplier code of conduct. Retrieved from https://bit.ly/3RdCBIY
- SET. (2022). Sustainable Procurement. Retrieved from

https://supplychainguru.co.th/articles/sustainability/what-is-sustainableprocurement-and-its-importance/

SET. (2023). *Sustainability disclosure & reporting*. Retrieved from https://www.setsustainability.com/page/disclosure

- Shao, D., Zhao, S., Wang, S., & Jiang, H. (2020). Impact of CEOs' academic work experience on firms' innovation output and performance: Evidence from Chinese Listed Companies. *Sustainability*, *12*(8), 7442.
- Shrestha, N. (2020). Detecting multicollinearity in regression analysis. *American Journal of Applied Mathematics and Statistics*, 8(2), 39–42.
- Siddiqui, K. (2013). Heuristics for sample size determination in multivariate statistical techniques. World Applied Sciences Journal, 27(2), 285–287.
- Simamora, A. J. (2023). Firms' performance, risk taking and managerial ability. *International Journal of Productivity and Performance Management*, 72(3), 789–808.
- Spitzeck, H., & Hansen, E. G. (2010). Stakeholder governance: how stakeholders influence corporate decision making. *International Journal of Business Governance and Ethics*, 10(4), 378–391.
- Suchman, M. C. (1995). Managing Legitimacy: Strategic and institutional approaches. *Academy of Management Review*, *20*(3), 571–610.
- Sultana, S., Zainal, D., & Zulkifli, N. (2017). The influence of environmental, social and governance (ESG) on investment decisions: The Bangladesh perspective. *Social Sciences & Humanities*, 25(1), 155–174.
- Sun, L. (2016). Managerial ability and goodwill impairment. Advances in Accounting, Incorporating Advances in International Accounting, 32(2016), 42–51.
- Sun, L. (2017). Managerial ability and chemical releases. Sustainability Accounting, Management and Policy Journal, 8(3), 281–306.
- Tabachnick, B.G. & Fidell, L.S. (2012). Using Multivariate Statistics 6th Eduction, (6th ed.). Pearson Education.
- Tampakoudis, I., Noulas, A., Kiosses, N., & Drogalas, G. (2021). The effect of ESG on value creation from mergers and acquisitions. What changed during the COVID-19 pandemic? Corporate Governance: *The International Journal of Business in Society*, 21(6), 1117–1141.
- Tantivanichanon, S., Wongsurawat, W., & Rajchamaha, K. (2015). Who makes the grade and why? Corporate governance scores in Thailand. Journal of Advances in Management Research, 12(3), 249–267.

- Thanasarnborisud, C., & Phadoongsitthi, M. (2015). Firm characteristics and corporate environmental disclosure of MAI listed companies. *Journal of Accounting Profession*, 11(30), 23–40.
- The Securities and Exchange Commission. (2018). *Corporate Governance: CG*. Retrieved from http://www.cgthailand.org/
- Thomsen, S., & Pedersen, T. (2000). Ownership structure and economic performance in the largest European companies. *Strategic Management*, *21*(6), 689–705.
- Ting, I. W. K., Tebourbi, I., Lu, W.-M., & Kweh, Q. L. (2021). The effects of managerial ability on firm performance and the mediating role of capital structure: Evidence from Taiwan. *Financial Innovation*, 7(1), 89.
- Triwachareekorn, P. (2018). *Millennial Investors ESG driving power*. Retrieved from https://bualuang.fund/archives/5443/esg-corner-27-12-18/
- Tsouknidis, D. A. (2019). The effect of institutional ownership on firm performance:
 The case of U.S.-listed shipping companies. *Maritime Policy & Management*,
 46(5), 509–528.
- United Nations. (2019). Guidance on core indicators for entity reporting on contribution towards implementation of the Sustainable Development Goals. United Nations Publications. Retrieved from https://unctad.org/system/files/official-document/diae2019d1_en.pdf
- Utz, S., Wimmer, M., Hirschberger, M., & Steuer, R. E. (2014). Tri-criterion inverse portfolio optimization with application to socially responsible mutual funds. *Theory and Operations Research*, 234(2), 491–498.
- Velte, P. (2017). Does ESG performance have an impact on financial performance?Evidence from Germany. *Journal of Global Responsibility*, 8(2), 169–178.
- Velte, P. (2020). Does CEO power moderate the link between ESG performance and financial performance? *Management Research Review*, 43(5), 497–520.
- Viererbl, B., & Koch, T. (2022). The paradoxical effects of communicating CSR activities: Why CSR communication has both positive and negative effects on the perception of a company's social responsibility. *Public Relations Review*, *48*(1), 102134.

- Vintilă, G., & Gherghina, S. C. (2014). The impact of ownership concentration on firm value. Empirical study of the Bucharest Stock Exchange listed companies.
 Emerging Markets Queries in Finance and Business, 15(1), 271 279.
- W. Sean Cleary, & Jun Wang. (2017). Institutional investors, monitoring and corporate finance policies. *International Journal of Managerial Finance*, 13(2), 186–212.
- Wang, N., Pan, H., Feng, Y., & Du, S. (2023). How do ESG practices create value for businesses? Research review and prospects. *Sustainability Accounting, Management and Policy Journal, ahead-of-print*(ahead-of-print). https://doi.org/10.1108/SAMPJ-12-2021-0515
- Wang, Z., Chen, M.-H., Chin, C. L., & Zheng, Q. (2017). Managerial ability, political connections, and fraudulent financial reporting in China. *Journal of Accounting* and Public Policy, 36(2), 141–162.
- Wattana, S. (2012). Voluntary disclosure of social and environmental information:Evidence from stock exchange of Thailand. *Thammasat University*, Thailand.
- Welch, K., & Yoon, A. (2022). Do high-ability managers choose ESG projects that create shareholder value? Evidence from employee opinions. *Review of Accounting Studies*. Retrieved from_https://ssrn.com/abstract=3616486
- World Economic Forum. (2015). *Beyond supply chains-Empowering responsible value chains*. Retrieved from https://www3.weforum.org
- World Economic Forum. (2021). The Global Risks Report 2021, 16th Edition. . Retrieved from https://reliefweb.int/report/world/global-risks-report-2021-16th-edition-insight-report?gclid=CjwKCAjw
- Xu, Q., Fernando, G. D., & Schneible, R. A. (2022). Age diversity, firm performance and managerial ability. *Review of Accounting and Finance*, 21(4), 276–298.
- Yarram, S. R. (2015). Corporate governance ratings and the dividend payout decisions of Australian corporate firms. *International Journal of Managerial Finance*, *11*(2), 162–178.
- Yixiang, Z. (2011). Empirical research on ownership structure and corporate performance based on the perspective of dynamic endogeneity. *Energy Procedia*, 5(1), 1878–1884.

- Yoo, S., & Managi, S. (2022). Disclosure or action: Evaluating ESG behavior towards financial performance. *Finance Research Letters*, 44 (1), 102-118.
- Zamzamir@Zamzamin, Z., Haron, R., & Othman, A. H. A. (2021). Hedging, managerial ownership and firm value. *Journal of Asian Business and Economic Studies*, 28(4), 263–280.
- Zhang, H. (2023). Are CEOs rewarded for managerial ability? Evidence from nonprofit hospitals. Journal of Public Budgeting, *Accounting & Financial Management*, 35 (2), 219-243.







Regression Diagnostics

For the OLS to produce coefficients that are best linear unbiased estimators, it was found that the data did not contradict the multiple regression assumptions to test hypotheses as follows: as explained in 1 to 5 as follows:

1. The means of the random errors were zero based on exogeneity of the independent variables. When the method of ordinary least square is used, this condition is always true.

1) Results from a residuals statistics examining the moderation role of the effect ESG on ROA via ME

Residuals Statistics Dependent ROA 0 Variable Min Mean SD Min Max Mean Max Predicted Value 0.233 0.049 0.046 -0.093 0.342 3.101 1.423 Residual -0.255 0.235 0.000 0.056 -2.095 1.795 0.000 Std. Predicted

0.000

0.000

SD

0.445

0.540

1.000

0.996

0.000

0.000

3.768

3.310

Table 1 The means of the random error's tests of ESG model

4.034

Observation 2,104 sample

Value

Std. Residual

-3.112

-4.509 4.159

2) Results from a residuals statistics examining the moderation role of the effect INS on ROA via ME

1.000

0.996

-2.428

-3.864

Residuals Statistics								
Dependent		R	DA L	લ છે .		Ç	2	
Variable	Min	Max	Mean	SD	Min	Max	Mean	SD
Predicted Value	-0.092	0.239	0.049	0.045	0.390	3.138	1.423	0.443
Residual	-0.264	0.242	0.000	0.057	-2.132	1.770	0.000	0.542
Std. Predicted Value	-3.131	4.203	0.000	1.000	-2.333	3.874	0.000	1.000
Std. Residual	-4.641	4.251	0.000	0.996	-3.918	3.251	0.000	0.996

Table 2 The means of the random errors tests of INS model

Observation 2,104 sample

2. The random errors were normally distributed based on the test of normality. The histogram was an inverted bell shape with a symmetrical appearance. According to Table 3, Even though the data were not normally distributed, abnormally distributed data may not have an impact on the study's credibility. Since the sample was large, it was assumed that the data were not normally distributed. Thus, the natural logarithms (SIZE) of these variables were used to solve this issue. The range of skewness was between 0.373 and 0.999, while the range of kurtosis was between -1.219 and 2.071. These values suggest that the data in the sample had a normal distribution because they fall within the suggested threshold values of ± 3 for skewness and ± 10 for kurtosis, respectively, as advised by Kline (2016).

Variables	N	N Skewness			Kurtosis		
v arrables	statistic	statistic	Std. error	statistic	Std. error		
Dependent: ROA	2,104	.373	.053	2.071	.107		
Q	2,104	.998	.053	185	.107		
Independent: ESG	2,104	0.678	.053	-1.219	.107		
INS	2,104	.999	.053	050	.107		
Moderator: M_Score	2,104	9.867	.053	1.167	.107		
Control: FS*	2,104	11.89	.053	178.59	.107		
LogFS	2,104	.670	.053	.063	.107		
LEV	2,104	.442	.053	-1.037	.107		
GR	2,104	.519	.053	.208	.107		

Table 3	Normality	test of sam	ple distribution

Model 1 Results from a regression analysis examining the moderation role of the effect ESG on ROA via M_Score





Model 2 Results from a regression analysis examining the moderation role of the effect ESG on Q via M_Score

Model 3 Results from a regression analysis examining the moderation role of the effect INS on ROA via M_Score



Model 4 Results from a regression analysis examining the moderation role of the effect INS on Q via M_Score



3. The random errors had constant variance (homoscedasticity)

Breusch and Pagan (1979) are used to test for the presence of heteroscedasticity, and a p-value higher than 0.05 indicates no heteroscedasticity in the residuals. Results from the heteroscedasticity test show that the p-value is higher than 0.05; hence, the no presence of heteroscedasticity under both ROA and Q.

 Table 4 Heteroscedasticity tests

ROA	$G[\mathcal{G}]$		
		ROA	Q
p- value .089	.068	.244	.145

4. The random errors were independently distributed.

The dataset's autocorrelation is determined using the Durbin–Watson testing on a scale of 1.5–2.5 for the indices and time series to determine if any form of autocorrelation exists.

Variables	ESG model	INS model
	Autocorrelation test Durbin–Watson (DW)	Autocorrelation test Durbin–Watson (DW)
ROA	1.995	1.989
Q	1.917	1.873

Through the examination of the Durbin-Watson (DW) and the residual autocorrelation test, it was found that the DW values of the models were between 1.5 and 2.5, indicating no autocorrelation problem that could distort the regression outcomes, or that could be anticipated in panel data if the error terms were linked to the data of the previous year, as suggested by Kline (2016). These results are reported in Table 5

5. Independent variables must not be correlated (multicollinearity).

In order to assess the importance of the regression analysis in this study, a statistical technique used to investigate the assumptions and relationships between the variables in a multiple regression analysis had to be applied after the model was estimated. This is achieved by adopting diagnostic tests that take into account the correlation among variables, such as multicollinearity, which includes VIF and tolerance.

Variables 3	ESG mo	del	INS n	nodel
3	Correlations		Correl	ations
	Tolerance VIF		Tolerance	VIF
ESG	0.724	1.381		
INS	าการ	5782	0.953	1.049
ME	0.857	1.166	0.876	1.141
$ESG \times M_Score$	0.939	1.065		
$INS \times M_Score$			0.980	1.020
LN_FS	0.564	1.774	0.728	1.374
LEV	0.758	1.320	0.761	1.314
GR	0.901	1.110	0.900	1.111

 Table 6 The multicollinearity test

The effectiveness of the linear regression model is based on the assumption that the independent variables are not correlated with each other. When multicollinearity is present, the standard errors of calculated coefficients tend to rise. Table 6 provides information on the collinearity statistics, tolerance, and variance inflation factor (VIF), and it indicates that they are all within acceptable limits (VIF < 10 and tolerance > 0.1). This shows that there is no interdependence among the explanatory variables, and therefore, none of the variables should be removed from the multivariate analysis.







Results of PROCESS Regression Assumptions Testing

The data set was checked whether it was in line with the assumptions of linear regression. Certain variables were found to be irregularly distributed. After applying natural log to solve the problem, no serious concerns were found. The summary of the four assumptions on moderating model.



Output of PROCESS regression analysis

 $\label{eq:Model 1} Model \ 1 \ {\rm Results} \ from \ a \ regression \ analysis \ examining \ the \ moderation \ role \ of \ the \ effect$

ESG on ROA via M_Score

Run MATRIX procedure:								
******** PROCESS Procedure for SPSS Version 4.1 ********								
Writte	n by Andrew F	. Hayes,	Ph.D.	www.	afhayes.	com		
Documentation available in Hayes (2022). www.guilford.com/p/hayes3								

Model : 1								
Y : ROA								
X : ESG								
W : ME								
Covariates:								
LOGFS LEV	GR A	GRO	CONSUMP	INDUS	PROPCON			
RESOURC SERVICE	YZUZI YZ	020 Y	2019 Y	2018	YZUI/			
Sampie								
Size: 2104	* * * * * * * * * * * * * *	+++++++	* * * * * * * * * *	* * * * * * * *	* * * * * * *			
DON	E Sal							
KOA Modol Summarry								
	Perce	MCE	R BA	df1	dfo	n		
R 0 6204	0.2061		P 00 1057	17	2006	P 0000		
0.0294	0.3961	0.0032	60.4957	1/	2000	0.0000		
MOGET	coeff)) n	T.T.CT	III.CT		
constant	-0.061	0 017	-3 601		_0 094	-0 028		
ESG	-0.004	0.012	-0.335	0.738	-0.026	0 019		
ME	0.061	0.009	6.937	0.000	0.044	0.078		
Int 1	0.042	0.013	3.260	0.001	0.017	0.067		
LogFS	0.006	0.001	5.462	0.000	0.004	0.008		
LEV	-0.039	0.002	-16.341	0.000	-0.043	-0.034		
GR	0.074	0.006	12.443	0.000	0.063	0.086		
AGRO	-0.005	0.006	-0.944	0.345	-0.016	0.006		
CONSUMP	-0.015	0.007	-2.313	0.021	-0.028	-0.002		
INDUS	-0.005	0.005	-0.977	0.329	-0.015	0.005		
PROPCON	-0.016	0.005	-3.190	0.001	-0.026	-0.006		
RESOURC	-0.001	0.006	-0.122	0.903	-0.012	0.011		
SERVICE	0.000	0.005	-0.058	0.954	-0.010	0.010		
Y2021	-0.007	0.004	-1.611	0.107	-0.016	0.002		
Y2020	-0.013	0.005	-2.806	0.005	-0.021	-0.004		
Y2019	-0.008	0.004	-1.775	0.076	-0.017	0.001		
Y2018	-0.009	0.004	-2.117	0.034	-0.018	-0.001		
Y2017	-0.005	0.005	-1.001	0.317	-0.013	0.004		

Product terms key: : Int_1 ESG х ME Test(s) of highest order unconditional interaction(s): R2-chnq df1 df2 р .0031 1 2086 0.0011 10 6001 Focal predict: (X) Mod var: ME (W) Conditional effects of the focal predictor at values of the moderator(s): ME Effect se р LLCI ULCI .0076 -0.0025 0.3882 0.0123 0.1039 0.0272 .0056 0.7432 0.0271 0.0000 0.0160 0.0382 0.0419 0.0000 1.0983 .0069 0.0284 0.0554 Moderator value(s) defining Johnson-Neyman significance region(s): Value % below % above 17.3479 0.4319 82.6521 Conditional effect of focal predictor at values of the moderator: ME Effect t LLCI ULCI se р 0.0020 -0.0038 0.0115 -0.3281 0.7428 -0.0263 0.0188 0.0919 0.0000 0.0105 -0.0023 0.9982 -0.0206 0.0206 0.0037 0.3896 0.6969 0.1817 0.0095 -0.0150 0.0224 0.2716 0.0075 0.0086 0.8633 0.3881 -0.0095 0.0244 0.3614 0.0112 0.0078 1.4353 0.1513 -0.0041 0.0265 0.4319 0.0141 0.0072 1.9611 0.0500 0.0000 0.0283 0.0343 0.0011 0.4513 0.0150 0.0071 2.1179 0.0288 0.0187 0.0064 2.9076 0.0037 0.0061 0.5411 0.0313 0.6310 0.0224 0.0060 3.7669 0.0002 0.0108 0.0341 0.7208 0.0262 0.0057 4.6095 0.0000 0.0150 0.0373 0.8107 0.0299 0.0056 5.3168 0.0000 0.0189 0.0410 0.0000 0.9005 0.0337 0.0058 5.7969 0.0223 0.0451 0.0496 0.9904 0.0374 0.0062 0.0000 0.0253 6.0354 0.0412 0.0000 0.0279 1.0802 0.0068 6.0844 0.0544 1.1701 0.0449 0.0075 6.0150 0.0000 0.0303 0.0595 1.2599 0.0486 0.0083 5.8849 0.0000 0.0324 0.0649 1.3498 0.0524 0.0091 5.7308 0.0000 0.0345 0.0703 0.0101 5.5731 0.0000 0.0364 0.0759 1.4396 0.0561 0.0599 0.0000 0.0382 1.5295 0.0110 5.4218 0.0815 1.6193 0.0636 0.0120 5.2813 0.0000 0.0400 0.0872 1.7092 0.0674 0.0131 5.1529 0.0000 0.0417 0.0930 1.7990 0.0711 0.0141 5.0365 0.0000 0.0434 0.0988

Data for	visualizing	the condit	tional effect of the focal predictor:				
Paste tex	t below into	a SPSS sy	yntax window and execute to produce plot.				
DATA LIST	DATA LIST FREE/						
	ESG	ME	ROA .				
BEGIN DAT.	Α.						
	0.3349	0.3882	0.0155				
	0.5915	0.3882	0.0187				
	0.8481	0.3882	0.0219				
	0.3349	0.7432	0.0421				
	0.5915	0.7432	0.0491				
	0.8481	0.7432	0.0561				
	0.3349	1.0983	0.0688				
	0.5915	1.0983	0.0795				
	0.8481	1.0983	0.0903				
END DATA.							
GRAPH/SCA	TTERPLOT=						
ESG	WITH RO	A BY	ME.				
******	******* AN	ALYSIS NOT	TES AND ERRORS ************				
Level of	confidence f	or all cor	nfidence intervals in output:				
95.0000							
W values	in condition	al tables	are the mean and +/- SD from the mean.				
EN	D MATRIX	\ 3					
		200					



Model 2 Results from a regression analysis examining the moderation role of the effect ESG on Q via M_Score

Run MATRIX procedure:							
*******	PROCE	ESS Procedu	are for SPS	SS Version	4.1 *****	* * * * * * * * *	* * *
	Writt	en by Andr	rew F. Haye	es, Ph.D.	www.a	afhayes.c	om
Docum	entati	ion availab	ole in Haye	es (2022).	www.guilfo	ord.com/p	/hayes3
******	*****	* * * * * * * * * * *	* * * * * * * * * *	* * * * * * * * * * *	* * * * * * * * * * *	******	* * * * * *
Model :	1						
ү :	Q						
х :	ESG						
w :	ME						
Covariate	s:						
LogFS	LEV	GR	AGRO	CONSUMP	INDUS	PROPCON	RESOURC
SERVICE	YZUZI	¥2020	¥2019	12018	YZUI/		
Sampie	0.4						
Size: 21	.04	• • • • • • • • • • • • • •		• • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	* * * * * * * * * * * * *		* * * * * *
					~ ~ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^		~ ~ ^ ^ ^ ^
OUICOME V	ARIABI	-E.					
Q Madal Gum							
Model Sum	mary	D	S C	<u>n</u> ë ,	361	150	
R		R-sq	MSE	F	ail	ar2	p
0.63	362	0.4048	0.2940	83.44/4	17	2086	0.0000
Model					57		
		COEII	se		p		
constant		1.3008	0.161/	8.0445	0.0000	0.9837	1.61/9
ESG		0.1374	0.1104	1.2454	0.2131	-0.0/90	0.3538
ME T 1		0.6445	0.0844	7.6376	0.0000	0.4/90	0.8100
Int_I		0.2780	0.1226	2.2680	0.0234	0.03/6	0.5184
LogFS		-0.01/1	0.0102	-1.6768	0.0937	-0.0372	0.0029
		-0.0547	0.0227	-2.4120	0.0160	-0.0991	-0.0102
GR		0.1749	0.0573	3.0497	0.0023	0.0624	0.2873
AGRO		0.1812	0.0527	3.4393	0.0006	0.0779	0.2845
CONSUMP		-0.5310	0.0620	-8.5609	0.0000	-0.6527	-0.4094
INDUS		-0.4294	0.0500	-8.5943	0.0000	-0.5274	-0.3314
PROPCON		-0.4284	0.0479	-8.9413	0.0000	-0.5224	-0.3345
RESOURC		-0.1847	0.0550	-3.3600	0.0008	-0.2924	-0.0769
SERVICE		0.1539	0.0478	3.2201	0.0013	0.0602	0.2476
Y2021		-0.0653	0.0424	-1.5398	0.1238	-0.1485	0.0179
Y2020		-0.1515	0.0430	-3.5277	0.0004	-0.2358	-0.0673
Y2019		-0.1624	0.0424	-3.8285	0.0001	-0.2456	-0.0792
Y2018		-0.1260	0.0425	-2.9691	0.0030	-0.2093	-0.0428
Y2017		0.0541	0.0433	1.2508	0.2111	-0.0307	0.1390

Product	terms key:					
Int_1	:	ESG x	ME			
Test(s)	of highest	order unco	nditional	interactic	on(s):	
	R2-chng	F	df1	df2	p	
X*W	0.0015	5.1438	1	2086	0.0234	
Foca	al predict:	ESG (X)			
	Mod var:	ME (W)	_		
Conditio	onal effect	s of the fo	cal predic	tor at val	ues of the	
ME	Effect	se	ŧ	р	LLCI	ULCI
0.3882	0.2453	0.0726	3.3770	0.0007	0.1029	0.3878
0.7432	0.3440	0.0541	6.3539	0.0000	0.2379	0.4502
1.0983	0.4428	0.0661	6.6944	0.0000	0.3131	0.5725
Moderato	or value(s)	defining J	ohnson-Ney	man signif	icance regior	ı(s):
Value	% below	% above				
0.164	3.0894	96.9106				
Conditio	onal effect	of focal p	redictor a	t values c	of the moderat	cor:
ME	Effect	se		р	LLCI	ULCI
0.0020	0.1380	0.1101	1.2528	0.2104	-0.0780	0.3540
0.0919	0.1630	0.1007	1.6187	0.1057	-0.0345	0.3604
0.1640	0.1830	0.0933	1.9611	0.0500	0.0000	0.3660
0.1817	0.1879	0.0916	2.0526	0.0402	0.0084	0.3675
0.2716	0.2129	0.0829	2.5680	0.0103	0.0503	0.3755
0.3614	0.2379	0.0749	3.1767	0.0015	0.0910	0.3848
0.4513	0.2629	0.0677	3.8826	0.0001	0.1301	0.3957
0.5411	0.2879	0.0617	4.6679	0.0000	0.1669	0.4088
0.6310	0.3128	0.0571	5.4756	0.0000	0.2008	0.4249
0.7208	0.3378	0.0545	6.2008	0.0000	0.2310	0.4447
0.8107	0.3628	0.0540	6.7202	0.0000	0.2569	0.4687
0.9005	0.3878	0.0557	6.9607	0.0000	0.2785	0.4970
0.9904	0.4128	0.0595	6.9421	0.0000	0.2962	0.5294
1.0802	0.4377	0.0649	6.7468	0.0000	0.3105	0.5650
1.1701	0.4627	0.0716	6.4627	0.0000	0.3223	0.6031
1.2599	0.4877	0.0793	6.1513	0.0000	0.3322	0.6432
1.3498	0.5127	0.0877	5.8471	0.0000	0.3407	0.6846
1.4396	0.5377	0.0966	5.5655	0.0000	0.3482	0.7271
1.5295	0.5626	0.1059	5.3117	0.0000	0.3549	0.7704
1.6193	0.5876	0.1155	5.0857	0.0000	0.3610	0.8142
1.7092	0.6126	0.1254	4.8856	0.0000	0.3667	0.8585
1.7990	0.6376	0.1354	4.7083	0.0000	0.3720	0.9031

Data for visualizing the conditional effect of the focal predictor:	
Paste text below into a SPSS syntax window and execute to produce plot.	
DATA LIST FREE/	
ESG ME Q .	
BEGIN DATA.	
0.3349 0.3882 1.071	
0.5915 0.3882 1.134	
0.8481 0.3882 1.1969	
0.3349 0.7432 1.3329	
0.5915 0.7432 1.4212	
0.8481 0.7432 1.5095	
0.3349 1.0983 1.5948	
0.5915 1.0983 1.7084	
0.8481 1.0983 1.822	
END DATA.	
GRAPH/SCATTERPLOT=	
ESG WITH Q BY ME .	
*************** ANALYSIS NOTES AND ERRORS **********************************	
Level of confidence for all confidence intervals in output:	
95.0000	
W values in conditional tables are the mean and +/- SD from the mean.	
END MATRIX	



Model 3 Results from a regression analysis examining the moderation role of the effect INS on ROA via M_Score

Run MATRIX procedure:							
******** PROCESS Procedure for SPSS Version 4.1 **********							
	Written by	Andrew	F. Hayes, Ph.D	. w	ww.afhayes	s.com	
Docum	entation ava	ailable	in Hayes (2022).			
******	* * * * * * * * * * * *	* * * * * * *	* * * * * * * * * * * * * * *	* * * * * * * * *	* * * * * * * * * *	* * * * * *	
Model :	1						
ү :	ROA						
х :	INS						
W :	W : ME						
Covariate	es:						
LogFS	LEV GR	2	AGRO CONSUL	MP INDUS	PROPCO	DN	
RESOURC	SERVICE Y20)21 Y	2020 Y2019	X7018	Y2017		
Sample	0.4						
Size: 21	.U4 · • • • • • • • • • • • • •	******	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	* * * * * * * * * *	* * * * * * * * * * *	* * * * * * * * * *	
				~ ~ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^	~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~		
DOJCOME V	ARIABLE:						
RUA Madal Gum							
Model Sui	mary	MOR		361	350		
R	R-sq	MSE	Fr. 2002		ar2	р	
0.6243	3 0.3898	0.0032	78.3893	ξ Ι /	2086	0.0000	
Model							
MOGET	coeff	50			T.T.CT	TILCT	
constant	-0 0328	0 0152	-2 1578	0.0311	_0_0627	-0 0030	
TNS	0.0001	0.0102	2.1370	0.0264		0.0000	
MF	0.0883	0.0001	23 6988	0.0201	0.0000	0.0005	
Int 1	0,0006	0 0002	3 2484	0.0012	0 0002	0 0010	
LogFS	0.0079	0.0009	8.3749	0.0000	0.0060	0.0097	
LEV	-0.0395	0.0024	-16 6542	0 0000	-0 0441	-0 0348	
GR	0 0738	0 0060	12 2833	0 0000	0 0620	0 0856	
AGRO	-0.0035	0.0055	-0.6330	0.5268	-0.0143	0.0073	
CONSUMP	-0.0119	0.0065	-1.8447	0.0652	-0.0246	0.0008	
INDUS	-0.0040	0.0052	-0.7631	0.4455	-0.0143	0.0063	
PROPCON	-0.0169	0.0050	-3.3700	0.0008	-0.0267	-0.0071	
RESOURC	-0.0005	0.0058	-0.0871	0.9306	-0.0118	0.0108	
SERVICE	-0.0003	0.0050	-0.0614	0.9510	-0.0101	0.0095	
Y2021	-0.0060	0.0044	-1.3439	0.1791	-0.0147	0.0027	
Y2020	-0.0118	0.0045	-2.6136	0.0090	-0.0206	-0.0029	
Y2019	-0.0074	0.0044	-1.6566	0.0977	-0.0161	0.0014	
Y2018	-0.0091	0.0044	-2.0351	0.0420	-0.0178	-0.0003	
Y2017	-0.0029	0.0045	-0.6431	0.5202	-0.0118	0.0060	

Product terms key:						
Int_1 :	INS	х	ME			
Test(s) of highest order unconditional interaction(s):						
	R2-chng	F	df1	df2	р	
X*W	0.0031	10.5522	1	2086	0.0012	
Focal pre	edict: INS	(X)				
Мос	d var: ME	(W)				
Conditional	effects of t	the focal	predictor	at values	of the	
ME	Effect	se	t	р	LLCI	ULCI
0.3882	-0.0001	0.0001	-0.8511	0.3948	-0.0003	0.0001
0.7432	0.0001	0.0001	2.2221	0.0264	0.0000	0.0003
1.0983	0.0004	0.0001	3.8259	0.0001	0.0002	0.0005
Moderator val	lue(s) defin	ning John	son-Neyman	significa	nce regio	n(s):
Value	% below	% above				
0.0612	0.5228	99.4772				
0.7164	50.3327	49.6673				
Conditional effects of the focal predictor at values of the moderator(s):						
ME	Effect	se 😪	e t	р	LLCI	ULCI
0.0020	-0.0003	0.0002	-2.0700	0.0386	-0.0006	0.0000
0.0612	-0.0003	0.0001	-1.9611	0.0500	-0.0006	0.0000
0.0966	-0.0003	0.0001	-1.8870	0.0593	-0.0005	0.0000
0.1912	-0.0002	0.0001	-1.6478	0.0995	-0.0004	0.0000
0.2857	-0.0001	0.0001	-1.3283	0.1842	-0.0003	0.0001
0.3803	-0.0001	0.0001	-0.8937	0.3716	-0.0003	0.0001
0.4749	0.0000	0.0001	-0.3006	0.7638	-0.0002	0.0001
0.5695	0.0000	0.0001	0.4841	0.6284	-0.0001	0.0002
0.6641	0.0001	0.0001	1.4262	0.1539	0.0000	0.0002
0.7164	0.0001	0.0001	1.9611	0.0500	0.0000	0.0002
0.7586	0.0002	0.0001	2.3656	0.0181	0.0000	0.0003
0.8532	0.0002	0.0001	3.0947	0.0020	0.0001	0.0003
0.9478	0.0003	0.0001	3.5383	0.0004	0.0001	0.0004
1.0424	0.0003	0.0001	3.7606	0.0002	0.0002	0.0005
1.1370	0.0004	0.0001	3.8525	0.0001	0.0002	0.0006
1.2315	0.0004	0.0001	3.8772	0.0001	0.0002	0.0007
1.3261	0.0005	0.0001	3.8696	0.0001	0.0002	0.0008
1.4207	0.0006	0.0001	3.8474	0.0001	0.0003	0.0008
1.5153	0.0006	0.0002	3.8194	0.0001	0.0003	0.0009
1.6099	0.0007	0.0002	3.7899	0.0002	0.0003	0.0010
1.7044	0.0007	0.0002	3.7610	0.0002	0.0004	0.0011
1.7990	0.0008	0.0002	3.7335	0.0002	0.0004	0.0012

Data for visualizing the conditional effect of the focal predictor: Paste text below into a SPSS syntax window and execute to produce plot.						
DATA LIST FREE/	·					
INS	ME	ROA.				
BEGIN DATA.						
-19.9482	-0.3551	0.0193				
0.0000	-0.3551	0.0177				
19.9482	-0.3551	0.0162				
-19.9482	0.0000	0.0463				
0.0000	0.0000	0.0491				
19.9482	0.0000	0.0519				
-19.9482	0.3551	0.0733				
0.0000	0.3551	0.0804				
19.9482	0.3551	0.0876				
END DATA.						
GRAPH/SCATTERPLOT=						
INS WITH	ROA BY	ME .				
* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *	ANALYSIS NOTES	AND ERRORS **********************************				
Level of confidence for all confidence intervals in output:						
95.0000						
W values in conditional tables are the mean and +/- SD from the mean.						
NOTE: The following variables were mean centered prior to analysis:						
ME INS						
END MATRIX						



Model 4 Results from a regression analysis examining the moderation role of the effect INS on Q via M_Score

Run MATRIX procedure:							
******PROCESS Procedure for SPSS Version 4.1 *****************							
Written by Andrew F. Hayes, Ph.D. www.afhayes.com Documentation available in Hayes (2022). www.guilford.com/p/hayes3							
Model :	1						
Y :	Y : O						
х :	ž : INS						
w :	W : ME						
Covariates: LogFS LEV GR AGRO CONSUMP INDUS PROPCON RESOURC SERVICE Y2021 Y2020 Y2019 Y2018 Y2017							
Sample							
Size: 21	.04						
* * * * * * * * *	* * * * * * * * * * * * *	*******	********	* * * * * * * * * *	* * * * * * * * * *	* * * * * * * *	
OUTCOME V	ARIABLE:						
Q							
Model	Summary						
R	R-sq	MSE	F	df1	df2	р	
0.632	5 0.4001	0.2963	81.8217	17	2086	0.0000	
Model	acoff.				TTOT	TIT OT	
constant	1 E407	0 1450	10 6209	p	1 2629	1 02/7	
TNC	0.0024	0.1456	2 0129	0.0000	1.2020	1.0347	
TNS ME	0.0024	0.0000	22 2075	0.0001	0.0012	0.0030	
Tnt 1	0.0525	0.0018	4 1977	0.0000	0.0041	0.0023	
LOGES	0.0099	0.0010	1 0933	0 2744	-0 0078	0.0112	
LUGLO	-0.0644	0.0000	-2 8355	0.0046	-0 1089	-0 0199	
GR	0 1700	0.0576	2 9528	0 0032	0 0571	0 2830	
AGRO	0.1957	0.0528	3.7059	0.0002	0.0921	0.2992	
CONSUMP	-0.4922	0.0619	-7.9477	0.0000	-0.6136	-0.3707	
INDUS	-0.4167	0.0501	-8.3137	0.0000	-0.5150	-0.3184	
PROPCON	-0.4400	0.0480	-9.1617	0.0000	-0.5342	-0.3458	
RESOURC	-0.1760	0.0553	-3.1809	0.0015	-0.2846	-0.0675	
SERVICE	0.1566	0.0480	3.2583	0.0011	0.0623	0.2508	
Y2021	-0.0611	0.0426	-1.4342	0.1517	-0.1446	0.0224	
Y2020	-0.1436	0.0431	-3.3335	0.0009	-0.2281	-0.0591	
Y2019	-0.1615	0.0426	-3.7895	0.0002	-0.2451	-0.0779	
Y2018	-0.1255	0.0426	-2.9443	0.0033	-0.2090	-0.0419	
Y2017	0.0702	0.0434	1.6188	0.1056	-0.0148	0.1553	

Product terms key: Int 1 : ΜE TNS х Test(s) of highest order unconditional interaction(s): R2-chnq F df1 df2 X*W 0.0031 10.5522 1 2086 0.0012 Focal predict: INS (X) Mod var: ME (W) Conditional effects of the focal predictor at values of the ME Effect t LLCI ULCI se р -0.8511 -0.0003 0.3882 -0.0001 0.0001 0.3948 0.0001 0.7432 0.0001 0.0001 2.2221 0.0264 0.0000 0.0003 1.0983 0.0004 0.0001 3.8259 0.0001 0.0002 0.0005 Moderator value(s) defining Johnson-Neyman significance region(s): Value % below % above 99.4772 0.0612 0.5228 49.6673 0.7164 50.3327 Conditional effect of focal predictor at values of the moderator: xtoo ME Effect LLCI ULCT se р 0.0020 -0.0003 0.0002 -2.0700 0.0386 -0.0006 0.0000 -0.0003 0.0001 0.0612 -1.9611 0.0500 -0.0006 0.0000 0.0966 -0.0003 0.0001 -1.8870 0.0593 -0.0005 0.0000 0.1912 -0.0002 0.0001 -1.6478 0.0995 -0.0004 0.0000 0.0001 0.2857 -0.0001 -1.3283 0.1842 -0.0003 0.0001 -0.0001 0.0001 -0.8937 0.3716 -0.0003 0.0001 0.3803 0.4749 0.0000 0.0001 -0.3006 -0.0002 0.0001 0.7638 0.0000 0.0001 0.5695 0.4841 0.6284 -0.0001 0.0002 0.6641 0.0001 0.0001 1.4262 0.1539 0.0000 0.0002 0.7164 0.0001 0.0001 1.9611 0.0500 0.0000 0.0002 0.7586 0.0002 0.0001 2.3656 0.0181 0.0000 0.0003 0.8532 0.0002 0.0001 3.0947 0.0020 0.0001 0.0003 0.0003 0.9478 0.0001 3.5383 0.0004 0.0001 0.0004 1.0424 0.0003 0.0001 3.7606 0.0002 0.0002 0.0005 1.1370 0.0004 0.0001 3.8525 0.0001 0.0002 0.0006 1.2315 0.0004 0.0001 3.8772 0.0001 0.0002 0.0007 1.3261 0.0005 0.0001 3.8696 0.0001 0.0002 0.0008 1.4207 0.0006 0.0001 3.8474 0.0001 0.0003 0.0008 1.5153 0.0006 0.0002 3.8194 0.0001 0.0003 0.0009 1.6099 0.0007 0.0002 0.0002 0.0003 0.0010 3.7899 1.7044 0.0007 0.0002 3.7610 0.0002 0.0004 0.0011 1.7990 0.0008 0.0002 3.7335 0.0002 0.0004 0.0012

Data for visualizing the conditional effect of the focal predictor: Paste text below into a SPSS syntax window and execute to produce plot. DATA LIST FREE/ INS ME Q. BEGIN DATA. -19.9482 -0.3551 1.1303 0.0000 -0.3551 1.1238 19.9482 -0.3551 1.1173 -19.9482 0.0000 1.3718 0.0000 0.0000 1.4193 19.9482 0.0000 1.4669 -19.9482 0.3551 1.6132 0.0000 0.3551 1.7149 19.9482 0.3551 1.8165 END DATA. GRAPH/SCATTERPLOT= ME. INS WITH Q BY Level of confidence for all confidence intervals in output: 95.0000 W values in conditional tables are the mean and +/- SD from the mean. NOTE: The following variables were mean centered prior to analysis: ME INS ----- END MATRIX -----


Biography

Name – Surname	Ms. Penprapak Manapreechadeetert
Date of Birth	27 July 1986
Address	19/30, U-thong Road, Tha -Wasukri Subdistrict,
	Pranakorn Sri Ayuttaya District, Pranakorn Sri
	Ayuttaya Province, 13000
Education	Master of Accounting, Rangsit University (2014)
Experiences Work	Lecturer, Accounting Department, Faculty of
	Business Administration and Information
	Technology, Rajamangala University of
	Technology Suvarnabhumi (2009 – present)
Telephone Number	(+66)988465199
Email Address	penprapak.m@rmutsb.ac.th